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REGULAR MEETING  
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Friday, January 10, 2014 at 2:00 p.m. 
910 2nd Avenue, Marina, CA 93933 (Carpenters Union Hall) 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. CLOSED SESSION  

a. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation, Gov Code 54956.9(a) – 3 Cases  
i. Keep Fort Ord Wild v. Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA), Case Number: M114961 
ii. Bogan v. Houlemard, Case Number: M122980 
iii. The City of Marina v. Fort Ord Reuse Authority, Case Number: M11856 

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Gov Code 54957 
Executive Officer - Contract Terms and Conditions 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
 

5. ROLL CALL 
 

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, AND CORRESPONDENCE 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA  
a. Approve December 13, 2013 Board Meeting Minutes (pg. 1-3)   ACTION 
   

8. OLD BUSINESS 
a. 2nd Vote: Preston Park Management Agreement Extension with Alliance  

Communities, Inc. (pg. 4-36) ACTION 
b. Consider Concurrence in the 2010 Monterey County General Plan Consistency  

Determination (pg. 37-106)                 ACTION 
c. Pollution Legal Liability (PLL) Insurance Policy (pg. 107-108)          

i. Presentation - Barry Steinberg (Kutak Rock LLP)/Kathy Gettys (Marsh)        INFORMATION 
ii. Consider Insurance Coverage Options           ACTION 

d. Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) Update (pg. 109-111)     INFORMATION 
e. Multi-modal Transit Corridor - Presentation by Transportation Agency for  

Monterey County (pg. 112-115)           INFORMATION 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Accept Fiscal Year 12-13 FORA Annual Financial Report (Audit Report) (pg. 116-171)     ACTION 
b. Elect 2014 FORA Board Officers (pg. 172-173) 

i. Receive Nominating Committee Report                           INFORMATION 
ii. Conduct Election                        ACTION 

 
 

 

http://www.fora.org/


 
 

 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
Members of the public wishing to address the FORA Board of Directors on matters within the 
jurisdiction of FORA, but not on this agenda, may do so during the Public Comment Period for up 
to three minutes.  Public comments on specific agenda items are heard under that item. 
 

11. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
a. Outstanding Receivables (pg. 174) INFORMATION 
b. Habitat Conservation Plan Update (pg. 175) INFORMATION 
c. Administrative Committee (pg. 176-179) INFORMATION 
d. Finance Committee (pg. 180-182) INFORMATION 
e. Post Reassessment Advisory Committee (pg. 183-184) INFORMATION 
f. Veterans Issues Advisory Committee (pg. 185-186) INFORMATION 
g. Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee (pg. 187-188) INFORMATION 
h. Travel Report (pg. 189) INFORMATION 
i. Public Correspondence to the Board (pg. 190) INFORMATION 
   

12. ITEMS FROM MEMBERS 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING: FEBRUARY 14, 2014 

Persons seeking disability related accommodations should contact FORA 24 hrs prior to the meeting. 
This meeting is recorded by Access Monterey Peninsula and televised Sundays at 9 a.m. and 1 p.m. 

on Marina/Peninsula Chanel 25. The video and meeting materials are available online at www.fora.org. 
 

http://www.fora.org/
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

4:30p.m.- Friday, December 13, 2013 
University Center at California State University, Monterey Bay 

100 Campus Center (61h Avenue), Seaside, CA 93955 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

3. 

4. 

8. 

Chair Edelen called the meeting to order at 4:30p.m. 

Voting Members Present: (*alternates) 
Chair/Mayor Edelen (City of Del Rey Oaks) 
Councilmember Beach (City of Carmel-by-the-Sea) 
Mayor Gunter (City of Salinas) 
Mayor Kampe (City of Pacific Grove) 
Councilmember Morton (City of Marina) 

Absent: Councilmember Selfridge (City of Monterey), 
Salinas (County of Monterey) 

I (City of Marina) 
of Seaside) 
Monterey) 

d City) 

, Supervisor 

201h Congressional District), Nicole 
mbly District), Graham Bice* 

terey County), Bill Collins (Fort 

uti on 13-11, recognizing City of Monterey City 
stated the resolution would be added to the 

leadership in the area of public/private defense 

CSUMB/FORA Base Reuse Implementation Colloquium 
the Board on the Colloquium, summarizing the main points and 

President Ochoa welcomed the Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
niversity, Monterey Bay (CSUMB) and discussed the need to 

received over the previous two days into base reuse efforts. Multiple 
on the event and its impact. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
Chair Edelen explained that although the FORA Board had previously approved the transfer of the 
California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery (CCCVC) property and authorized the Executive 
Officer to take necessary actions to implement the transfer, the state of California required a formal 
resolution authorizing the Executive Officer to sign the agreement. Staff had received the 
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agreement from the state the previous day, not permitting time for the item to be properly 
agendized. As the state required immediate execution of the agreement, Chair Edelen requested 
Board approval to add the item to the consent agenda as an urgency item. 

MOTION: Mayor Rubio moved, seconded by Supervisor Parker, to add resolution 13-11, authorizing 
the Executive Officer to execute an agreement for no cost transfer and acceptance of real property 
with the state of California, to the consent agenda as an urgency item. 

MOTION PASSED: unanimous 

a. Approval of the October 4, 2013 Board Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of the November 8, 2013 Board Meeting Minutes 
c. Approval of 2014 FORA Board Meeting Schedule 
d. FORA Policy Amendments: Expense Reimbursemen 
e. Legal Services Contract Extension -Alan Waltner 
f. Adopt Resolution 13-10, Recognizing Monterey 
g. Adopt Resolution 13-11, Authorizing the 

Cost Transfer and Acceptance of Real Pro 

MOTION: Mayor Rubio moved, seconded by 

MOTION PASSED: unanimous 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Capital Improvement Program 
Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia 

MOTION: Mayor G 

a. 

i. Approve FY 
for the su 

000 Financial Consultant line item to pay 

ii. 
an analyses (Task 4). 
contract amendment #8 with Economic & Planning 

mprovement Program (CIP)- Phase Ill Study, not 

rOOIMOinT Extension with Alliance Communities, Inc. 
the item to the Board. 

by Supervisor Parker, to authorize the Executive Officer 
Preston Park Management Agreement for one year. 

Required): Ayes: Edelen, Beach, Parker, Oglesby, Rubio, Gunter, 
nell 

c. easures K & M Election) 
i. Receive on of Election Results from Monterey County Elections Department 

ii. Extend Election Legal Services Contract - Steve Churchwell 
Mr. Houlemard presented the item. Authority Counsel Jon Giffen responded to Board questions. 

MOTION: Mayor Gunter moved, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Oglesby, to receive certification 
of election results from the Monterey County Elections Department and to extend the Election 
Legal Services Contract with Steve Churchwell, not to exceed an additional $11 ,000. 

MOTION PASSED: unanimous 
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7. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Adopt 2014 FORA Legislative Agenda 

Mr. Houlemard reviewed the 2014 Legislative Agenda. Supervisor Parker asked that "and active 
transportation" be added to the last item under "Proposed Position" in Section E. Director Moore 
requested that the word "permitted" under "Benefits" in Section C be amended to "projected." 

Erica Parker announced the 12:00 p.m. December 181h Water Bond Hearing to take place in 
Seaside. 

MOTION: Mayor Rubio moved, seconded by Mayor Kampe, the 2014 Legislative 
Agenda, as revised. 

MOTION PASSED: unanimous 

8. EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

a. Outstanding Receivables 
b. Habitat Conservation Plan Update 
c. Finance Committee 
d. Post Reassessment Advisory Committee 
e. Travel Report 
f. Appraisal Instructions for Chu 

Saints (LOS) Site in City of M 
g. Public Correspondence to the B 

Mr. Houlemard noted that FORA 
that all items were informational and d 

9. ITEMS FROM MEM 
None. 

10. 

6. 

1st Capital Bank. He stated 

on, Gov Code 54956.9(a) - 3 Cases 
(FORA}, Case Number: M114961 

session at 5:59p.m. and Authority Counsel Jon Giffen announced no 

10. 
e meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
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2n Vote-Preston Park Management Agreement Extension with Alliance 
Communities Inc. 
January 10, 2014 
8a 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ACTION 

Authorize the Executive Officer to extend the Alliance/FORA Preston Park Management 
Agreement for one year. (Second vote, Public Hearing held on December 13, 2013.) 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
The 2013 Preston Park Management Agreement Extension (PPMA) between FORA and 
Alliance Communities, Inc. (Alliance) received a majority vote for approval at the December 13, 
2013 meeting and is being returned for a 2nd vote. 

Until December 31, 2011, Alliance, FORA and the City of Marina were parties to the PPMA. 
Thereafter, the FORA Board voted to approve a PPMA with two parties. 

On October 11, 2013, Alliance's annual performance review was presented to the FORA 
Board. While the overall review of Alliance was rated Satisfactory, the review rated Alliance 
"Satisfactory with Needs to Improve" its rating in two areas: (1) the development of a Preston 
Park Tenant Handbook and (2) the modification of contract language to aggregate reporting 
data in the monthly operations report into a quarterly summary table. The terms of the 2014 
PPMA (Attachment A) have been modified to address the "Satisfactory with Needs to 
Improve" items from the Alliance Management performance review. The entire contract is 
available at this link: (htt ://fora.or /Board/2014/Packet Additional/0110141tem8a-AttachA. d . The 
proposed Preston Park Tenant Handbook is attache o this report (Attachment B). 

FISCAL IMPACT: Reviewed by FORA Controller~---,!'-

Staff time for this item is included in the approved FORA budget. 

COORDINATION: 

FORA Controller, Authority Counsel, FORA Auditor, and Alliance Management Staff. 

http://fora.org/Board/2014/Packet/Additional/011014Item8a-AttachA.pdf
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Attachment A to Item Sa 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/14/14 

PRESTON PARK MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is dated for reference on December 5, 2013. It is made by 

and between the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, a California public entity, ("Owner") and Alliance Communities, 

Inc., a Delaware corporation, ("Operator"). This Agreement replaces the preceding Management Agreement 

dated February 15, 2013. 

RECITALS 

1. Owner holds exclusive title to certain improved real property commonly known as Preston Park 
consisting of 354 units ("Units") at 682 Wahl Court, Marina, CA 93933 (the "Property"). 

2. Owner requires the services of a professional management company to perform administrative and 
financial services. Owner has determined that Operator has the requisite skill, training experience and 
legal authority, including a California real estate brokerage license, needed to manage the Property. 

3. The purpose of this Agreement is to articulate the terms under which Owner and Operator will share 

responsibilities for the Property. 

AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the promises in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Operator and Owner agree as follows: 

1. APPOINTMENT OF OPERATOR. Owner appoints Operator and Operator hereby accepts appointment as 

Owner's exclusive agent to manage, operate, supervise, and lease the Property and to perform those actions 

necessary to fulfill Operator's obligations to the Owner except as provided herein. 

2. TERM 

2.1 TERM. This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2014, and shall continue to midnight, 

December 31, 2014 or until the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ({{FORA") transfers title to the Property except as 

provided in section 2.2., whichever occurs first. 

2.2 EARLY TERMINATION. This Agreement is terminable on the occurrence of any of the following: 
(a) If Owner fails to comply, after notice and an opportunity to cure, with any rule, order, 

determination, ordinance or law of any federal, state, county, or municipal authority. In that event, 
Operator may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to Owner unless Owner is in 
good faith contesting same, under Section 4.2(g). 

(b) If either party defaults in the performance of a material obligation and such default continues for 
thirty {30) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party to the defaulting party specifying such 

Preston Park Management 1 
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default. Notwithstanding the above, if a cure has commenced and the defaulting party is diligently pursuing 
said cure within said 30-day period then the party not in default shall not affect the termination. 

(c) Owner or Operator may terminate this Agreement with cause upon sixty (GO) days written notice 
to the other party. It is understood that the respective rights and obligations of the parties shall continue to 
be governed by this Agreement until the effective date of such termination. 

2.3 DUTIES UPON TERMINATION. Upon the effective date of termination of this Agreement for any 

reason: 

(a) Operator shall have no further right to act on behalf of Owner or to disburse any of Owner's 
funds; 

(b) Operator will immediately deliver to Owner all Books, Records, and Documents (as herein 
defined) maintained under this Agreement and do all that is reasonably necessary to facilitate the orderly 
transition of Property management; 

(c) Operator shall render to Owner an accounting of all funds (i. e. bank accounts) of Owner held by 
Operator relating to property and shall immediately cause such funds to be paid to Owner; and 

(d) Operator shall perform all reporting and accounting functions hereunder for the period from the 
date of the last report or accounting to the date of termination. 

3. COMPENSATION 

3.1 Management Fee. In addition to other reimbursements to Operator provided for in this Agreement, 

Owner shall pay Operator a monthly management fee equal to 2.S% of the Gross Revenue, as defined in 

Section 3.2. Owner shall pay Management Fees in monthly installments at the beginning of each month. 

These fees shall be paid from the Trust Account as part of the operating expenses of the Property. 

3.2 Gross Revenue. For purposes of computing the Management Fee, the term 11Gross Revenue" means 

all revenue derived from the Property, determined on a cash basis, from (a) tenant rentals for each month 

during the Term of this Agreement; excluding tenant security deposits (except as provided below); (b) 

forfeited cleaning, security and damage deposits; (c) laundry and vending machines receipts; (d) other 

revenue from the operation of the Property received during the Term of this Agreement; (e) proceeds from 

rental interruption insurance, but not any other insurance proceeds or proceeds from third-party damage 

claims, and (f) charges collected in connection with termination of the tenant's right of occupancy. Gross 

Revenue does not include the proceeds of (i) sale, exchange, refinancing, condemnation, or other disposition 

of all or any part of the Property, (ii) any loans to Owner whether or not secured by all or any part of the 

Property, (iii) any capital expenditures or funds deposited to cover costs of operations made by Owner, and 

(iv) any insurance policy (other than rental interruption insurance or proceeds from third-party damage 
claims). 

3.3 Distribution of net profits to City of Marina and FORA. As provided in Government Code section 
67678(b) (2), Operator shall distribute net profit from operation of the Property as follows: Fifty percent 
(SO%) to the City of Marina, and Fifty percent (SO%) to FORA. 

3.4 Capital Improvement Management Fee. On or before March 31, 2014 Operator shall submit to 

Owner an annual Capital Improvement Program ("CIP"). The CIP shall describe recommended capital 

improvements. The Owner shall approve in writing the Capital improvement projects to be undertaken each 

year. Owner will pay to Operator a construction management fee for Capital Improvements managed by 

Operator. That fee shall be equal to six percent (6%) of the total project cost as set forth in an executed 

written proposal or agreement. Each project must be approved in writing by Owner. Operator's fee will be 

Preston Park Management 2 
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increased or decreased by all change orders approved by Owner. Operator's CIP management fee shall be 

computed and paid based on monthly construction invoices. Such fees and capital projects will be paid from 

Reserve Account. 

3.5 Definitions for Section 3: 

3.5.1 Capital Improvements and Maintenance. For purposes of this Section 3.4, a capital item is 

distinguished from maintenance in that a capital improvement is intended to extend the useful life of a fixed 

asset, whereas repairs and maintenance keep the asset in its customary state of operating efficiency. Minor 

improvements to structures or site involving a total expenditure of less than Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) 

are not capital improvements. Replacement of structural elements, even costing more than Five Thousand 

Dollars ($5,000), caused by normal wear and tear, are maintenance and not a capital improvement. 

"Extraordinary maintenance," referring to those emergency items that need immediate replacement prior to 

the capital planned schedule for replacement, are provided for in the annual budget so that urgent 

replacements or repairs may be addressed immediately. 

3.5.2 Routine maintenance: Simple, small-scale activities (usually requiring only minimal skills or 

training) associated with regular (daily, weekly, monthly, etc.) and general upkeep of a building, equipment, 

machine, plant, or system against normal wear and tear. Examples: Those items listed in the budget 

classified as general Repairs and Maintenance. 

3.5.3 Non-routine maintenance: Activities that require specialized skills or training that are 

associated with irregular or out of the ordinary upkeep of a building, equipment, machine, plant, or system. 

Examples: Slurry seal, carpet and flooring replacements, appliance replacements, minor roof and gutter 

repairs, dryer vent cleaning. 

3.5.4 Capital items/construction: Complex or larger scale activity associated with buildings, 

structures, or other improvements including alterations, painting, remodeling, transportation of construction 

and furnishing goods and material etc. Examples: Replacement of windows, exterior building repaint, 

interior unit remodeling or remediation, re-plumbing projects, signage development, roof replacement. 

4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 OPERATOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. Operator is responsible for management of the Property in 

accordance with the standards of practice of professional managers of similar properties in the Monterey 

Peninsula area. Operator will provide other customary management services related to the ordinary 

business affairs of the Property consistent with the standards of management, operation, leasing, and 

maintenance of similar property in the area. Those services shall include but not be limited to the Scope of 

Services described in Exhibit "A.". Operator shall also establish and implement a mutually agreeable 

business plan and shall operate within the annual budget as approved by Owner. Operator acknowledges 

and shall continue, unless given new instructions, the commingling of staff, space for maintenance and 

administrative staff, and equipment and supplies for property management of the Preston Park (FORA­

owned property) and Abrams B (City of Marina-owned property) on a 60/40 basis. 

4.2 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OPERATOR. Operator agrees and is hereby granted 

authority to undertake the functions described in this section. 

4.2.1 Collections Practice. Operator shall use commercially reasonable efforts and means to collect 

rents and other charges due from tenants. When deemed a sound business practice, Operator will institute 

legal proceedings on behalf of Owner to collect unpaid debts. Owner hereby authorizes Operator to request, 

demand, collect, and receive funds for collection thereof in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, 

Preston Park Management 3 
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ordinances or administrative grievance procedures and for the lawful dispossession of tenants, guests, and 

other persons from Property. Owner agrees to reimburse Operator's expenses of collection, provided such 

expenditures have been approved in writing by Owner. 

4.2.2 Books, Records, and Documentation. 

4.2.2.1 Operator shall maintain at its principal office or on the Property, complete and 
separate books, records and documents relating to the management and operation of the Property, 
including without limitation contracts, leases, amendments, extensions and agreements relating to contracts 
and leases, annual contributions contracts, files, correspondence with tenants and prospective tenants, 
documentation of tenant eligibility, computations of rental adjustments, maintenance and preventive 
maintenance programs, schedules and logs, tenant finish and construction records, inventories of personal 
property and equipment, correspondence with vendors, job descriptions, business correspondence, 
brochures, and accounts held or maintained by Operator (all such books, records, and documents being 
referred to herein as {{Books, Records, and Documentation"}. Operator shall maintain all financial books and 
records in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles at Operator's sole expense. Owner 
shall have the right to examine, audit and take originals and copies of said Books, Records and Documents at 
Operator's principal office with two day's written advance notice to Operator. 

4.2.2.2 Upon request, Operator shall make financial books and records available for 
examination, audit, inspection and copying by public officials with regulatory authority over the Operator or 
Property to the extent required by law. Since the City of Marina obtains 50% of the proceeds, the City of 
Marina will have the same inspection rights as FORA. 

4.2.2.3 On or before fifteen (15} days following the end of each calendar month, Operator 
shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Owner a standard Financial Reporting Package. The Financial 
Reporting Package shall include an unaudited financial statements and various reports as follows: Summary 
of Management Activities including summary of tenant comments and complaints, and a summary of any 
Tenant's Association meeting that occurs during the period in question, Variance Analysis, Market Survey, 
Income statement showing the results of operation of the Property for the preceding calendar month and 
the Fiscal Year to date, and comparison of actual income and expenses with the income and expenses 
projected in the Budget, Balance Sheet, Trial Balance, General Ledger detail report of all transactions in all 
accounts, summary of Account Receivable and Account Payable, Bank Reconciliation and Bank Statements 
for all three bank accounts, Capital Expenditures Statement, and Request for Reserves Withdrawal. All 
reporting will use Operator's standard chart of accounts and the Yardi software unless otherwise stipulated 
and as agreed to by Owner and Operator in writing. 

4.2.3 Annual Audit. At the end of the term as described in Section 2.1 herein and as of the date of 
termination, Owner shall arrange and coordinate with Operator on an audit of the books and records of the 
Property made by a firm of certified public accountants as approved by Owner. Operator shall also have said 
accountants prepare for execution by Owner all forms, reports, and returns required by any federal, state, 
county, or municipal authority relating to the Property. The cost of said audit is a cost of the Property that 
shall be reflected in the annual budget approved by Owner. To the extent feasible, FORA shall coordinate 
with City of Marina to conduct an audit of Preston Park in conjunction with City of Marina's audit of Abrams 
B. 

4.2.4 Repairs and Maintenance. Operator will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the 
condition of the Property in the condition prescribed by Owner, will regularly inspect the readily accessible 
areas of Property, will take commercially reasonable efforts against fire, vandalism, burglary and trespass on 
the Property, and will arrange to make all necessary repairs. Operator's maintenance duties shall include 
making all necessary repairs for the Property and trash removal. Consistent with provisions of FORA and 
FORA ordinances and policies on local hire, Operator may employ independent contractors and other 
employees necessary to properly maintain, manage and operate the Property. Any contract over $20,000 

Preston Park Management 4 
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per year for an item which is not covered within the approved annual budget shall be presented to Owner 
for approval in advance of the execution of such a contract by Operator, unless the expenditure is for 
emergency repairs that are immediately necessary for the preservation or safety of the Property, repairs for 
the health, safety or welfare of people or property, repairs to avoid suspension of necessary services to the 
Property, or to avoid criminal or civil liability to Owner or Operator. Furthermore, approval shall be required 
to incur any Property expense pertaining to operations that exceeds the budgeted annual amount for that 
line item, unless the expenditure is for emergency repairs that are immediately necessary for the 
preservation or safety of the Property, repairs for the health, safety or welfare of people or property, repairs 
to avoid suspension of necessary services to the Property, or to avoid criminal or civil liability to Owner or 
Operator. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase in a Property expense which does not increase the 
budgeted amounts for such expense by more than 5% and which, when combined with any decreases in 
budgeted amounts made by Operator, does not cause an increase in the overall budget, shall not require 
approval. Any expense which does require approval shall be either put out to bid by Operator or Operator 
shall have obtained at least three quotes for the cost of such item, unless the expenditure is for emergency 
repairs that are immediately necessary for the preservation or safety of the Property, repairs for the health, 
safety or welfare of people or property, repairs to avoid suspension of necessary services to the Property, or 
to avoid criminal or civil liability to Owner or Operator. 

4.2.5 Rental of Housing Units. Operator•s renting of the Units shall conform to this Agreement and 
the following policies: 

4.2.5.1 The Units shall be rented on a six-month lease term or month-to-month. 

4.2.5.2 Rents established Exhibit 11 B11 will be applied until changed by Owner. Any amendment 
to the rental rate schedule shall be approved in advance in writing by Owner. 

4.2.5.3 Applicants for the Units must qualify based upon the applicant's ability to pay and 
maximum occupancy guidelines published by the State of California at the time of renting and applicable 
occupancy standards for the Units. Fifty one (51} of the Units are to be rented at below market rate 
affordable rents ("Affordable Rents"} of which thirty two (32} of the Units shall be considered low and 
nineteen (19} of the units shall be considered very low, as defined in the Regulatory Agreement. The 
Affordable Rents are set forth in Exhibit B and may be amended annually. Any increase in the Affordable 
Rents shall be subject to the approval of Owner and in accordance with the terms of the Regulatory 
Agreement. Applicants of units to be rented at the Affordable Rents must meet the same requirements as 
above, as well as qualify based upon maximum income limits and minimum occupancy guidelines according 
to rules and regulations promulgated by the State of California. 

4.2.5.4 Operator shall select tenants for available units as follows: 

(A} Operator shall first offer and rent available units to applicants on the basis of the 
following preferences, which have been determined by Owner and for which an applicant must qualify at the 
time of initial occupancy of a unit. No more than a total of 35% of the housing units shall be offered for lease 
at any one time on the basis of the preferences listed in (B)- (E) below. Owner shall indemnify, defend and 
hold Operator, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from any cost, damage, claim, liability, suit, 
cause of action or other legal proceedings which may be brought or claimed against Operator as a result of 
implementing Owner's tenant selection criteria set forth below and as may be amended by Owner. Owner 
agrees to promptly notify Operator of any changes to the tenant selection criteria. For all preferences, a 
letter from the applicant's employer verifying the applicant's eligibility will be required when submitting the 
application. Incomplete applications will not be accepted. 

(B) FIRST PREFERENCE: People who work at least twenty five (25} hours per week in a 
business or agency with a physical location within the City of Marina. Sales people or consultants who do 
business in Marina, but who do not have a physical location in Marina will not be considered as working in 
Marina. 

Preston Park Management 5 
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(C) SECOND PREFERENCE: Employees of public safety departments, including police, 
fire, and public works employees of government jurisdictions in Monterey County. 

(D) THIRD PREFERENCE: Employees of public or private education facilities, including 
colleges and universities located in Marina, on the former Fort Ord, and employees of the Monterey 
Peninsula Unified School District. 

(E) FOURTH PREFERENCE: Employees of entities located on property known as uthe 
former Fort Ord." A letter from the employer stating that the physical location where the applicant works is 
in this area must be provided." 

(F) Affordable Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, preferences (B), (C), (D) and (E) 
will be subordinate to the affordability requirements contained in paragraph (iii) above. In addition, said 
preferences will be subordinate to the requirement that, on average, twenty percent (20%) of the housing 
units at the Property will be affordable units." 

(G) Rental Agreements. The prior Operator prepared and submitted to Owner for its 

approval and Owner has approved said rental agreements which shall be used by Operator for the property. 

If Operator desires to change the approved rental agreements, Operator shall seek Owner's comments and 

approval of the terms and conditions thereof. Owner's approval of the proposed rental agreements shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. 

4.2.6 Insurance. 

4.2.6.1 Fire Coverage. Operator shall obtain and keep in force fire and extended coverage 
insurance and other customary property insurance for the Property, the cost of insurance to be paid out of 
the Trust Account as approved by the Budget. 

4.2.6.2 Comprehensive General Liability Coverage. Operator shall obtain and keep in force a 
Comprehensive General Liability (CGL) insurance policy to cover Owner and Operator, in amounts no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence of bodily injury and property damage, and not less than $2,000,000 policy 
general aggregate and an excess or umbrella liability policy in an amount not less than $10,000,000 per 
occurrence basis, the cost of insurance to be paid out of the Trust Account as approved by the Budget. Such 
insurance shall name Owner as a named insured and shall provide Owner and Lender with 30-day prior 
written notice of cancellations or material change in coverage. Operator shall be named as an additional 
insured on such CGL policy. 

4.2.6.3 E and 0 Coverage. Operator shall obtain and keep in force Error and Omission 
insurance in amount of at least $1,000,000 per wrongful act and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. Operator shall 
obtain such insurance within 30 days of the date of this Agreement, and notwithstanding any other provision 
herein, all costs of insurance under this Section 4.2(f)(iii) shall be at the expense of Operator. 

4.2.6.4 Automobile Coverage. Operator shall obtain and keep in force commercial 
automobile liability insurance (where applicable) in an amount not less than $1,000,000 (combined single 
limit), coverage shall include leased, hired and non-owned vehicles, the cost of insurance to be paid out of 
the Trust Account as approved by the Budget. 

4.2.6.5 Minimizing Insurance Cost. Operator shall not knowingly permit the use of the 
Property for any purpose which might void any policy of insurance relating to the Property, increase the 
premium otherwise payable or render any loss there under uncollectible. 

4.2.6.6 Workers' Comp. Operator shall cause to be placed and kept in force workers• 
compensation insurance up to the statutory limit, including broad form, all-states coverage and employer's 
liability of at least $500,000. Such insurance shall provide Owner with 30-day prior written notice of 
cancellations or material change in coverage. Workers• compensation insurance expenses associated with 

Preston Park Management 6 



Page 11 of 190

employees employed for the direct benefit of Owner or the Property shall be included in the approved 
budget for the Property. 

4.2.6. 7 Selection of Carrier. All of the insurance policies required by this Agreement shall (a) 
be written by insurance companies which are licensed to do business in California, or obtained through a 
duly authorized surplus line insurance agent or otherwise in conformity with the laws of California, with a 
rating of not less than the third {3rd) highest rating category by anyone of the Rating Agencies or with an 
A.M. Best Company, Inc. rating of 11A- 11 or higher and a financial size category of not less than VI; (b) 
specifically identify the Owner and Operator as insureds and Lender as an additional insured; mortgagee; 
loss payee and additional insured with the Owner as the named insured; and (c) include a provision requiring 
the insurance company to notify the Lender and the Owner in writing no less than thirty (30) days prior to 
any cancellation, non-renewal or material change in the terms and conditions of coverage. In addition, the 
Operator shall provide the Owner and Lender with certificates of insurance and certified copies of all 
insurance contracts required by this Agreement within thirty (30) days of their inception and subsequent 
renewals. 

4.2.7 Taxes and Assessments. 

4.2.7.1 Operator shall process payments of all taxes, impositions, or assessments relating to 
the ownership or operation of the Property, including, without limitation, improvement assessments, 
possessory interest and real estate taxes, personal property taxes, taxes on income or rents, or any charges 
similar to or in lieu of any of the foregoing. Prior to payment, Operator shall verify bills for possessory 
interest and real estate, personal property or other taxes, improvement assessments, and other similar 
charges which are due or may become due against the Property on the basis of ownership or operation of 
the Property. If requested by Owner, Operator shall render advice and assistance to Owner in the 
negotiation and prosecution of all claims for the reduction or equalization of property tax assessments and 
other tax assessments affecting the Property. The parties agree, however, that such advice and assistance 
goes beyond the ordinary management responsibilities contemplated by this Agreement and, as such, if 
Operator provides such services, they shall be at an additional cost to Owner. 

4.2.7.2 Operator shall annually review, and submit to Owner a report on, real estate, personal 
property and other taxes and all assessments affecting the Property. 

4.2.8 Compliance with Legal Requirements. Operator shall use reasonable means to become aware 
of, and shall take such actions as Operator deems prudent and necessary to comply with any laws, orders, 
public housing agency plans or requirements affecting the use or operation of the Property by any federal, 
state, county, or municipal agency of authority, including but not limited to compliance with and 
participation in administrative grievance procedures, provided that if the cost of compliance in any instance 
exceeds $10,000.00, Operator shall not expend funds for compliance without Owner's prior written consent. 
Operator shall promptly notify Owner in writing of all such orders, notices, plans or requirements requiring 
expenditure of non-budgeted amounts. Operator, however, shall not take any action as long as Owner is 
contesting, or has affirmed its intention to contest and promptly institutes proceedings contesting any law, 
order, plan or requirement. Operator shall prepare, execute, and, after obtaining the written approval of 
Owner, thereby file any customary and standard reports and documents required by an applicable 
governmental authority. The filing of any special report or document shall not be included as part of this 
Agreement and shall be an additional cost to Owner. Operator covenants and agrees to obtain and maintain 
all licenses and permits necessary for the conduct of its business as Operator of the Property. Amounts 
expended by Operator for use of non-employee consultants or experts, including attorneys, in the 
performance of these duties shall be reimbursed by Owner provided that such amounts are approved in 
writing by Owner prior to Operator incurring such expenses. Operator shall comply with the terms of the 
Regulatory Agreement, a copy of which has been provided previously to Operator. Owner shall indemnify, 
defend and hold Operator, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from any cost, damage, claim, 
liability, suit, cause of action or other legal proceedings which may be brought or claimed against Operator 
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based on said compliance provided that Operator is in compliance with the Regulatory Agreement. 

4.2.9 Energy and Water Conservation. Operator shall use prudent and customary means to use and 
control utilities and water use at the Property in a manner to minimize total costs and satisfy Owner's 
obligations to tenants. 

4.2.10 Advertising. Operator shall advertise the Property for rent at such times and by use of such 

media as it deems necessary subject to the annual budget approved or Owner's prior written approval. 

4.2.11 Employment of Personnel. 

4.2.11.1 Operator will hire, train, supervise, direct the work of, pay, and discharge all 
personnel necessary for operation of the Property. Such personnel shall in every instance be employees of 

Operator and not of Owner. Owner shall have no right to supervise or direct such employees. All costs 

associated with the employment of personnel necessary for the on-site operation of the Property, including, 

but not limited to, salaries, wages, the costs of hiring, termination, training, uniforms, educational and 

motivational programs, other compensation and fringe benefits will be included in the approved budget for 
the Property. The term "fringe benefits" as used herein shall mean and include the employer's contribution 

of employment taxes, worker's compensation, group life and accident and health insurance premiums, 401K 
contributions, performance bonuses, and disability and other similar benefits paid or payable by Operator to 

its employees in other apartment properties operated by Operator subject to the annual budget approved 

by the Owner. The expenses of the Executive personnel of Operator who are assigned to on-site Property 

management for twenty percent {20%) of their time or more may aslso be included in the approved budget. 

Any litigation costs or expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs and wage penalties relating 

to the employment of on-site personnel are reimbursable to Operator by Owner, unless Operator has been 

negligent in its employment practices. Operator will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment in violation of any applicable law. The terms "employees" or "personnel" shall be deemed to 
mean and include employment of a casual, temporary, or part -time nature. 

4.2.11.2 Operator may treat Property-related expenses of on-site, field, or maintenance as 

compensable business expenses. These expenses include worker's compensation insurance, travel and 

training. Such management expenses must be included in the approved budget for the Property. The 

property related expenses of Executive personnel of Operator who are assigned to on-site Property 
management for twenty percent (20%) of their time or more may also be included in the approved budget. 

Operator shall provide to Owner, at Owner's request, payroll and time sheets for all such employees. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, employee compensation of workers performing services for Operator at 

properties other than the Property, shall be reimbursed to Operator pro rata based on the portion of 

working hours involved in services to the Property and such other properties; provided that Operator shall 

be reimbursed for any roving maintenance supervisor providing services to the Property at the rate of $50 

per hour for such services (or such amount as may reflected in the approved Budget). Operator shall solicit 

and receive approval from Owner to use the services of a roving maintenance supervisor prior to services 
being rendered. 

4.2.11.3 Non-compensable Salaries. The salaries, wages, other compensation, benefits, travel, 

entertainment, and other expenses of Operator's executive personnel charged with general administration 

of this Agreement and off-site record-keeping personnel are non-reimbursable expenses of Operator. 

4.2.11.4 Leasing. Operator shall make diligent efforts to secure and/or retain tenants for the 

Property consistent with the character and status of the Property as outlined in the established Resident 
Selection Criteria. Operator shall make diligent efforts to assure that all leases and leasing practices conform 

to all laws, ordinances, regulations, public housing agency plans or annual contributions contracts applicable 
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to the Property. Prior to the execution of a new lease by a tenant, Operator shall in good faith conduct such 

investigations of the financial responsibility and general reputation of the prospective tenant as are 

ordinarily and customarily performed by the managers of similar properties in the location of the Property. 

4.2.11.5 Management Structure. Operator has previously provided an oral description of its 

management structure, roles and assurances as to the frequency of management visits to the Property and 

said description is attached as Exhibit "C" hereto. 

4.2.11.6 Tenant Grievance Procedure. Operator has previously provided an oral description of 

its tenant grievance procedure and said procedure is attached as Exhibit "D." 

5. OWNER'S EXPENSES 

5.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all reasonable expenses incurred by Operator in 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement described as reimbursable shall be reimbursed by 

Owner such expenses and reimbursables shall be paid with funds drawn from the Trust Account. Owner•s 

responsibility for such expenses and reimbursables, including future attorneys• fees and costs relating to 

issues which arose during the term of this Agreement survive termination of this Agreement. Owner's 

expenses shall be limited to the amount included in the annual budget as approved by the Owner. 

5.2 Operator may pay the following expenses directly from the Trust Account subject to other 

conditions in this Agreement: Reasonable Administrative expenses of the Owner devoted to oversight of the 

Agreement limited to the amount included in the approved annual budget. 

6. OPERATOR'S EXPENSES 

6.1 Operator agrees to pay all salaries, wages and other compensation and benefits of personnel 

described in Section 4.2.11 of this Agreement as an Operator's expense without reimbursement by Owner, 

except as otherwise provided therein. Operator shall pay other expenses which are expressly (a) payable by 

Operator or (b) not reimbursable hereunder. Operator shall also pay (without reimbursement) any costs of 

providing corporate office facilities and supplies for such off-site corporate personnel and other expenses 

incurred by Operator which are not incurred in the performance of duties and obligations required by this 

Agreement. 

7. BANK ACCOUNTS 

7.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNTS. 

7.1.1 Trust Account. Operator shall establish a separate bank account for the Property in such Name 
as Owner shall designate and at a bank selected by Operator (the "Trust Account"). Operator shall promptly 
deposit all rents and other funds collected by Operator at least monthly in respect of the Property, including, 
without limitation, any and all advance rents, into the Trust Account and shall not deposit funds attributable 
to any other property into the Trust Account. Operator shall inform such bank in writing that the funds 
deposited in the Trust Account are held in trust for Owner. Operator shall use funds in the account to pay 
the operating expenses of the Property and any other payments relative to the Property as allowed by the 
terms of this Agreement. Operator shall establish a working capital reserve equal to $20,000 to be retained 
within the Trust Account to make up for operating shortfalls. 

7.1.2 Security Deposit Trust Account. Operator shall establish a separate bank account for tenant 
security deposits at a bank designated by Operator (the "Security Deposit Trust Account") into which such 
security deposits shall be deposited. The Security Deposit Trust Account will be (a) maintained in accordance 
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with applicable law and (b) used only for maintaining tenant security deposits for the Property. Operator 
shall inform the bank in writing that the funds are held in trust for Owner. Operator shall maintain detailed 
records of all security deposits deposited in the Security Deposit Trust Account, and such records will be 
open for inspection by Owner's employees or appointees. 

7.1.3 Reserve Account. Operator shall establish a separate bank account (({Reserve Account") at a 
depository selected by Operator as agent for Owner, for the purpose of depositing funds for the Property in 
amounts Owner shall instruct and in such name as Owner shall designate. Deposits shall conform in all 
respects to depository and security requirements pertaining to Local Agency cash contained in California 
Government Code Title 5. Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2, Sections 53630 to 53686. To the extent 
sufficient funds are available, Operator shall promptly deposit funds in amounts instructed by Owner into the 
Reserve Account, and shall not deposit funds belonging or attributable to any other party or property into the 
Reserve Account. Operator shall execute and submit to Owner copies of bank documents demonstrating that 
funds deposited in the Reserve Account are held in trust for Owner. Operator shall not withdraw funds from 
the Reserve Account without express written consent of Owner. 

7.1.4 Cash. Operator may also maintain a petty cash fund from money in the Trust Account and 
make payments therefrom in a manner consistent with the usual course of dealing with such funds in the 
property management business. 

7.1.5 Distributions from Trust Account. Provided sufficient funds are available in the 
Trust Account, Operator will, on or about the fifteenth (15th) of each month, disburse funds via 
wire transfer to Owner to an account as stipulated by Owner to Operator in writing. On the 15th 
of the month, Operator will also wire disbursement of Marina's 50% share to the City of Marina, 
as a continuation of current practice of simultaneous distribution. 

7.1.6 Broker I Insurance. The designated broker for Operator shall be an authorized signer on the 
Trust Account, the Security Deposit Trust Account, and the Reserve Account. In addition, the designated 
broker may authorize any person who qualifies as an authorized signatory on such accounts. The name of 
the designated broker shall be communicated by Operator to Owner in writing. Authorized signatories on 
such accounts shall have authority to make disbursements from such accounts for the purpose of fulfilling 
Operator's obligations hereunder. Funds over Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) may be withdrawn from 
such accounts only upon the signature of at least two (2) individuals who have been granted that authority by 
Operator. Authorized signatories or persons who handle funds for the Property, whether on or off site, shall 
be insured for dishonesty in the minimum account of Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) per occurrence or 
loss with not more than a Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) deductible. A certificate confirming 
such insurance naming Operator and Owner as named insureds and confirming that it will not be modified or 
cancelled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Owner shall be delivered to Owner prior to 
the Fee Commencement Date." 

7.2 FUNDS PROVIDED BY OWNER. If the funds collected by Operator from operation of the Property are 

not sufficient to pay authorized expenses incurred in operation of the Property and to make all 

reimbursements to Operator pursuant hereto, Operator shall submit to Owner a statement showing such 

shortfall and identifying the bills and charges requiring payment, and Owner shall release reserve funds 

sufficient to pay same to the Operator. 

8. ANNUAL BUDGETS 

8.1 SUBMISSION OF BUDGETS. Operator shall prepare and submit to Owner by March 31 for Owner's 
approval proposed budgets of (a) the estimated income and expenses of the Property and (b) the estimated 
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capital expenditures for the Property for the next fiscal year or other operating period as may be agreed by 

the parties. The proposed budgets will be maintained under accrual accounting procedures or such basis as 

prescribed, in writing, by Owner. Operator will provide an explanation for the numbers used in such 

budgets. Operator shall make available executive personnel to discuss the proposed budget at a minimum 

of one meeting of FORA Board of Directors and other meetings as requested. 

8.2 SUBMISSION OF OTHER REPORTS. When submitting such proposed budgets, Operator shall also 

include: rental rate recommendations with analysis if appropriate; a listing of all capital improvement and all 

repair, maintenance, renovation and replacement expenditures (together with estimated costs for each 

item) anticipated to be made in the upcoming operating period; a payroll analysis including a salary or wage 

description for every on-site employee, including any fringe benefits reimbursable hereunder, of Operator 

whose compensation is reimbursable hereunder; 

8.3 APPROVAL OF BUDGETS. If Operator submits a timely budget recommendation, and Owner does not 

disapprove it in writing before July 1, Operator's proposed budget is deemed approved. If an annual budget 

has not been approved by that date, Operator shall continue to operate the Property under the approved 

budget for the previous year until Operator and Owner can agree on the new budget or the termination of 

this Agreement. 

8.4 COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETS. Approved budgets shall be used by Operator as a guide for the actual 

operation of the Property. Written approval from Owner's Representative shall be required to exceed any 

expense which exceeds the budgeted annual amount for that line item. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any 

increase in a Property expense which does not increase the budgeted amounts for such expense by more 

than 5% and which, when combined with any decreases in budgeted amounts made by Operator, does not 

cause an increase in the overall budget, shall not require approval. 

8.5 SUBJECT TO IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT. Owner and Operator acknowledge that lease revenues 

from the Property are subject to the Implementation Agreement dated May 1, 2001 ("Implementation 

Agreement") by and between FORA and the City of Marina. Operator acknowledges the previous receipt of 

a copy of the Implementation Agreement. Operator shall notify Owner of changed financial conditions to 

allow Owner to determine compliance with the Implementation Agreement. Owner shall indemnify, defend 

and hold Operator, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from any cost, damage, claim, liability, suit, 

cause of action or other legal proceedings which may be brought or claimed against Operator as a result of 

the Implementation Agreement as set forth in this Section 8.5. 

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 RELATIONSHIP. Contracts entered into by Operator with respect to the Property as provided for, and 

consistent with, this Agreement shall be the obligations of Owner. Owner agrees to indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless Operator from any liability or claims arising from such contracts. Operator agrees that to the 

extent Operator deems it necessary or prudent to have separate counsel from that of Owner, Operator shall 

bear all fees, costs, and expenses associated therewith. Operator and Owner shall not be construed as joint 

venturers or partners, and neither shall have the power to bind or obligate the other party except as set 

forth in this Agreement. Operator understands and agrees that the relationship with Owner is that of 

independent contractor working on behalf of Owner and that it will not represent to anyone that its 

relationship to Owner is other than that of independent contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

Operator acknowledges and understands that it is acting as agent of Owner and as such owes Owner the 

duties a reasonable investor would expect if managing his own property. 

9.2 ASSIGNMENT. This agreement shall not be assigned by Operator without the prior written approval 
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of Owner which approval may be withheld in Owner's sole and absolute discretion. 

9.3 BENEFITS AND OBLIGATIONS. Subject to the provisions of Section 9.2 above, the covenants and 

agreements herein contained shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto and their 

respective heirs, executors, successors, and assigns. 

9.4 INDEMNIFICATION. 

9.4.1 Operator shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Owner, its officers, and employees, with 
counsel reasonably satisfactory to Owner, for, from and against any and all liabilities, claims, causes of 
action, losses, demands and expenses whatsoever including, but not limited to attorneys' fees, court costs 
and other litigation expenses and costs arising out of or in connection with the maintenance or operation of 
the Property or this Agreement (collectively the "Claims"), except to the extent arising directly from the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of Owner and the loss of use of property following and resulting from 
damage or destruction. The indemnification by Operator contained in this Section 9.4 is in addition to any 
other indemnification obligations of Operator contained in this Agreement. Owner shall approve the liability 
insurance coverage procured by Operator, and, once approved, Owner shall not be entitled to assert the 
inadequacy, in any respect, of the coverage. Operator's defense and indemnity obligation set forth in this 
Section 9.4.1 shall not apply to Claims that are not covered under the commercial general liability insurance 
policy procured by Operator pursuant to Section 4.2.6.2 of this Agreement unless Operator has engaged in 
gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

9.4.2 Owner shall indemnify Operator (and Operator's affiliates, partners, directors, shareholders, 
officers, employees and agents) with counsel for, from and against any and all Claims which arise out of the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of Owner. 

9.4.3 The indemnification and hold harmless obligations of the parties in this Section 9.4 shall 
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

9.5 NOTICES. All notices provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and served by registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, at the following addresses until such time as written notice of a change of 
address is given to the other party: 

TO OWNER: 

TO OPERATOR: 

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY 
Attention: Executive Officer 
920 2nd Ave., Suite A 
Marina, California 93933 

ALLIANCE Communities, Inc. 
Attn: James M. Krohn 
2415 East Camelback Road, Suite 600 
Phoenix, Arizona 85016 

9.6 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. No alteration, modification, or interpretation of this Agreement shall 
be binding unless in writing and signed by both parties. Titles of articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience only and neither limit nor amplify the provisions of this Agreement. 

9.7 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement or application to any party or circumstances shall 
be determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid and unenforceable to any extent, the 
remainder of this Agreement or the application of such provision to any person or circumstance, other than 
those as to which it is so determined invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each 
provision hereof shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
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9.8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Disputes arising under this agreement shall be resolved as 
follows: 

9.8.1 Prevention of Claims: Meet and confer (10 days) 

The parties agree that they share an interest in preventing misunderstandings that could 
become claims against one another under this agreement. The parties agree to attempt to 
identify and discuss in advance any areas of potential misunderstanding that could lead to a 
dispute. If either party identifies an issue of disagreement, the parties agree to engage in a 
face-to-face discussion of the matter within ten calendar days of the initial written request. If 
the parties are unable to amicably resolve such disagreements or misunderstandings, they 
agree to enlist the informal assistance of a third party (who is mutually acceptable to both 
parties) to help them reach an accord. The cost of engaging any third party for the informal 
assistance described in the preceding sentence shall be shared equally by the parties. If any 
disagreement remains unresolved for ten days after delivery of the written request to engage in 
face-to-face discussions, the parties agree to submit it to mediation in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in Section 9.8.2. 

9.8.2 Mediation (60 days) 

Either party may demand, and shall be entitled to, mediation of any dispute arising under 
this agreement at any time after completing the meet and confer process described in 
subsection (a). Mediation shall commence not more than thirty (30) days after the initial 
mediation demand and must be concluded not more than sixty (60) days after the date of the 
first mediation demand. If mediation is not concluded within that time, then either party may 
demand arbitration. 

Mediation shall be submitted first to a mediator with at least ten years experience in real 
estate management or related field. The mediator shall be selected by mutual agreement of 
the parties. Failing such mutual agreement, a mediator shall be selected by the presiding judge 
of the Monterey County Superior Court. The cost of the mediator shall be shared equally by the 
parties. In the interest of promoting resolution of the dispute, nothing said, done or produced 
by either party at the mediation may be discussed or repeated outside of the mediation or 
offered as evidence in any subsequent proceeding. The parties acknowledge the confidentiality 
of mediation as required by Evidence Code 1152.5. 

No mediator shall submit, and no arbitrator or court shall consider, any mediator 
recommendations, declarations, or findings unless the parties give their written consent to the 
proposed mediator statement. 

9.8.3. Arbitration (90 days) 

If mediation fails to resolve the dispute, the mediator shall become the arbitrator, and shall 
proceed to dispose of the case under such rules or procedures as he or she shall select. If the 
mediator is unable or unwilling to serve as arbitrator, the parties shall select an arbitrator by 
mutual agreement. Failing such agreement, the arbitrator shall be selected by the Presiding 
Judge of the Superior Court. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and not subject to 
judicial litigation. The cost of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties. 
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Arbitration shall be commenced within sixty (60) days of the arbitration demand and 
concluded within ninety (90) days of arbitration demand. 

With respect to monetary disputes only, arbitration shall follow the so-called "baseball 
arbitration" rule in which the arbitrator is required to select an award from among the final 
offers presented by the contending parties. The arbitrator may not render an award that 
compromises between the final offers. 

Unless the arbitrator selects another set of rules, the arbitration shall be conducted under 
the J.A.M.S. Endispute Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures, but not necessarily under 
the auspices of J.A.M.S. Upon mutual agreement, the parties may agree to arbitrate under an 
alternative scheme or statute. The Arbitrator may award damages according to proof. 
Judgment may be entered on the arbitrator's award in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

NOTICE: IN AGREEING TO THE FOREGOING PROVISION, YOU ARE WAIVING YOUR RIGHT 

TO HAVE YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT TRIED IN COURT OF LAW OR EQUITY. THAT 

MEANS YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JUDGE OR JURY. YOU ARE ALSO 

GIVING UP YOUR RIGHT TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THE 

ARBITRATION RULES. IF YOU REFUSE TO ARBITRATE YOUR DISPUTE AFTER A PROPER 

DEMAND FOR ARBITRATION HAS BEEN MADE, YOU CAN BE FORCED TO ARBITRATE OR HAVE 

AN AWARD ENTERED AGAINST YOU BY DEFAULT. YOUR AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE IS 

VOLUNTARY. 

BY INITIALING THIS PROVISION BELOW, THE PARTIES AFFIRM THAT THEY HAVE READ AND 

UNDERSTOOD THE FOREGOING ARBITRATION PROVISIONS AND AGREE TO SUBMIT ANY 

DISPUTES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT TO NEUTRAL BINDING ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED IN 

THIS AGREEMENT. 

ALLIANCE'S' INITIALS ___ _ FORA'S: INITIALS ___ _ 

9.8.4. Attorney's Fees. 

If arbitration or suit is brought to enforce or interpret any part of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover as an element of costs of suit, and not as damages, a 
reasonable attorneys' fee to be fixed by the arbitrator or Court. The "prevailing party" shall be 
the party entitled to recover costs of suit, whether or not the suit proceeds to arbitrator's award 
or judgment. A party not entitled to recover costs shall not recover attorneys' fees. No sum for 
attorneys' fees shall be counted in calculating the amount of an award or judgment for purposes 
of determining whether a party is entitled to recover costs or attorneys' fees. 

If either party initiates litigation without first participating in good faith in the alternative 
forms of dispute resolution specified in this agreement, that party shall not be entitled to 
recover any amount as attorneys' fees or costs of suit even if such entitlement is established by 
statute. 

9.9 APPLICABLE LAW. This agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. Venue shall take place in the County of Monterey, State of California. 

9.10 OPERATOR. The term "Operator" as used in this Agreement shall include any corporate subsidiaries 
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or affiliates of Operator who perform service, in, on or about the Property in connection with this 

Agreement. 

9.11 NON-WAIVER. No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this Agreement, and 

no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right, unless otherwise 

expressly provided in this Agreement. 

9.12 HEADINGS. All headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used to 

interpret or construe its provisions. 

9.13 INTERPRETATION. This Agreement has been negotiated by and between representatives of the 

parties hereto and their staffs, all persons knowledgeable in the subject matter of this Agreement, which 

was then reviewed by the respective legal counsel of each party. Accordingly, any rule of law (including Civil 

Code §1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this Agreement against 

the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this Agreement shall be 

interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose of the parties and this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date and year first above written. 

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY 

Michael A. Houlemard Jr., Executive Officer 

ALLIANCE COMMUNITIES, INC. 

James M. Krohn, Chief Operating Officer 
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EXHIBIT A 
Preston Park Management Agreement 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Manage, direct and supervise using commercially reasonable efforts, all aspects of property management for 
Preston Park which includes, but is not limited to: 

1 Placement of residents in residential apartment homes with appropriate leases and addendums as 
prudent or required by law. 

2 Collect all monthly rents and fees. Institute legal action for the collection of monies owed. Administer 
rent increases in close cooperation with FORA. 

3 Maintain community standards of physical and social environment, while keeping within budget 
guidelines. Respond to requests for maintenance by tenants and FORA promptly. Schedule and conduct 
annual unit inspections and follow-up annual inspections with corrective work where required. 

4 Hire, train and supervise all staff needed to effectively manage the community and provide a description 
of the staffing plan to Owner. Maintain access to multilingual resources to assist with applicants and tenants 
of Limited English Proficiency, said access may be accomplished through a "language hotline' or similar 
service so long as it's responsive to the needs of Owner, applicants and tenants. 

5 Develop and maintain a list of qualified prospective renters. Develop and maintain a list of backup 
renters. Accept applications for apartment homes and maintain eligibility standards. Maintain preference 
lists as specified. Seek to maintain full occupancy with a minimum of vacancies. 

6 Prepare an affirmative fair housing marketing plan. Prepare and circulate marketing materials; e.g. 
advertisements, brochures, displays, disclosure documents, contracts and program web site. Participate in 
community meetings as requested. 

7 Analyze and review financial requirements for operations with Owner; prepare annual budget 
recommendations for Owner. Work within the approved budget; obtain Owner authorization for variances 
from the budget. Analyze and prepare multi-year capital improvements plan and make recommendations to 
Owner about financing and implementation of the plan. 

8 Develop and implement written office procedures; train and supervise office and leasing personnel. 

9 Maintain financial records including, but not limited to, the tracking of receipts and deposits, journal 
entries, bank deposits, accounts payable and accounts receivable. Generate monthly financial reports. 
Prepare required periodic reports to Owner. 

10 Report periodically to Owner to ensure that Owner is properly informed (through regular contact and 
periodic formal meetings) as to the current status of all operations so that the Owner may make proper and 
timely decisions on all strategic matters. 

11 Manage the selection process for outside contractors including landscaping, trash removal, pest control, 
custodial, etc; prepare recommendations for Board approval. Continually inspect property, recording 
deficiencies and taking necessary action within budgetary allocations. 

12 Prepare tenant handbook and circulate written communications to tenants periodically, such as 
quarterly newsletter, in format and content approved by the Owner. Participate in meetings and events with 
tenants as requested. 

13 Explore opportunities for coordination/joint programs with housing developments at California State 
University-Monterey Bay. 

Preston Park Management 16 
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14 Other duties as needed. 
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EXHIBIT B 
Preston Park Management Agreement 

AFFORDABLE RENTAL RATES 

Rates may be established each year. 

Preston Park Management 18 
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EXHIBITC 
Preston Park Management Agreement 

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 

Every year on June 1, Alliance will provide the names of the people associated with the management 
positions as described on the organization chart. 

The Senior Management Team for Preston Park: 
Jill Hammond, Regional Manager 
Steve Keller, Regional Maintenance Supervisor 
Amy Corcoran, Regional Training Manager 
Jennifer Barrett, Regional Marketing Manager 
Annette Thurman, Vice President of Operations 

Jill Hammond, Regional Manager, has an office in Walnut Creek, California. She will be at the communities at 
least two days a week or to the extent mutually agreed upon by Owner and Operator. Corinne will be 
responsible for all compliance training related to the approved below market rate rental program. 

Steve Keller, Regional Maintenance Supervisor, will perform monthly site inspections in addition to 
overseeing any capital projects that require completion. Steve will spend no less than one day per month at 
the community and possibly more depending on the capital project requirements. 

Amy Corcoran and Jennifer Barrett, Regional Training Manager and Regional Marketing Manager, shall 
provide leasing and customer service training and marketing resources. Amy and Jennifer are also available 
on an as needed basis for one-on-one training. 

Annette Thurman, Vice President of Operations, will be at the site no less than once per month. 

The team above is available to meet with FORA as needed. Owner is to provide operator with an annual 
calendar of expected meetings during transition period. 
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EXHIBIT D 
Preston Park Management Agreement 

TENANT GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Note: All resident issues will be resolved within the guidelines set by FORA, Alliance Communities Inc., and 
State and Federal Fair Housing Laws. 

12-15-10 
PRESTON 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

I. Definitions applicable to the grievance procedure 

PARK 

A. Grievance: Any dispute pertaining to a lease violation, maintenance charge or other disagreements 
with respect to Managemenfs action or failure to act in accordance with the individual Tenanfs 
lease or Managemenfs Policies or regulations that adversely affects the individual Tenanfs rights, 
duties, welfare or status. 

B. Elements of due process: An eviction action or a termination of tenancy in a State court in which the 
following procedural safeguards are required: 

1. Adequate notice to the Tenant of the grounds for terminating the tenancy and for eviction; 

2. Right of the Tenant to be represented by counsel; 

3. Opportunity for the Tenant to refute the evidence presented by Management, including the 
right to confront and cross examine witnesses and to present any affirmative legal or equitable 
defense which the Tenant may have; 

4. A decision on the merits of the case. 

C. Hearing Officer: A neutral party selected by FORA to hear grievances and render a decision. FORA 
has selected the Conflict Resolution and Mediation Center of Monterey County to be the Hearing 
Officer for grievances at Preston Park. If the Mediation Center of Monterey County is not available 
for the Grievance Hearing, FORA shall choose another Hearing Officer who is a neutral third party 
not involved in the management decisions at Preston Park and has experience and knowledge of 
management practices and procedures for comparable properties and has experience in mediation. 

D. Tenant: The adult person (or persons other than a live-in aide) who resides in the unit at Preston 
Park and who executed the lease with Alliance Residential or its predecessor(s). 

E. Management: The property management company for Preston Parks is Alliance Residential. 

F. Management Policies: Rules and/or regulations contained within the Tenant's valid and most recent 
lease and any subsequent amendments thereto. 

G. Working days: For the purpose of these procedures, working days means the scheduled working 
days of FORA. 

H. Tenant's designated representative: A person that the Tenant has designated in writing to represent 
him/her in this grievance procedure or a legal document naming a person that represents the 
Tenant in such matters. The written designation along with the address and contact information for 
designated representative shall be placed in the Tenant's file. All correspondence related to this 
grievance procedure shall be distributed to both the Tenant and the designative representative. 
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II. Applicability of this grievance procedure 

The purpose of this Grievance Procedure is to set forth the requirements, standards and criteria to assure 
that Tenants of Preston Parks have a procedure to dispute an act or failure to act by Management (see 
above for definition of grievance). The Grievance Procedure only applies to grievances lodged by Tenants 
who lived at Preston Park at the time the alleged dispute occurred. 

This grievance procedure shall be applicable to all individual grievances (as defined in Section I above) 
between a Tenant and Management. The right to a grievance shall apply to disputes over the application of 
Management's policies to the detriment of a Tenant but shall not apply to the Management policies, class 
action lawsuits or evictions. Management policies may be discussed with the designated FORA staff 
representative. Class action lawsuits and evictions are heard in a court of law and receive due process in that 
manner. 

The grievance procedure may not be used as a forum for initiating or negotiating policy changes between a 
group or groups of tenants and FORA. Such requests may be made to the designated FORA staff 
rep rese ntat ive. 

Ill. Filing a Grievance and Informal Meeting 

Any grievance must be made in writing at the Alliance Residential Management Office, located at 682 Wahl 
Court, Marina, CA 93933, within twenty (20) working calendar days after the grievable event. 

As soon as the grievance is received it will be reviewed by Management to be certain that neither of the 
exclusions in Paragraph II applies to the grievance. Should one of the exclusions apply, the Tenant or 
designated representative will be notified in writing that the matter raised is not subject to this grievance 
procedure, with the reason(s), that the grievance is dismissed and appropriate venue for the Tenant or 
designated representative to contact. 

If neither of the exclusions cited above apply, the Tenant or designated representative will be contacted 
within ten (10) working days to arrange a mutually convenient time to meet so the grievance may be 
discussed informally and resolved. Management will assign a Staff Representative (usually the Business 
Manager) to meet with Tenant or designated representative to discuss the grievance informally and attempt 
to resolve the matter without a further hearing. At this informal meeting the Tenant or designated 
representative will present the grievance and the Staff Representative will attempt to resolve the grievance 
to the satisfaction of both parties. 

Within five (5) working days following the informal meeting, Management shall prepare and either hand 
deliver or mail to the Tenant or designated representative a summary of the discussion that must specify: 
the names of the Tenant(s) and all participants at the meeting, the date(s) of meetings, the nature of the 
grievance, the proposed disposition of the grievance and the specific reasons, and the Tenant's rights to a 
Grievance Hearing, and, if not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, the procedure to either 
respond and have comments placed in the Tenants file or request a Grievance Hearing. A copy of this 
summary shall also be placed in the Tenant's file. A receipt signed by the Tenant or designated 
representative or return receipt for delivery of certified mail, whether signed or unsigned, will be sufficient 
proof of time of delivery for the summary of the informal discussion. 

IV. Grievance Hearing 

If the Tenant is dissatisfied with the proposed disposition of the grievance arrived in the informal meeting, 
the Tenant or designated representative may submit a written request for a Grievance Hearing no later than 
ten (10) working days after the summary of the informal meeting is received. 

A Tenant's request for a Grievance Hearing shall be addressed to the Regional Manager c/o Alliance 
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Residential, 682 Wahl Court, Marina, CA 93933. The written request shall specify: 

• The factual basis for the grievance, including any sections of the Tenant's lease or written 
Management policies allegedly violated; 

• The action of relief sought from Management; and 

• Several dates and times in the following fifteen (15) working days when the Tenant or designated 
representative can attend a grievance hearing. 

If the Tenant or designated representative requests a Grievance Hearing in a timely manner, Management 
shall schedule a hearing on the grievance at the earliest time possible for the Tenant or designated 
representative, Management and the Hearing Officer. A written notice specifying the time, place and 
procedures governing the hearing will be either hand delivered or mailed to the Tenant or designated 
representative. 

If the Tenant or designated representative fails to request a Grievance Hearing within ten (10) working days 
after receiving the proposed disposition of the grievance, Management's decision rendered at the informal 
meeting becomes final and Management is not obligated to offer the Tenant or designated representative a 
Grievance Hearing unless the Tenant or designated representative can show good cause whys/he failed to 
proceed in accordance with the procedure. Failure to request a Grievance Hearing does not affect the 
Tenant's right to contest the Management's decision in court. 

V. Scheduled hearing 

When a or designated representative submits a timely request for a grievance hearing, Management will, 
within three (3) working days, contact the Hearing Officer to schedule the hearing on one of the dates and 
times indicated by the Tenant or designated representative. If the Hearing Officer is not available for one or 
more of the times provided by the Tenant or designated representative during those ten working days, 
Management will schedule a convenient time for the Grievance Hearing for all parties as soon as possible. 

VI. Procedures governing the Grievance Hearing 

The Tenant shall be afforded a fair hearing, which shall include: 

A. The opportunity to examine before the hearing any Management documents, including records and 
regulations, that are directly relevant to the hearing. 

B. The Tenant or designated representative shall be allowed to copy any such documents. If 
Management does not make the document available for examination, Management cannot rely on such 
document at the grievance hearing. 

C. The Tenant may be represented by counsel or other person chosen as the Tenant's representative, at 
the Tenant's expense. Management may be represented by counsel. The Tenant, or the designated 

representative, must be present at the scheduled hearing. 

D. The right to present evidence and arguments in support of the Tenant's complaint and to controvert 

evidence relied on by Management and to confront and cross examine all witnesses upon whose testimony 

or information Management relies; and 

E. A decision based solely and exclusively upon the facts presented at the hearing. 

The hearing shall be conducted informally by the Hearing Officer. Oral or documentary evidence pertinent to 
the facts and issues raised by the Tenant may be received without regard to admissibility under the rules of 
evidence applicable to judicial proceedings provided that such information is the kind of evidence on which 
reasonable persons are accustomed to rely on in the conduct of serious affairs. 
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The Hearing Officer shall require Management, the Tenant or designated representative, counsel and other 
participants to conduct themselves in an orderly fashion. Failure to comply with the directions of the Hearing 
Officer to maintain order may result in exclusion from the proceedings. 

The Hearing Officer will hear evidence provided by both the Tenant or designated representative and 
Management and will review appropriate policies, regulations, lease, etc. 

VII. Failure to appear at the hearing 

If either the Tenant or designated representative or Management fails to appear at the scheduled hearing, 
the Hearing Officer may postpone the hearing for another date not to exceed five (5) working days. In the 
event that Management fails to appear at the re-scheduled hearing, the Hearing Officer shall make his/her 
decision based on the record including anything submitted by the Tenant or designated representative. In 
the event that the Tenant or designated representative fails to appear at the re-scheduled hearing, the 
Tenant is deemed to have waived his/her right to a hearing. 

Both the Tenant or the designated representative and Management shall be notified of the determination by 
the Hearing Officer; provided, that a determination that the Tenant has waived his/her right to a hearing 
shall not constitute a waiver of any right the Tenant may have to contest Management's disposition of the 
grievance in court. 

VIII. Decision of the Hearing Officer 

The Hearing Officer shall prepare a written decision, together with the reasons for the decision within 
fifteen (15) working days after the hearing. Any delay on the part of the Hearing Officer in submitting the 
written decision will not invalidate this process. A copy of the decision shall be sent to the Tenant or 
designated representative, Management and FORA. Management shall retain a copy of the decision in the 
Tenant's folder. 

The decision of the Hearing Officer shall be binding on Management, which shall take all actions, or refrain 
from actions, necessary to carry out the decision unless FORA determines within ten (10) working days after 
receiving the written decision, and promptly notifies the Tenant or the designated representative of its 
determination that: 

A. The grievance does not involve Management's action or failure to act in accordance with the 
Tenant's lease or the property's policies, which adversely affect the Tenant's rights, duties, welfare or status. 

B. The decision of the Hearing Officer is contrary to applicable Federal, State or local law or FORA 

policy or regulation. 

A decision by the Hearing Officer or FORA which denies the relief requested by the Tenant in whole or in part 
shall not constitute a waiver of, nor affect in any way, the rights of the Tenant to judicial review in any court 
proceedings which may be brought in the matter later. 

This Grievance Procedure does not preclude the Tenant from exercising his/her rights, including those rights 
pertaining to alleged discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, disability, sexual 
orientation, familial or marital status, ancestry or national origin. 

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of this Grievance Procedure. 

Signed by Date 

Print Name Address 
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WELCOME 
Welcome to Preston Park, professionally managed by Alliance Residential Company! 

Emergencies 

Call911. for Life. Threatening Emergencies 

Call {831) 3 84""0 119 to. reach the· 24-Hour Answering· Service 

Contact Us 

Address: 682 Wahl Court 

Marina, CA 93933 

Phone/Fax: (831)384-0119 I (831)384-0213 

Email: prestonpark@allresco .com 

Webpage: www .liveatprestonpark.com 

Hours of Operation: M-F 8AM-6PM 

Sat 8AM-5PM 

Sun Closed 

Rent Payments 

Rent is due on the first (1st) of each month and is considered late after 6 pm on the fifth (5th) of each 

month. If the monthly payment is not paid by the fifth (5th), a late fee of$50.00 will apply. In addition to a 

$25.00 handling fee, an accrued late charge will be collected on any bank returned check. After receipt of 

two (2) checks that are returned for non-payment during the term of the Lease, future rent payments shall 

only be made by cashier's check. 

Payments can be made by personal check, cashier's check, bank draft, or credit card. Payments will be 

accepted in the leasing office, or via our online service at MyAllianceAdvantage.com. An after-hours 

drop box is available for your convenience. 
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Maintenance Services 

In order to submit a service request for any maintenance related issue (broken appliances, plumbing, 

electrical, pest control, etc.) please contact the leasing office or submit your request online through our 

resident portal at MyAllianceAdvantage.com. It is extremely helpful to provide specific details about the 

issue (exact location, frequency, etc.) when you report it to our staff. Please be prepared to grant 

permission for us to enter your home if you planning to not be present while repairs are made. If you have 

any questions/concerns regarding the status of a service request please feel free to contact the office at 

(831) 384-0119. 

Emergency Maintenance Issues 

It is important that you are aware of the differences between an emergency and non-emergency service 

request. While our staff members understand something may appear a crisis for you, your roommates, 

and/or family members, only the following issues constitute an emergency in terms of mobilizing 

maintenance staff after business hours: 

• Fire 

• Flood (in a room and/or house)/ Excessive Moisture Intrusion 

• Gas Smell 

• No Water or no Hot Water 

• No Electricity or Electrical Shortage 

• Sewer Back-Up 

• Smoke Detector/Carbon Monoxide Detector Malfunctioning 

• Broken or non-working doors, locks, windows, or other security-related problems due to 

burglary, vandalism, or personal assault 

• No heat (when outside temperatures are below 55°) 

• Non functioning toilet 

• Refrigerator not working 

• Exterior lighting malfunctions 

• Improperly functioning fire or life safety devices 
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For all life threatening emergencies please call 911 first and take appropriate safety precautions. Our 

answering service personnel are reachable 24-hours a day by calling (831) 384-0119, and will inform our 

on call maintenance technician of the emergency situation in your home. Please be sure to provide your 

address, a good contact number to reach you at and a detailed description of your emergency. 

Landscaping 

Proper landscaping makes our community a more enjoyable place to live. The community maintains a 

contract for Landscaping Services that includes mowing of grass, trimming of bushes, and leaf removal, 

however residents are encouraged to take an active role in shaping their immediate surroundings. While 

residents are responsible for payment of the water usage for irrigation of the landscaping, the irrigation 

system will be controlled by maintenance staff. Please contact the Leasing Office if you experience a 

spike in your water bill that might be attributed to an irrigation malfunction. 

We are proud to allow pets within our community, however they require proper care and responsibility on 

the part of residents. Please note that pets are not allowed without the prior consent of the Leasing Office 

which must be obtained by providing a $250 Pet Deposit, veterinary documents, and by completing a Pet 

Information Packet. 

Please see the following restrictions regarding pets: 

1. Households are limited to 2 pets pet home and all animals must have all required vaccinations 

and/or licenses. 

2. Dogs must be on a leash at all times when outside of a gated back yard. Residents must control 

their animal while out in the community and within their homes. Noise disturbances caused by 

pets will be addressed by the Leasing Office and may result in removal of the animal from the 

property. 

3. Residents are responsible to remove pet waste cause by their animals within their yards and 

throughout the community. Pet waste stations are located at each park/playground and at various 

other locations to assist residents. 

4. Residents must comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations and laws governing pets. 

Including but, not limited to the following listed below: 

a. All pets must be Spayed/Neutered. 

b. Birds shall not be let out of cages. 
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c. Dangerous, illegal, exotic or poisonous animals are not permitted on the premises. 

Residents are not allowed to keep endangered species. 

d. Resident shall remove from the property any animal that has exhibited any sign of 

aggressive behavior or aggressive tendencies towards any person or animal. 

e. Pure bred and/or any mixed form of the following breeds are restricted: Alaskan 

Malamute, Boxer, Chow Chow, Dalmatian, Doberman Pinscher, German Sheppard, 

Husky breeds, Pitbull breeds, Presa Canaries, and Rottweilers. 

Vehicles/Parking 

Please limit your speed within the community to 10-20 m.p.h. Please use your garage and driveway to 

park your vehicles and use any available street parking. Unsightly cars (such as cars with flats, broken 

windows, etc.), any recreational vehicles, boats, vehicles without a current displayed registration and 

commercial purpose vehicles will not be permitted in or around the premises and will be towed at owner's 

expense. Residents may wash their vehicles in their designated driveway only. Parking on the grass is not 

permitted at any time. 

Courtesy/Quiet Hours 

Quiet hours are considered to be between 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. It is our expectation that residents honor the 

requests of the community concerning noise levels, even when it is not scheduled quiet hours. If you 

experience a problem with noise, you are encouraged to contact the office in writing. 

Littering 

Litter is prohibited. As a resident in this community, it is your responsibility to dispose of personal trash 

by using receptacles provided by Waste Management. Leaving or distributing trash in common areas or 

locations not designated for waste disposal is subject to violation notices and applicable removal/cleaning 

charges; this includes large items such as furniture or electronics, and small items such as cigarette butts 

and garbage. 

Trash Cans 

No garbage or recycling receptacles may be stored in front or alongside of any Resident's unit. Residents 

may not put garbage cans and/or recycling receptacles out at the curb before 5 pm the evening before 

scheduled pick-up. All receptacles must be returned by residents to their garage no later than 5 pm on the 

day following pick up. Friday is the scheduled pick up day (outside of regulated holidays). Residents are 
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encouraged to set up alternate arrangements to set or remove their trash cans from curbside should they be 

out of town. 

Annual Inspections 

Annual Inspections take place once per year are designed to address the following: 

• Change batteries located within thermostats, smoke detectors, and carbon monoxide detectors. 

• Change heater filters and range hood filters 

• Lubricate garage door wheels/springs and door locks 

• Inspection of wearable items within each home (flooring, appliances, windows/doors, etc.) 

Community/Business Center 

Preston Park offers a Community Center and Business Center available to all residents for use. 

The Community Center hours are 5:30PM- I O:OOPM Monday through Friday, and 8:00AM -I O:OOPM 

Saturdays. No use is permitted on Sundays. Reservations for the Community Center must be made with 

the Leasing office in writing by signing the Community Center Lease Agreement. 

The Business Center is available for use during Leasing Office hours only (Monday- Friday 8:00AM-

6:00PM, Sat 8:00AM- 5:00PM). The Business Center will not be available for use if a previously 

scheduled function is taking place in the Community Center. 

Bulletin Boards/Social Media 

Preston Park offers bulletin boards at each cul-de-sac in order to allow residents and Management to post 

informational items for all residents to view. Please contact the Leasing Office if you would like to post 

your items within the Bulletin Boards. 

Preston Park also offers virtual Social Media Bulletin Boards that serve a similar function within the 

MyAllianceAdvantage.com portal. Once registered for this service, you may post informational text for 

other registered residents to view and respond to. 

Preston Park is on Facebook! "Like" our page in order to receive electronic updates on community 

developments, announcements, functions, and other informational items. 

Tenants Association 
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The Preston Park and Abrams Park Tenants Association (PPAPTA) holds meetings within the 

Community Center to discuss items of concerns to residents and works in conjunction with Management 

on the properties' budgets. Please visit the Leasing Office or the community Bulletin Boards to obtain 

contact information for the Tenants Association. 

Grievance Policy 

A Grievance Policy is in place should your household experience a grievance while residing within the 

community. Please refer to your Lease Agreement for more information. 

BMRProgram 

Preston Park offers a Below Market Rental program to households that qualify within certain income and 

household size restrictions. For more information on program limitations or to obtain a waitlist 

application, please contact the Leasing Office. 

Annual Verification of Income for Affordable Units 

Households that qualify for the Below Market Rental program are subject to an Annual Verification of 

Income. You will be contacted up to 60 days in advance of your Recertification Date to confirm your 

continued eligibility for this program. 

Reporting Changes between Regularly Scheduled Eligibility Verifications for Affordable Units 

If any of the following changes occurs, please contact the Leasing Office immediately: 

A. Any increase or decrease in household size; 

B. An adult member of the household who was reported as unemployed on the most recent certification or 

re-certification obtains employment; or 

C. The household's income increases by more than $200.00 per month. 

Leaving the Community 

Planning to leave the community? Please see the information below regarding the proper procedure for 

terminating or changing your Lease Agreement. 

1) 30- Day Notice to Vacate: If all household members are leaving the community, a written notice 

indicating intention to leave must be received a minimum of 30 days prior to the termination of 

the lease agreement. All leaseholders will be required to sign the Move-Out Packet and will be 

required to pay rent up until the notice is fulfilled. 
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2) Roommate Release: If a residence will be experiencing a change in roommates while continuing 

residency within the community, a 30-Day Notice to Vacate is not necessary. Please contact our 

Leasing Office for further details on how to begin the Roommate Release process. 
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Subject: 
Consider Concurrence in the 2010 Monterey County General Plan 
Consisten Determination 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
Agenda Number: 8b ACTION 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve Resolution 14-XX (Attachment A), concurring in the County of Monterey's 
(County) legislative land use determination that the 2010 Monterey County General 
Plan (General Plan) is consistent with the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan (BRP). 

OTHER OPTIONS: 

I. Per FORA Master Resolution section 8.01.020( e), approve Resolution 14-XX 
(Attachment B), refusing certification of the General Plan until the FORA Board's 
suggested modifications (included in this resolution) are adopted and transmitted to 
the FORA Board by the County. If the County adopts such modifications, and the 
Executive Officer confirms such modifications have been made, the General Plan 
shall be deemed certified. 

II. Refuse certification of the General Plan. Such action results in the Monterey 
County 2001 General Plan amendment, found consistent by the FORA Board on 
January 18, 2002, remaining in effect for County Fort Ord lands. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County submitted the General Plan for consistency determination on September 24, 
2013 (Attachment C). Attachment C includes a link to the County of Monterey's 
website where documents related to the 2010 Monterey County General Plan 
consistency determination submittal can be obtained electronically. This link is: 
http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/planning/gpu/GPU 2007/2010 Mo Co General Plan Ad 
opted 102610/2010 Mo Co General Plan Adopted 10261 O.htm At the October 11, 
2013 Board meeting, several Board members raised concerns that a hard copy of the 
2010 Monterey County General Plan consistency determination submittal was not 
included in the packet. The FORA Executive Committee previously established a policy 
directing staff to make large documents available on the internet in lieu of including 
voluminous pages in FORA Board packets. If any Board member finds this difficult, 
please contact staff to address the concern. 

With its submittal for concurrence, the County requested a Legislative Land Use 
Decision review of the General Plan in accordance with section 8.02.010 of the Fort Ord 
Reuse Authority (FORA) Master Resolution. Under state law, (as codified in FORA's 
Master Resolution) legislative land use decisions (plan level documents such as General 
Plans, Zoning Codes, General Plans, Redevelopment Plans, etc.) must be scheduled for 
FORA Board review for consideration of concurrence under strict timeframes. This item 
is included on the Board agenda because the General Plan is a legislative land use 
decision, requiring Board approval. 

http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/planning/gpu/GPU_2007/2010_Mo_Co_General_Plan_Adopted_102610/2010_Mo_Co_General_plan_Adopted_102610.htm
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The FORA Administrative Committee reviewed this item on October 2nd and October 
30th, 2013. 

At the October 30th FORA Administrative Committee meeting, County representatives 
addressed each of the issues that were surfaced by the two letters received earlier that 
month, and then also reviewed their own response letter that had been sent to the 
Administrative Committee. Staff described the Board report that was prepared and 
noted the individual meetings between the County and FORA Staff/Counsel leading up 
to the County letter addressing the issues in the late arriving correspondence. The 
Administrative Committee asked that the issues be addressed by counsel and outlined 
for the FORA Board at its meeting on November 8th. 

FORA Special Counsel Alan Waltner's response memorandum is included in 
Attachment D to this report, outlining how his previous memoranda addressed issues 
raised in recent comment letters and reiterating those points. 

Update: At its January 2, 2014 meeting, the Administrative Committee heard a 
report from FORA staff, heard comments from member of the public Jane Haines, 
and heard comments from County of Monterey Senior Planner John Ford. The 
Committee passed a motion to sustain its previous recommendation that the 
FORA Board concur in the County's determination that the 2010 Monterey County 
General Plan is consistent with the BRP. 

DISCUSSION: 

County staff will be available to provide additional information to the FORA Board on 
January 10, 2014. In all consistency determinations, the following additional 
considerations are made, and summarized in table form (Attachment E). 

Rationale for consistency determinations FORA staff finds that there are several 
defensible rationales for making an affirmative consistency determination. Sometimes 
additional information is provided to buttress those conclusions. In general, it is noted 
that the BRP is a framework for development, not a precise plan to be mirrored. 
However, there are thresholds set in the resource constrained BRP that may not be 
exceeded without other actions, most notably 6,160 new residential housing units and a 
finite water allocation. More particularly, the rationales for consistency analyzed are: 

LEGISLATIVE LAND USE DECISION CONSISTENCY FROM SECTION 8.02.010 
OF THE FORA MASTER RESOLUTION 

(a) In the review, evaluation, and determination of consistency regarding legislative land 
use decisions, the Authority Board shall disapprove any legislative land use decision for 
which there is substantial evidence support by the record. that: 
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(1) Provides a land use designation that allows more intense land uses than the uses 
permitted in the Reuse Plan for the affected territory; 

The General Plan would not establish a land use designation that is more intense than 
the uses permitted in the BRP. Compared to the 1997 BRP, the General Plan 
increases the amount of habitat within the County's jurisdiction by 246.7 acres as a 
result of the December 20, 2005 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) among the 
County, Monterey Peninsula College (MPC), FORA, the Bureau of Land Management 
(BLM), and U.S. Army, which swapped land uses between East Garrison and Parker 
Flats areas of the former Fort Ord. The result of the MOU is that an additional 210 
acres are available for development in East Garrison in exchange for the preservation of 
approximately 447 additional habitat acres in Parker Flats. Also, the MOU added 
additional habitat acres next to the Military Operations Urban Terrain (MOUT) facility 
and provides for MPC to relocate a planned public safety officer training facility from the 
East Garrison area to the Parker Flats area. The County, FORA, and MPC entered into 
an October 21, 2002 agreement entitled "Agreement Regarding Public Safety Officer 
Training Facilities," which further describes relocation of MPC's planned facilities from 
the East Garrison area to the Parker Flats area. 

(2) Provides for a development more dense than the density of uses permitted in the 
Reuse Plan for the affected territory; 

No increase in density would be permitted by the General Plan. 

(3) Is not in substantial conformance with applicable programs specified in the Reuse 
Plan and Section B. 02.020 of this Master Resolution; 

The General Plan is in substantial conformance with applicable programs. FORA staff 
notes that a member of the public and representatives of the Ventana Chapter of the 
Sierra Club, Keep Fort Ord Wild, the Open Monterey Project, and LandWatch Monterey 
County provided correspondence at the August 27 and September 17, 2013 Monterey 
County Board of Supervisors hearings pertaining to consistency between the 201 0 
Monterey County General Plan 1997 BRP. In summary, these individual letters 
requested that the Monterey County Board of Supervisors not adopt the consistency 
finding, citing instances of incomplete policies and programs and other issues. FORA 
staff concurs with Exhibit 1 to Monterey County Board of Supervisors Order 13-0952/ 
Resolution No. 13-307 page 5 of 13 that: 

Some but not all of the policies programs have been implemented. 
Implementation efforts are currently underway. Implementation of the Base 
Reuse Plan policies is a separate measure from Consistency with the Base 
Reuse Plan. 

Special legal counsel Alan Waltner's September 3, 2013 memorandum further stated 
that "FORA's procedures for determining consistency correctly interpret and apply the 
FORA Authority Act, Government Code Sections 67650-67700 and the FORA Master 
Resolution." 
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Comment letters from the Ventana Chapter of the Sierra Club and member of the public 
Jane Haines are included in Attachment F. 

County staff submitted an October 23, 2013 letter (Attachment G) providing additional 
analysis on concerns raised in recent comment letters and how these concerns are 
addressed. 

( 4) Provides uses which conflict or are incompatible with uses permitted or allowed in 
the Reuse Plan for the affected property or which conflict or are incompatible with open 
space, recreational, or habitat management areas within the jurisdiction of the Authority; 

The General Plan is compatible with open space, recreational, and habitat management 
areas. 

(5) Does not require or otherwise provide for the financing and/or installation, 
construction, and maintenance of all infrastructure necessary to provide adequate public 
services to the property covered by the legislative land use decision; 

County development within the former Fort Ord that is affected by the General Plan will 
pay its fair share of the basewide costs through the FORA Community Facilities District 
special tax and property taxes that will accrue to FORA, as well as land sales revenues. 
This is evidenced in Exhibit 1 to Monterey County Board of Supervisors Order 13-
0952/Resolution No. 13-307 page 6 of 13 and the May 8, 2001 Implementation 
Agreement between FORA and County of Monterey. 

(6) Does not require or otherwise provide for implementation of the Fort Ord Habitat 
Management Plan; 

The Fort Ord Habitat Management Plan (HMP) designates certain parcels for 
"Development," in order to allow economic recovery through development while 
promoting preservation, enhancement, and restoration of special status plant and 
animal species in designated habitats. The General Plan affects lands that are located 
within areas designated for "Habitat Reserve," "Habitat Corridor," "Development with 
Reserve Areas and Restrictions," and "Development with no Restrictions" under the 
HMP. Lands designated as "Development with no Restrictions" have no management 
restrictions placed upon them as a result of the HMP. The General Plan requires 
implementation of the Fort Ord HMP. 

(7) Is not consistent with the Highway 1 Design Corridor Design Guidelines as such 
guidelines may be developed and approved by the Authority Board; and 

The General Plan would not modify Highway 1 Design Corridor Design Guidelines. 
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(8) Is not consistent with the jobs/housing balance requirements developed and 
approved by the Authority Board as provided in Section 8.02.020(t) of this Master 
Resolution. 

The General Plan is consistent with the jobs/housing balance approved by the FORA 
Board. 

Additional Considerations 

(9) Is not consistent with FORA's prevailing wage policv. section 3.03.090 of the FORA 
Master Resolution. 

The General Plan does not modify pr~v · ing wage requirements for future development 
entitlements within the County's juris ·c ·on on former Fort Ord. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller--+------,. 

( 

This action is regulatory in nature and should have no direct fiscal, administrative, or 
operational impact. In addition to points already dealt with in this report, it is clarified 
that the developments expected to be engaged in reuse subject to the General Plan are 
covered by the Community Facilities District or other agreement that ensure a fair share 
payment of appropriate future special taxes/fees to mitigate for impacts delineated in 
the 1997 BRP and accompanying Environmental Impact Report. The County has 
agreed to provisions for payment of all required fees for future developments in the 
former Fort Ord under its jurisdiction. 

Staff time related to this item is included in FORA's annual budget. 

COORDINATION: 

The County, Planners Working Group, Administrative Committee, and Executive 
Committee 

Prepared by ~~Reviewed by J)S-\e.PJ ~ 
IJOnathirlGarcia Steve ErldSieY 

Approved by ~· S~ ~ +,c 
'-- ichael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Resolution 14-XX 

Attachment A to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 

Determining Consistency of the 2010 ) 
Monterey County General Plan ) 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 

A. On June 13, 1997, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) adopted the Final Fort Ord 
Base Reuse Plan (the "Reuse Plan") under Government Code Section 67675, et seq. 

B. The Reuse Plan requires each county or city wit 
FORA its general plan or amended general pia 
project entitlements, and legislative land 

former Fort Ord to submit to 
ning ordinances, and to submit 

s that satisfy the statutory 
requirements. 

C. By Resolution No. 98-1, the FORA 8 
implementing the requirements set fo 

D. The County of Monterey ( 
authority over land situate 
jurisdiction. 

E. After a noticed p 
Monterey Coun 
After noticed p 
determined the 
policies and the 
Repo 

licies and procedures 

has land use 
subject to FORA's 

County adopted the 2010 
ds on the former Fort Ord. 

3 ptember 17, 2013, the County 
t with the Reuse Plan, FORA's plans and 

'""~···:'"""" the Reuse Plan Environmental Impact 

F. 0 unty mended that FORA concur in the County's 
and the General Plan are consistent. The County 

her with accompanying documentation. 

G. Consistent tation Agreement between FORA and the County, on 
September 24, nty provided FORA with a complete copy of the submittal 
for lands on the Ord, the resolutions and/or ordinance approving it, a staff 
report and materia tng to the County's action, a reference to the environmental 
documentation and/or CEQA findings, and findings with supporting evidence of its 
determination that the General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan and the FORA 
Act (collectively, "Supporting Material"). The County requested that FORA concur in 
the County's determination that the General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan for 
those portions of County land that lie within the jurisdiction of FORA. 

H. FORA's Executive Officer and the FORA Administrative Committee reviewed and 
evaluated the County's application and Supporting Materials for consistency. The 
Executive Officer submitted a report recommending that the FORA Board find that the 
General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan. The Administrative Committee 
reviewed the supporting material, received additional information, and concurred with 

1 
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the Executive Officer's recommendation. The Executive Officer and the FORA 
Executive Committee then set the matter for public hearing before the FORA Board on 
October 11, 2013. The October 11, 2013 hearing was continued to November 8, 2013. 
The November 8, 2013 hearing was then continued to January 10, 2014. 

I. Master Resolution, Chapter 8, Section 8.02.01 O(a) states: "In the review, evaluation, 
and determination of consistency regarding legislative land use decisions, the Authority 
Board shall disapprove any legislative land use decision for which there is substantial 
evidence supported by the record, that: 

( 1) Provides a land use designation that allows more intense land uses than the 
uses permitted in the Reuse Plan for the affected territory; 

(2) Provides a development more dense than ensity of use permitted in the 
Reuse Plan for the affected territory; 

(3) Is not in substantial conformance wi ble programs specified in the 
Reuse Plan and Section 8.02.020 of solution; 

( 4) Provides uses which conflict o e with uses permitted or 
allowed in the Reuse Plan for or which conflict or are 
incompatible with open spa management areas 
within the jurisdiction of the A 

(5) Does not require or otherwise 
construction, and 
adequate public se 
decision; and 

(6) Does not 
Habitat M 

J. stent with the Reuse Plan, the 
to the six criteria described in 

K. efined in the General Plan Guidelines 

L. 
evidence exis 
applicable progra 

Ianning Research as follows: "An action, program, 
eral plan if, considering all its aspects, it will further 

era I plan and not obstruct their attainment." 

ination must be based upon its finding that substantial 
General Plan to be in substantial conformance with the 
use Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved: 

(1) The FORA Board acknowledges the County's recommendations and actions of 
August 27, 2013, September 17, 2013 and September 24, 2013 that the FORA 
Board concur in the County's determination that the General Plan and the Reuse 
Plan are consistent. 

(2) The FORA Board has reviewed and considered the EIR and the County's 
environmental documentation, and finds that these documents provide substantial 

2 
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additional information for purposes of FORA's determination that the General Plan 
and the Reuse Plan are consistent. 

(3) The FORA Board has considered all the materials submitted with this application 
for a consistency determination, the recommendations of the Executive Officer and 
the Administrative Committee, and the oral and written testimony presented at the 
hearings, all of which are hereby incorporated by reference. 

( 4) The FORA Board finds that the General Plan is consistent with the Base Reuse 
Plan. The FORA Board further finds that its legislative decision is based in part 
upon the substantial evidence submitted regarding allowable land uses, a weighing 
of the Reuse Plan's emphasis on a resource ined sustainable reuse that 
evidences a balance between jobs created using provided, and that the 
cumulative land uses contained in the Cou mittal are not more intense or 
dense than those contained in the Reuse 

(5) The General Plan will, considering 
of the Reuse Plan. The County 
requirements of Title 7.85 of the Go 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., Secretary 

3 

e objectives and policies 
rmined to satisfy the 

Plan. 

y the foregoing 
ry, 2014, by the following vote: 

Jerry Edelen, Chair 
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Resolution 14-XX 

Denial of certification of the 201 0 ) 
Monterey County General Plan ) 
Until suggested modifications are ) 
Adopted and submitted ) 

Attachment 8 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted with reference to the following fa nd circumstances: 

A. On June 13, 1997, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (F 
Reuse Plan (the "Reuse Plan") under Government 

dopted the Final Base 
n 67675, et seq. 

B. The Reuse Plan requires each county or city 
FORA its general plan or amended general 
project entitlements, and legislative lan 

rt Ord to submit to 
s, and to submit 

the statutory 
requirements. 

C. By Resolution No. 98-1, the Authority Boa 
implementing the requirements forth in the 

D. The County of Monterey (Cou 
authority over land situated 
jurisdiction. 

E. After a noticed 
Monterey Co 
After noticed 
determined the 
policie. d the 
Re 

. The County has land use 
and subject to FORA's 

26, 201 , the County adopted the 2010 
n), affecting lands on the former Fort Ord. 
2013 and September 17, 2013 the County 

with the Reuse Plan, FORA's plans and 
the Reuse Plan Environmental Impact 

F. unty recommended that FORA concur in the County's 
n and the General Plan are consistent. The County 

I an together with accompanying documentation. 

G. Consi ementation Agreement between FORA and the County, on 
Septem County provided FORA with a complete copy of the submittal 
for lands on r Fort Ord, the resolutions and/or ordinance approving it, a staff 
report and rna relating to the County's action, a reference to the environmental 
documentation and/or CEQA findings, and findings and supporting evidence of its 
determination that the General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan and the FORA 
Act (collectively, "Supporting Material"). The County requested that FORA concur in 
County's determination that the General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan for 
those portions of the County that lie within the jurisdiction of FORA. 

H. FORA's Executive Officer and the FORA Administrative Committee reviewed and 
evaluated the County's application and Supporting Materials for consistency. The 
Executive Officer submitted a report recommending that the FORA Board find that the 

1 
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General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan. The Administrative Committee 
reviewed the Supporting Material, received additional information, and concurred with 
the Executive Officer's recommendation. The Executive Officer and the FORA 
Executive Committee set the matter for public hearing before the FORA Board on 
October 11, 2013. The October 11, 2013 hearing was continued to November 8, 2013. 
The November 8, 2013 hearing was then continued to January 1 0, 2014. 

I. Master Resolution, Chapter 8, Section 8.01.020(e) reads in part: "(e) In the event the 
Authority Board refuses to certify the legislative land use decision in whole or in part, 
the Authority Board's resolution making findings shall incl uggested modifications 
which, if adopted and transmitted to the Authority Bo the affected land use 
agency, will allow the legislative land use decision to ed. If such modifications 
are adopted by the affected land use agency as su nd the Executive Officer 
confirms such modifications have been made, the I use decision shall be 
deemed certified ... " 

J. Master Resolution, Chapter 8, Section 8. 
evaluation, and determination of cons 

In the review, 
decisions, 

K. 

the Authority Board shall disapprove any 
substantial evidence supported by the reco 
or are incompatible with uses itted or all 
property ... " 

General Plan Guidelines 
ows: "An action, program, 

all its aspects, it will further 
bstruct their attainment." 

L. FORA's con based upon its finding that substantial 
be in substantial conformance with the 

NO 

dges the County's recommendations and actions of 
mber 17, 2013 and September 24, 2013 that the FORA 

unty's determination that the General Plan and the Reuse 

2. ard has reviewed and considered the EIR and the County's 
environmental documentation, and finds that these documents provide substantial 
additional information for purposes of FORA's determination that the General Plan 
and the Reuse Plan are consistent. 

3. The FORA Board has considered all the materials submitted with this application 
for a consistency determination, the recommendations of the Executive Officer and 
Administrative Committee and the oral and written testimony presented at the 
hearings, all of which are hereby incorporated by reference. 

2 
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4. The FORA Board denies certification of the General Plan until the following policies 
and programs are adopted in the Fort Ord Master Plan component of the General 
Plan as currently included in the Reuse Plan EIR: Recreation/Open Space Land 
Use (ROLU) Policy A-1, ROLU Program A-1.2, Hydrology and Water Quality 
(HWQ) Policy B-1, HWQ Programs B-1.1 through 8-1.7, HWQ C-6.1, Biological 
Resources (BR) Policy C-2, BR Programs C-2.1, C-2.2, C-2.3, and C-2.5. 

5. If such modifications are adopted by the County as suggested, and the Executive 
Officer confirms such modifications have been made, the General Plan shall be 
deemed consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

Upon motion by , se foregoing 
Resolution was passed on this 1Oth day of Jan 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT: 

Jerry Edelen, Chair 

3 
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Planning Department 
Mike Novo, AICP, Director of Planning 

Jonathan Garcia, Senior Planner 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
920 2nd Ave., Suite A 
Marina, CA 93933 

Attachment C to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

' Salinas, CA 93901 
(831) 755-5025 

Fax: (831) 757-9516 
Y.lwvv.co.monterey.ca.us/rma 

September 24, 2013 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR FORA CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION ON THE 
2010 MONTEREY COUNTY GENERAL PLAN PURSUANT TO FORA MASTER 
RESOLUTION, ARTICLE 8.01.020 

Dear Mr. Garcia, 

On October 26, 201 0 the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey adopted a 
comprehensive General Plan update (2010 General Plan) (Resolution 10-291). The 2010 General 
Plan no-vv governs the future physical development of the unincorporated areas of the County of 
Monterey, excluding the Coastal Areas, but including most of the Former Fort Ord. As it relates 
to property in the territory of the Authority to the Executive Officer, the 2010 General Plan 
contains the Fort Ord Master Plan (in Chapter 9-E). The Fort Ord Master Plan is essentially the 
same as the 2001 Fort Ord Master Plan that was adopted by the County and found consistent by 
the Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board on January 18, 2002 (FORA Resolution #02-3) -vvith some 
minor updates and amendments including: 

• Recognition of the Land ·Swap Agreement 
• Re-insertion of policies missing from the 2001 plan; and 
• Updates to policies regarding the landfill parcel, East Garrision, and the York Road 

Planning area to reflect more recent events. 

In February of2012, the County submitted a package, with a formal request for a consistency 
determination to the Fort Ord Reuse Authority. That package included 1 hard copy and 5 CD's 
with the following documents and information: 

• Attachment 1 -The adopted 2010 General Plan 
• Attachment 2 - CEQA documents including: 

a. Draft EIR 
b. Final EIR; and 
c. Supplemental Information to the FEIR 

• Attachment 3- Reports and Resolutions 
a. Planning Commission Staff Report and Resolution from August 11, 2010 
b. Board of Supervisors Staff Report and Resolutions (1 0-290 and 10-291) 
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2010 Monterey County General Plan FORA Consistency 
Page 2 of3 

• Attachment 4 - Fort Ord Master Plan redline version showing changes to text from the 
previously adopted and certified County version of the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan. 

• Attachment 5 - Consistency Analysis 

The County's consistency determination request was placed on hold while the County processed 
the consistency findings and certification required by the FORA Master Resolution. Between the 
time of the original submittal and the submittal of this information, the County has amended the 
2010 General Plan three times. Because of these amendments, the County would like to ensure 
that FORA is working with, and considering consistency of, the most recent version of the 
General Plan. The updated sections of the General Plan along with the EIR Addendums prepared 
for those amendments are included in this revised submittal. In total, this revised submittal 
contains the following documents and information: 

• Amendments to Attachment 1 (The 2010 General Plan)-
o Updated Caa.~el Valley 11aster Plan Chapter (Chapter 9-B of the General Plan) 
o Updated Public Services Chapter (Chapter 5 of the General Plan) 

These replace the chapters in the previously submitted General Plan. Note: The third 
amendment involved a land use designation change on a parcel in southern Monterey 
County and did not have any effect on Fort Ord Territory. 

• Additions to Attachment 2 (CEQA Documents)- Addendums to the General Plan EIR 
were prepared for the General Plan amendments listed above. 

o Addendum 1- (For Amendment to Chapter 5 of2010 General Plan) 
o Addendum 2- (for Amendment to Carmel Valley Master Plan) 
0 

• Additions to Attachment 3 (Reports and Resolutions) - Two new Board of 
Supervisors Board Reports and Resolutions certifying that the 2010 General Plan is 
consistent with the Base Reuse Plan: 

o September 17, 2013 Board Report and Resolution affirming and updating the 
August 27, 2013 decision (Resolution# 13-0952) 

o August 27, 2013 Board Report and Resolution (Resolution# 13-0290) 
o Board Report for September 17, 2013 Public Hearing 

• Amended Attachment 5 (Consistency Analysis)- A new and updated consistency 
analysis was attached to the August 27 and September 17 Board Resolutions. That 
analysis is the same in both reports. 

• New Attachment 6 (Public Comment)- New comments and correspondence received 
on for the August 27 and September 17 Board of Supervisors hearing on the consistency 
certification. 

o Letter from Sierra Club - V entana Chapter- September 16, 2013 
o Letter from Law Offices of Michael Stamp - September 17, 2013 
o Letter from Jane Haines --September 16, 2013 
o Letter from Jane Hainse- August 26, 2013 
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2010 Monterey County General Plan FORA Consistency 
Page 3 of3 

o Letter from MR Wolfe- August 26, 2013 (Attachement D of September 17,2013 
Board Report. 

As was the case with the first, submitted with this letter is one hard copy and 5 CD' s with the 
updated information listed above. All of the documents from the original submittal and the 
updated submittal can be found by following the link below: 

www.co.monterey.ca.us/planning/gpu/GPU 2007/2010 Mo Co General Plan Adopted 10261 
0/2010 Mo Co General Plan Adopted 102610.htm 

This link will take you to the page for the 2010 General Plan, which provides links to the EIR 
and all addend urns and a link directly to the material submitted as part of this package. 

We would be happy to provide FORA staff and the FORA Board with any additional 
information deemed necessary to complete the Consistency Determination review. We look 
forward to working with you on this and should you have any questions regarding this submittal 
please contact Craig Spencer at (831) 755-5233 or John Ford at (831) 755-5158. 

qr~~ 
Craig W. Spencer, Associate Planner 
Monterey County - Planning Department 
Email: spencerc@co.monterey.ca.us 

Attachments 
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LAW OFFICES OF ALAN WALTNER 

Memorandum 

Date: December 26, 2013 

To: Fort Ord Reuse Authority 

Board of Directors 

Mayor Jerry Edelen, Board Chair 

Michael Houlemard, Executive Officer 

From: Alan Waltner, Esq. 

Attachment D to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 

779 DOLORES STREET 
SANFRANOSCO, CAI.lFORNIA 94110 

TEL (415) 641-4641 
WALTNERLA W@ GMAIL.COM 

RE: Response to Certain Comments on the Monterey County General Plan 
Consistency Review 

This memorandum responds to your request that we address certain comments made in a 
series of letters submitted to FORA 1 by Jane Haines regarding the Monterey County 
General Plan Consistency Review that is currently pending before FORA. In general, 
this response highlights points made in our two previous memoranda that have been 
overlooked in these letters. 

Although the letters are extensive in length, they largely repeat three basic arguments. 
First, they argue that Section 8.02.010 or the FORA Master Resolution effectively 
modified the consistency review standards of the FORA Act and Master Resolution to 
require "strict adherence to the 1997 Reuse Plan" before consistency can be found. 
Second, they argue that substantial evidence has been provided triggering disapproval of 
the Monterey County General Plan under one or more of the provisions of Master 
Resolution Section 8.02.010- specifically provisions relating to the intensity of land 
uses, the density of land uses, and substantial conformance with applicable programs in 
the Reuse Plan. Third, they argue that there is no legal authority supporting a consistency 
review standard that parallels the standard applying in the local planning context under 
the Planning and Zoning Law. All three of these arguments were addressed in our 
previous memoranda, as summarized in this memorandum. 

First, there is no support in the FORA Act or Master Resolution for a "strict adherence" 
standard for consistency reviews. The FORA Act itself simply requires that the FORA 
Board find that "the portions of the general plan or amended general plan applicable to 
the territory of the base ... are consistent with the reuse plan." Government Code 
Section 67840.2. As with all statutes, this provision is to be interpreted in accordance 
with the "plain meaning" of the word chosen by the Legislature, which is "consistent." 

1 Abbreviations, acronyms and references used in our previous memoranda dated July 3 and September 3, 
2013 will be applied in this memorandum. 
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Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
December 26, 2013 
Page2 

Regardless of the dictionary chosen, the definition of the word is similar. For example, 
the Merriam-Webster online dictionary defines the tenn as: "marked by harmony, 
regularity, or steady continuity: free from variation or contradiction." The tenn does not 
require that two items be identical or strictly adhere to one another. Instead, it only 
requires harmony and a lack of conflict. This is the approach taken in extensive case law 
interpreting the Legislature's intention in using the same word in the Planning and 
Zoning Law, as summarized in our previous memoranda.2 It is also reflected in various 
provisions of the Master Resolution. For example, Section 8.02.010(b) clearly allows the 
"transfer of the intensity of land uses and/or density of development" between specific 
locations on the base, so long as "the cumulative net density or intensity of the Fort Ord 
Territory is not increased." This means that "strict adherence" to the uses on specific 
parcels is not required so long as a base-wide balance of intensity and density is 
demonstrated. Regarding compliance with BRP programs, Section 8.02.010(a)(3) of the 
Master Resolution requires only "substantial conformance" with "applicable" programs. 
Again, this is much different than the "strict adherence" standard urged in the comment 
letters. We continue to conclude that the standards being applied by FORA accurately 
implement the FORA Act and the Master Resolution. 

The comment letters argue that language in Master Resolution Section 8.02.010(a) stating 
that the Board "shall disapprove any legislative land use decision for which there is 
substantial evidence of [six listed factors]" implicitly modifies the meaning of the word 
"consistent" or alters the consistency review criteria of the Master Resolution to create a 
"strict adherence" standard. This implied modification of the applicable standard is 
unsupported by the structure or language of the provision. Such an interpretation would 
also conflict with several rules of statutory construction, particularly the rule against 
rendering language surplussage (the interpretation would effectively read Section 
8. 02.01 O(b) and the "substantial conformance" language out of the Master Resolution) 
and the rule disfavoring implied repeals. 3 The plain meaning of the term "consistent" 
still applies, as do the limitations of the Master Resolution embodied in the "substantial 
conformance" and "applicable" references. 

Second, there is no substantial evidence that any of the six criteria of Master Resolution 
Section 8.02.01 O(a) have been triggered.4 The comment letters reflect several 

2 The extensive discussion in the comment letters of differences between the FORA Act and the Planning 
and Zoning Law does not alter the fact they both use the same term ("consistent") in a similar context. 

3 There are also substantial questions as to whether the 1997 FORA Board could adopt provisions in the 
Master Resolution that conflict with the FORA Act, establish review standards binding on a reviewing 
Court, or limit the police power discretion of subsequent FORA Boards. These issues are reserved for 
subsequent elaboration if needed. 

4 We note that the six criteria of this section are connected with the word "and." Literally read, then, there 
would need to be substantial evidence that all six criteria have been triggered before disapproval is 
required. The comment letters focus on three of the six criteria and no argument is made regarding the 
other three. Since there is no substantial evidence that any of the criteria have been triggered, this 
memorandum does not rely upon the use of the word "and" in this provision, but the argument is reserved. 
Master Resolution 8.02.010(a)(3) also refers only to substantial conformance with "programs" and does not 
reference substantial conformance with "policies" of the BRP. Again, this memorandum does not rely 
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fundamental flaws in making this argument. Most importantly, the comment letters 
generally do not point to any specific evidence of a lack of consistency, but instead 
simply reference the Monterey County General Plan and FORA BRP as a whole and urge 
that within them are unspecified inconsistencies. In other words, the comment letters do 
not identify the "substantial evidence" upon which they are relying. The comment letters 
also do not attempt to rebut Monterey County's analyses of consistency that support the 
application. The argument further erroneously applies the "strict adherence" standard 
addressed earlier herein. Thus, for example, regarding the requirement of "substantial 
conformance" with "applicable" programs of the BRP, there is no specifically identified 
evidence in any of the comment letters that any particular applicable program has not met 
the substantial conformance test. 

We note in this regard that the entirety of the BRP has been incorporated by reference 
into the Monterey County General Plan that is the subject of the pending consistency 
review application. See Monterey County 2010 General Plan, Chapter 9 .E ("This plan 
incorporates all applicable policies and programs contained in the adopted Reuse Plan as 
they pertain to the subject area."). The comment letters do not attempt to explain how, 
despite this incorporation, "substantial conformance" with applicable BRP programs has 
not been achieved. 

Given the general lack of specific objections in the comments, a more detailed response 
to the commenter's substantial evidence argument cannot be made. The most specific 
objection made is to the fact that a natural ecosystem easement has not yet been recorded 
by Monterey County for the Monterey Downs area. See October 1 0, 2013 letter from 
Jane Haines. However, a commitment has been made by Monterey County, through 
incorporation of the BRP program requiring such an easement. The fact that 
implementation of this easement obligation is not yet applicable (there is not yet a 
specific Monterey Downs proposal and adjustments to any protected areas are likely to be 
made, meaning that the property description in an easement cannot yet be defined and 
recording such an easement is not yet possible) does not provide any evidence that 
substantial conformance with this BRP program is not reflected in the Monterey County 
General Plan. Any specific development entitlements for Monterey Downs will be 
subject to further review by the FORA Board at which time the easement obligation can 
be enforced if necessary. The other objections in the comment letters are very cursory 
and do not describe the substantial evidence purported to demonstrate a lack of 
substantial conformance with applicable BRP programs. 

Third, although no challenge to a FORA consistency determination has ever been 
brought, and no other challenge to a FORA land use action has ever proceeded to a 
written judicial opinion, this does not mean that there is no legal authority for the 
interpretation and application of the consistency standard. As discussed earlier herein, 
the Legislature's use of the word "consistent" in the FORA Act, and FORA's 
interpretations and implementation of this language in the Master Resolution, are the 
applicable law, as discussed earlier herein and in our earlier memoranda. 

upon this omission, since there is no substantial evidence of applicable BRP policies that have not been 
substantially complied with, but this argument is likewise reserved. 
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FORA Master Resolution Section Finding of 
Consistency 

(1) Does not provide for a land use designation that allows more Yes 
intense land uses than the uses permitted in the Reuse Plan for the 
affected territory; 

(2) Does not provide for a developtnent more dense than the density Yes 
of uses permitted in the Reuse Plan for the affected territory; 

(3) Is in substantial conformance with applicable progrmns specified Yes 
in the Reuse Plan and Section 8.02.020 of this Master Resolution. 
( 4) Does not provide uses which conflict with or are incompatible Yes 
with uses permitted or allowed in the Reuse Plan for the affected 
property or which conflict with or are incmnpatible with open space, 
recreational, or habitat tnanagetnent areas within the jurisdiction of 
the Authority; 
(5) Requires or otherwise provides for the financing and/or Yes 
installation, construction, and tnaintenance of all infrastructure 
necessary to provide adequate public services to the property covered 
by the legislative land use decision; 
(6) Requires or otherwise provides for ilnplementation of the Fort Yes 
Ord Habitat Management Plan ("HMP"). 
(7) Is consistent with the Highway 1 Scenic Corridor design Yes 
standards as such standards tnay be developed and approved by the 
Authority Board. 
(8) Is consistent with the jobs/housing balance requiretnents Yes 
developed and approved by the Authority Board as provided in 
Section 8.02.020(t) of this Master Resolution. 
(9) Prevailing Wage Yes 

Attachment E to Item 8b 
FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

Justification for finding 

The General Plan does not establish land use 
designations more intense than permitted in the Base 
Reuse Plan ("BRP"). See Exhibit 1 to Monterey 
County Board of Supervisors Order 13-
0952/Resolution No. 13-307 (Reso. 13-307) page 5 
of 13. 
The General Plan does not allow denser development 
than permitted in the BRP. See Reso. 13-307 page 5 
of13. 
The General Plan is in compliance with applicable 
programs. See Reso. 13-307 page 5 of 13. 
No conflict or incompatibility exists between the 
General Plan and BRP. See Reso. 13-307 page 6 of 
13. 

The General Plan does not modify County 
obligations to contribute to basewide costs. See 
Reso. 13-307 page 6 of 13. 

The General Plan provides for HMP implementation. 
See Reso. 13-307 page 6 of 13. 
The General Plan does not modify Highway 1 Scenic 
Corridor design standards. 

The General Plan is consistent with job/housing 
balance requirements. See Reso. 13-307 page 13 of 
13. 
The General Plan does not modify prevailing wage 
requirements. 
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Attachment F .1 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 
601 OCEAN VIEW BLVD., APT. i 1..------------------' 

·•rr.:L. 831 375·5913 V.(MAll. .. ~· 

.I 

October I 0, 2013 

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board of Directors 
920 2nd Avenue 
Marina, CA 93933 

Re: October II Agenda - Item Be - Consistency Determination: 
201 0 Monterey County General Plan 

Dear FORA Board of Directors: 

The ·201 0 Monterey County General Plan is inconsistent with the 1997 Base 
Reuse Plan (BRP) because it omits applicable BRP programs. Certification of 
consistency between the two plans should be delayed until the omitted 
programs are added to the General Plan. Otherwise, the plans are inconsistent 
and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) will require environmental 
review of impacts that could result from the inconsistencies. 

This letter will explain which BRP programs have been omitted from the 2010 
GeneralPlan and how omitting those programs will result in potentially 
significant environmental impacts. · 

FORA's October i i and the County's September i 7 staff reports discount the 
publics' comments on the inconsistencies by saying that implementation is a 
different matter than consistency. However, I and others are commenting about 
the omission of BRP programs from the 2010 Monterey County General Plan. 
The omission of applicable programs is not an implementation issue.1 It is a 
consistency i'ssue as well as a CEQA issue. 

The following page uses the proposed Monterey Downs project to illustrate the 
potentially significant environmental impacts from omitting three applicable 
programs, assuming that Seaside will annex Monterey County land for Monterey 
Downs, although of course the impacts would also occur to other 
County projects too. There will be arrows pointing to various locations 
on the Monterey Downs land use map. The arrows are connected to 
boxes which explain the BRP program that was omitted from the County's 2010 
General Plan, and how omission of that program is likely to cause a significant 
adverse environmental impact. 

1 Implementation is defined in the Oxford dictionary as "the process of putting a decision or plan into effect." 
Consistency is defined as "conformity in the application of something~ typically that which Is necessary for 
the sake of logic, accuracy1 or fairness.~~ 
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Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A .. 1.2. This Open Space & Trails 
parcel is 72.5 acres entitled Parcel El9a.2 . The HMP designates it for Habitat 
Reserve. BRP Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A-i .2 states: "The 
County of Monterey shall cause to be recorded a Natural Ecosystem Easement 
deed restriction that will run wlth the land tn perpetuity for all identified open space 
lands." (A natural ecosystem deed restriction is intended to mitigate the cumulative 
effects of development on sensitive soils, including Arnold and Oceano soils. 
Parcel E19a.2 is comprised of Arnold soil.) Without Recreation/Open Space Land 
Use Program A-1 .2, Monterey County will not have to record a Natural Ecosystem 
Easement deed restriction on Parcel E19a.2. Thus, the natural ecosystem on Parcel 
Ei9a.2 will not be protected. Program A-1.2 is on page 270 of Volume II of the BRP, 
but it is omitted from the Monterey County 201 0 General Plan. 

Noise Program B-1.2. The Sports 
Arena Training Facility adjoins CSUMB. 

Students who are studying or in lectures 
could be distracted by shouting, loud 

speakers and other noisy activities at the Sports 
Arena. BRP Noise program B-1.2 on page 412 of 

BRP Volume II states: ''Whenever practical and 
asible, the County shall segregate sensitive 

eptors, such as residential land uses, from noise 
generators through land use." Noise program B-i .2 is 
omitted from the Monterey County 20i 0 General Plan. 
It must be included to protect CSUMB against 
distracting noises from the Sports Arena. 

Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program B~2.1. Nearly the entire eastern edge 

of Monterey Downs adjoins a habitat management area. (Continued next page.) 

PAGE2 
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(Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program B~2.1 continued). BRP Recreation/ 
Open Space Land Use program B-2.1 is partially included in the 201 0 Monterey 
County General Plan although the final two sentences are omitted. The final two 
sentences prohibit general purpose roads within a 150 feet buffer area adjoining 
habitat management areas. BRP Recreatiori/Open Space Land Use Program B-2.1 
states on pg. 270 of BRP Vol. II: "The County of Monterey shall review each future 
development project for compatibility with adjacent open space land uses and 
require that suitable open space buffers are incorporated ·into the development plan 
of Incompatible land uses as a condition of project approval. When buffers ate 
required as a condition of approval adjacent to habitat management areas, the 
buffer shall be at least 150 feet. Roads shall not be allowed within tJ1e buffer 
area except for restricted access maintenance or emergency access 
roads.'1 (Emphasis added to final two sentences to identify the two sentences 
omitted from the 2010 Monterey County General Plan Recreation/Open Space Land 
Use Program B~2.1 .) Without the complete text of Program 8-2.1 to protect it, the 
adjoining habitat management area can be adversely impacted. 

The above omissions do not pertain to implementation. Rather, they pertain to 
inconsistency between the BRP and the 2010 Monterey County General Plan. 
They and other omitted or misstated BRP policies2 make the 2010 Monterey 
County General Plan inconsistent with the BRP. 

FORA Master Resolution Section 67675.4 

In addition to the inconsistency issues described above, I want to mention 
Master Resolution section 67675.4 which required FORA to set a date for 
Monterey County to submit to FORA its zoning ordinances and other 
implementing actions pertaining to Fort Ord land after the 2001-2002 
certification of consistency between Monterey County's General Plan with the 
BHP. 

Section 67675.4 states: 

(a) Within 30 days after the certification of a genera/plan or amended 
general plan, or any portion thereof, the board shall, after consultation with 
the county or a city; establish a date for that county or city to submit the 

2 Additional om·lssions and errors can be identified by comparing BRP Hydrology and Water 
Quality programs 8~2, 8~1.3, B~i .4, 8~1.5, B.1.6 and B-1.7 on page 353 (and 347) of BRP 
Volume II with pages F0~38, 39 in the Monterey County General Plan (MCGP). Additional 
omissions and errors are fn BRP Hydrology and Water Quality program C-6.1 on page 4-66 of 
BRP Vol. II which does not appear on page F0-41 of the MCGP, which ls where it would be 
located if it were Included. Also~ compare the words "concurrently with development approval" in 
Pedestrian and Bicycles program 8-1.2 on page 310 of 8RP Vol. II with the omission of those 
words in program B-1.2 on page F0-29 in MCGP. Also, compare Biological Resources program 
A-8. 1 on page 381 of 8RP Vol. II with program A·8.1 on pg. F0-46 of the MCGP. In each 
instance, a program required by the BRP for Monterey County is either partially or wholly omitted 
in the 2010 MCGPj or written In a manner inconsistent with the gist of the corresponding BRP 
program. 

PAGE3 
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zoning ordinances, zoning district maps, and, where necessar~ other 
implementing actions applicable to the territory of Fort Ord. 

(b) If the county or city .fails to meet the schedule established pursuant to 
subdivision (a), the board may waive the deadlines for board action on 
submitted zoning ordinances, zoning district maps, and, where necessar~ 
other implementing actions, as set forth in Section 67675.5. 

Apparently, FORA never required Monterey County to submit its zoning 
ordinances and other implementing actions, because the 2012 Seeping Report 
lists the following incomplete implementation of Monterey County zoning 
ordinances and other implementing actions: 

appropriate infill residential zoning for CSUMB to expand its housing stock 
(Scoping Report pg. 4~5) 
amend zoning 1n the Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan (Scoping 

- Report pg. 4-8) 
amend zoning ordinance in regard to all Fort Ord areas other than East 
Garrison (Scoping. Report pgs. 4~ 7, 4-i 3, 4-20, 4-29) 
amend County Code Chapter 1 i .24 to regulate card rooms and to prohibit 
gambling within Fort Ord (Scoping Report pg. 4-27) 
amend County Subdivision Ordinance which identifies a standard of 3 acres 
per 1 )000 people (Scoping Report pg. 4-40) 
amend County's review procedures to ensure compatibility with the historic 
context and associated land uses as a condition of project approval 
(Scoping Report pg. 4" 158} 

Thus, I am requesting that FORA do what it apparently failed to do in 200'1-2002, 
which is to require Monterey County to submit its zoning ordinances and other 
implementing actions to FORA within 30 days after the certification of the 
General Plan. The submittal should include the above~mentloned zoning 
ordinances. 

Conclusion 

I request FORA to require Monterey County to add the omitted applicable BRP 
programs to the 2010 Monterey County General Plan and to correct related 
errors before FORA makes a finding of consistency. I also request FORA to 
comply with Master Resolution section 67675.4. 

Sincerely, 

Jane Haines 

PAGE4 
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Attachment F.2 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

1/E:t'-~TANA CI-IAPTER 

CHAPTER OFFICE~> ENVmONMH.NTAL CENTER (831) 624-8032 

10 October 2013 

Dear Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Members; 

The Sierra Club recommends that the FORA Board find the 2010 Monterey County General Plan, and the 
indnded Fort Ord Master Plan (POMP), inconsistent with the Fort Ord Reuse Plan (FORP) based on 
evidence that the General Plan does not reflect the appropriate language and programs of the FORP Final 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). In point of fact, parts ofthe FOMP precisely reverse specific changes 
made in and for the FORP Final EIR. Following CEQA law; the Sierra Club expects that the 2010 
Monterey County General Plan reflects rather than alters the provisions of the FORP Final EIR before it 
would he found to be consistent with the FORP. 

The Sierra Club further recommends that the FORA Board defer a finding of consistency until the County 
of Monterey Land Use Plan map (Figure 6a) accurately reflects the FORP County of Monterey Land Use 
Concept Map 4. 1"7 and the FORP Land Use Concept Map 3.3-1, Ensuring that planning maps are carefully 
aligned in detail and designation will not only support a finding of consistency, but may serve to avoid later 
conflicts that arise from the differences between· the documents. 

By way of illustration, this letter will address three specific differences between the 2010 General Plan and 
the FORP~ including: 

1) The omission in the FOMP of the FORP Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A-L2-
Natural Ecosystem Easement Deed Restriction (FORP Volume 2, p. 270). 

2) The reversed articulation of the Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A- 1. 
3) The rt1ismatched land use designation between the County ofM(')nterey Land Use Plan (Figure 6a) 

and the FORP County ofMonterey Land Use Concept Map 4.1-7/ FORP Land Use Concept Map 
3.3-1. 

These examples are meant to ptovide clear differences, but are not meant to represent a complete list of 
differences between the General Plan and the FORP EIR. 

Program Omission 
As is clearly shown in the FORP Final Draft EIR (p. 4-14, see attached except of same), the following 
pro.gram in underlined, which means that it was an edit meant to be included in the Final Draft EIR. 

Program Aw1.2: The County of Monterey shall cause to be recorded a Natural Ecosystem 
Easement deed restriction that will mn with the land in perpetuity for all identified open space 
lands. 

Appropriately, Program A-1.2 also appears in Volume Two: Reuse Plan Elements of the FORP (see page 
270). 

At the 17 September 2013 Board of Supervisor's meeting, Monterey County staff acknowledged that 
Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program Aw1.2- Natural Ecosystem Easement Deed Restriction was left 
out of the FOMP brought forward to the Board. The staffl'epresentative. went on to note that despite this 
omission, the county was in the process of having these easements reviewed and approved by FORA, so the 
county was can·ying out this program (caph1red on the video from the 17 September 2013 Board of 
Supervisor's meeting, 1:40:10 in the web video record). However, he offered no supporting evidence to 

... 1'o explo'te 1 enjoy, p1·ese.;·ve and JYrotect the nation's forests) waters, wlldlife and wilderness ... 
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Attachment F .3 to Item Bb 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

SIERRA CLUB VENTANA CHAPTER 

P.O. BOX 5667, CARMEL~ CALJFORNJA 9:5921 

CHAPTER OHICE" ENVIRONMENTAL CENTER (831) 624·8032. 

support this claim. Regardless, the omission still represents a specific and significant alteration of the Final 
EIR. 

The stated omission of a specific Land Use program- a program that is separate from and in addition to the 
Habitat Management restrictions- rendets the FOMP inadequate to carry out the self-same provision of the 
FORP. 

Furth~r, Program A-1.2 is quite specific in the action it proscribes fm establishing "criteria and standards 
for the uses ofland, water, air, space, and other natural resources within the area of the base." ( Govt. Code 
§ 67675(c) (l)). This distinguishes it from the latitude that accompanies shifts in land use density with 
regard to the "integrated arrangement andgenerallocation and extent of land, water, air, space, and other 
natural resources within the area of the base!' Excluding such a specific provision renders the POMP out of 
substantial conformance with the FORP. 

Reversed Articulation of Program 
Recreation/ Open Space Land Use Policy A-1, as stated in the POMP (p. F0-21), misquotes the policy in 
the FORP and thereby changes its specificity. In order to be in conformance with the FORP,.the policy 
should read: t'The County of Monterey shall protect irreplaceable natural resources and open space at 
former Fort Ord." (my italics to emphasize the language that was neglected in the FOMP). 

Because the wording in the FOMP- " .... encourage the conservation and preservation of ... "- is more 
general and does not convey the same level ofresponsibility as the FORP language does) it represents a 
notable difference in the policy language. This is underscored by the fact that this is the precise change that 
was made in the Final Environmental Impact Report: "encourage the conservation and preservation of' is 
marked by strikethrough text, and "protecf' is added, as shown by underlining (p. 4-14, FORP: Final 
Environmental Impact Report). As :with the addition of Program A-1.2 mentioned above, this change in 
language is also reflected on p. 270 in Volume Two ofthe FORP. 

Monterey County staffs response to the Board of Supervisors regarding this point (captured on the video 
from the 17 September 2013 Board of Supervisor's meeting, 1:40:00 in the web video record) was that the 
"protect" language was changed to the "encourage" language. It is not clear how the precise language that­
was altered for the Final EIR could or would have been returned to the very same language that was 
altered. It is also not clear which succession of document represent this reversion. Againl Monterey County 
staff offered not evidence to support their claim. 

Mismatched maps 
The Reassessment process has bought to light the importance of FORP maps that align with the specific 
provisions of the FORP and subsequent determinations of consistency. The Category II considerations in 
the Reassessment Report are testimony to this point. Withholding a finding of consistency until the FOMP 
Figure 6a accurately reflects both FORP County of Monterey Land Use Concept Map 4.1-7 and FORP 
Land Use Concept M·ap 3.3-1 would ensure the land use designations accmately describe the provisions of 
the FORP. For an extended, but not exhaustive list of the errors in the FOMP Figure 6a, see attached 16 
September 2013 letter to the Monterey County Board of Supervisors. 

The response of the Monterey C01.mty staff to each of the errors identified on FOMP Figure 6a is available 
by viewing the web video from the 17 September2013 Board of Supervisor's meeting. The primary 
defense offered by the County staff was that FOMP Figure 6a, as is, was found consistent in 2001. The 
Sierra Club would point out that increased attention to accuracy, despite past oversights, serves to guide all 
parties more effectively in the realization of the FORP . 

.. . 10 explo1'e 1 enjoy, presefve and JlrOtec~ the nati~n's forests l waters, wildlife and wilderness ... 



Page 61 of 190

SIERRA CL'UB 'VENTANA CI-IAPTER 

P.O. BOX 5667, CARMl~L> CALIFORNIA 93921 

CHAPtER OFFICE, ENVIRONMENTAL CB.NTER {831) 624·8032 

The points above are illustrations of apparent errors in the current version of the FOMP, but they likely do 
not exhaust the changes that would be required before a vote of consistency by the FORA Board would be 
merited. For instance, the header near the bottom ofp. FOA reads "Design Principals" when it should read 
"Design Principles". 

The Sierra Club looks forward to further work on the Fort Ord Master Plan so that~ as described in the 
Master Resolution, its substantial conformance with the Fort Ord Reuse Plan is assured. 

Sincerely, 

Scott 'VValtz·, Ph.D. 
Sierra Club, Ventana Chapter 
(SW/RD) 

.. . 'To explore, enfoy, preserve and ptotect the nation's forests, waters1 wildlife and wilderness .. , 
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Attachment F.4 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 
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Attachment F .5 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 
601 OCEAN VIEW BLVD., APT. 1 

November 8, 2013 

Fort Ord Reuse Board of Directors 
920 2nd Avenue 
Marina, CA 93933 

board@fora.org 

Re: FORA's proposed resolutions for item 6a on the November 8 agenda 

Dear FORA Board of Directors: 

I met with FORA's attorney and other FORA staff on November 4 to discuss legal 
issues pertaining to FORA's consistency findings. It was my understanding that 
FORA would rewrite its resolutions prior to the November 8 Board meeting so I did 
not address the issue of FORA's resolutions in my November 7 letter to the FORA 
Board. Apparently FORA did rewrite the resolutions because last night I found 
revised resolutions posted on the FORA website. However, the revised resolutions 
contain the same legal errors that I'd expected would be corrected. 

This letter will attempt to explain why FORA's resolutions for finding consistency 
between a general plan and the Reuse Plan omit legally required findings, and why 
FORA's past omissions of the legally-required findings have inappropriately resulted 
in general plans shaping the Reuse Plan rather than the Reuse Plan shaping general 
plans. 

It's complicated, but I will try to explain: 

• Chapter 8, section 8.02.01 O(a), states the standard for determining consistency 
between a general plan and the Reuse Plan as follows: "In the review, evaluation, 
and determination of consistency regarding legislative land use decisions, the 
Authority Board shall disapprove any legislative land use decision for which there 
is substantial evidence supported by the record, that [any of six criteria are met]." 

• The above standard is written in the negative and it greatly limits the FORA 
Board's discretion. Any substantial evidence showing that the legislative decision 
meets any of the criteria for disapproval requires that the FORA Board shall 

disapprove a finding of consistency. 
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• In contrast, FORA's current and past resolutions have been written in the 
affirmative to give the FORA Board broad discretion. Any substantial evidence 
showing that the legislative decision is consistent with the Reuse Plan allows the 
resolutions' findings to support a finding of consistency. 

• The difference between the negative and the affirmative finding is similar to the 
difference between criminal and civil law. In criminal law, the evidence must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt that a person is guilty. In civil law, a person is liable if 
a preponderance of the evidence shows the person is liable. It is much harder to 
prove a fact beyond a reasonable doubt than it is to show that the preponderance 
of the evidence proves the fact. (That is why O.J. Simpson was not criminally 
liable but was liable for civil damages.) 

• In the case of general plan consistency with the Reuse Plan, it is much harder to 
show that no substantial evidence requires disapproval of a consistency finding 
than it is to show that substantial evidence supports a consistency finding. 

The resolutions' affirmative findings do not meet the criteria for adequate findings 

set forth by the California Supreme Court in Topanga Association for a Scenic 
Community v. County of Los Angeles (1974) 11 Cal.3d 506. Topanga holds that 
findings must bridge the analytic gap between the raw evidence and ultimate 
decision. It states: "If the Legislature had desired otherwise, it could have declared 
as a possible basis for issuing mandamus the absence of substantial evidence to 
support the administrative agency's action. By focusing, instead, upon the 
relationships between evidence and findings and between findings and ultimate 

action (emphasis added}, the Legislature sought to direct the reviewing court's 
attention to the analytic route the administrative agency traveled from evidence to 
action." Topanga 11 Cal.3d 506 at 515. 

The governing legal authority for the FORA Board to evaluate consistency between 
a general plan and the Reuse Plan is Chapter 8, Section 8.02.01 O(a). It states that 
the FORA Board shall disapprove consistency if any substantial evidence shows 
that any of six criteria are met. Thus, FORA's resolution must show the analytic route 
by stating that FORA examined the evidence and found that no substantial evidence 
supports any of the six criteria for disapproval in Section 8.02.01 O(a). (Alternatively, 
the resolution could state that FORA examined the evidence and found that 
substantial evidence supports one or more of the criteria.) 

Instead, FORA's resolutions state that FORA finds substantial evidence to support 
finding that the General Plan and Reuse Plan are consistent. That affirmative finding 
does not bridge the analytic gap between evidence and the ultimate decision in the 
manner required by Section 8.02.01 O(a). 

PAGE2 
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Probably the above distinction seems trivial to you, but consider this. If the standard 
is whether any evidence supports finding that the 2010 Monterey County General 
Plan is consistent with the Base Reuse Plan, the answer is obviously "yes, it does." 
There is plenty of evidence that the 2010 Monterey County General Plan is 
consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

On the other hand, if the standard is whether any evidence shows that the 2010 
General Plan does not meet the third criteria (substantial conformance with 
applicable programs specified in the Reuse Plan), the answer is obviously that the 
evidence clearly shows that the General Plan omits two applicable Reuse Plan 
programs and an important component of a third applicable program. 

Thus, the difference between utilizing an affirmative or a negative standard will 
determine whether or not FORA must disallow a finding of consistency (which it 
must in the case of the negative finding), or whether FORA can find that the 2010 
General Plan is consistent with the Reuse Plan (which it must in the case of the 
affirmative finding). 

Pursuant to Topanga, FORA will abuse its discretion if it utilizes an affirmative 
finding in its resolution, because the affirmative finding does not address the 
analytic route that Section 8.02.01 O(a) requires FORA to follow from consideration of 
the evidence to the ultimate decision. 

In sum, FORA's resolutions must be rewritten to show the analytic route prescribed 
by Master Resolution Section 8.02.01 O(a). Rather than affirmatively finding that the 
General Plan is, or is not, consistent with the Reuse Plan, the resolution must find 
either that no substantial evidence shows that the General Plan is not in substantial 
conformance with applicable Reuse Plan programs (in which case FORA must find 
the plans to be consistent), or that substantial evidence shows that the General Plan 
is not in substantial conformance with applicable Reuse Plan programs (in which 
case FORA must disallow a finding of consistency). 

In their current form, the resolutions require your Board to find the 2010 General 
Plan is consistent the Reuse Plan. However, the current form of the resolutions lacks 
findings that bridge the analytic gap between the raw evidence and your ultimate 
decision. Thus, the resolutions must be redrafted to bridge that gap, or otherwise 
making your decision based on the resolutions in their current form will be an abuse 
of discretion. 

If Fort Ord is to be redeveloped in accordance with the Reuse Plan, step #1 is to 
correct FORA's past procedure for finding general plan consistency. 

Sincerely, 

Jane Haines 

PAGE3 
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601 OCEAN VIEW BLVD., APT. 1 

Attachment F.6 to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 
'TEL. 831 375-5913 EMAil- L..----------------' 

I 

November 7, 2013 

Fort Ord Reuse Board of Directors 
920 2nd Avenue 
Marina, CA 93933 

board@fora.org 

Re: November 8 Agenda- Item 6a- 2010 Monterey County General Plan 
Consistency Determination 

Dear FORA Board of Directors: 

The November 5 defeat of Measures K and M shows that the voters want the 
1997 Base Reuse Plan implemented. However, the 2010 Monterey County 
General Plan fails to implement important programs from the 1997 Base Reuse 
Plan, including programs applicable to land currently under Monterey County 
jurisdiction which Seaside wants to annex for the Monterey Downs project. This 
exclusion of important applicable programs necessitates that the 2010 General 
Plan not be found consistent with the 1997 Base Reuse Plan. 

My October 10 letter, included in your packet on pages 24-27 and incorporated 
herein, shows that the 2010 Monterey County General Plan omits Base Reuse 
Plan Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A-1.2, a program that would 
apply to the central eastern parcel within the Monterey Downs project and 
would require an 
easement deed 
restriction to run with 
the land to protect 
the parcel's sensitive 
soils. Also omitted is 
Noise Program B-1.2 
that would apply to 
the Monterey Downs 
Sports Arena in the 
northern central 
portion of the land to 
protect the adjacent 
land owner (CSUMB) 
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against loud noises. Also omitted are two important sentences in Recreation/ 
Open Space Land Use Program B-2.1 which would bar roads through a 150 feet 
wide buffer area on the central east 72.5 acre parcel adjoining adjacent habitat 
management areas. 

The 1997 Base Reuse Plan expressly makes those omitted programs applicable 
to Monterey County lands. (1997 Base Reuse Plan pages 270 and 460.) 

FORA's Master Resolution, section 8.02.01 0 (a)(3), states that "in the review, 
evaluation, and determination of consistency regarding legislative land use 

decisions, the Authority Board shall disapprove (emphasis added) any 
legislative land use decision for which there is substantial evidence supported 
by the record, that...[the legislative land use decision] is not in substantial 
conformance with applicable programs specified in the Reuse Plan and Section 
8.02.020 of this Master Resolution." 

Since the 2010 Monterey County General Plan completely omits two applicable 
programs and an essential component of a third program, and the Master 

Resolution states that the Authority Board shall disapprove (emphasis added) a 
consistency finding when substantial evidence shows the general plan is not in 
substantial conformance with applicable programs, your Board will violate 
Master Resolution section 8.02.01 O{a)(c) if you find the 2010 Monterey County 
General Plan consistent with the 1997 Base Reuse Plan. 

The November 8 staff report asserts that "there are several defensible rationales 
for making an affirmative consistency determination" and the resolution in your 
Board packet asserts that "FORA's consistency determination must be based 
upon the overall congruence between the submittal and the Reuse Plan, not on 
a precise match between the two." No legal authority supports those assertions. 
"Defensible rationale" and "overall congruence" are legally improper standards 
for finding consistency when the controlling regulation says "shall disapprove." 

The November 5 Election Results 

The November 5 election results retain the 1997 Base Reuse Plan. It is a plan 
that was based on a million dollar study and forged from a lengthy process of 
political and legal compromise. The Plan has not been implemented according 
to the plain meaning of its text, nor has Chapter 8 of the Master Resolution been 
enforced according to the plain meaning of its text. 

PAGE2 
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The November 5 election results will hopefully cause the FORA Board to return 
to the plain meaning of the Reuse Plan and the plain meaning of Chapter 8: 

• The text of the 1997 Reuse Plan says that "The County of Monterey shall 
cause to be recorded a Natural Ecosystem Easement deed restriction that will 
run with the land in perpetuity for all identified open space lands." (Volume II of 
Base Reuse Plan, pg. 270.) 

• The text of Chapter 8 says that "In the review, evaluation, and determination of 
consistency regarding legislative land use decisions, the Authority Board shall 
disapprove any legislative land use decision for which there is substantial 
evidence supported by the record, that [the land use decision] is not in 
substantial conformance with applicable programs specified in the Reuse Plan 
and Section 8.02.020 of the Master Resolution." 

Substantial evidence consists of page 270 of the 1997 Reuse Plan compared to 
page F0-21 of the 2010 Monterey County General Plan. Page 270 includes the 
open space program; page F0-21 does not. 

Chapter 8 says that when the legislative decision is not in substantial 
conformance with an applicable program of the Reuse Plan, the FORA Board 
"shall" disapprove a consistency finding. What could be more clear than that? 

The staff report on page 6 of your packet states that "strict timelines" in State 
law require FORA to act on the County's request for a consistency finding. State 
law allows 90 days from the date of submittal. The date of submittal was 
September 24, 2013. That means that as of your meeting tomorrow (November 
8), forty-five days will remain before your Board must act. 

Forty-five days is sufficient time for FORA staff to compile an explanation based 
on the actual text of the 1997 Reuse Plan, the actual text of 2010 General 

Plan, and the actual text of Chapter 8 to explain to your Board why FORA staff 
recommends that your Board find consistency when the actual text of those 
three documents mandates your Board to disapprove finding consistency. Your 
staff report contains terms like "several defensible rationales" and "overall 
congruence." However, I've been unable to find those terms in any statute, 
regulation or case law applicable to a consistency finding by FORA. 

Tomorrow, three days after the voters spoke, presents an opportunity to the 
FORA Board to finally require accountability from FORA staff to implement the 
plain meaning of FORA governing documents. I request that at tomorrow's 
hearing, your Board do so. 

Sincerely, 
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601 OCEAN VIEW BLVD., APT. 1 PJl 

Attachment F.7 to Item~ 8b 
FORA Board Meeting, 1/1 0/2014 

TEL 831 375-5913 EMAIL JANE'-------------------' 

JANE HAINES 

December 30,2013 
Alan Waltner, Esq .. 
via :N1ichael Houlen1ard at FORA 
Marina, CA 

Dear Mr. Waltner: 

I'm the retired land use attorney whose comments on the Monterey 
County General Plan consistency review you address in your December 
26 memorandum to the Fort Ord Reuse Authority. I will provide this 
letter to Michael Houlemard in an envelope addressed to your San 
Francisco office and leave it up to Michael and jon Giffen as to whether 
or not they forward this to you . 

. ~y __ !llai!?- purpos~ f~ writing is to ~rovid~you_~jth !h_~ .. e:r:t<:~os_e~ ~opy of ----· 
the 1998 settlement agreement between the Sierra Club and FORA. 
Your memorandum refers to Chapter 8 of the FORA Master 
Resolution, which is Exhibit 1 to the settlement agreement. However, I 
want you to see the entire agreement so you can see that Sierra Club 
agreed to settle its judicial challenge to the Reuse Plan in exchange for 
FORA adopting Chapter 8 as an implementation measure for the Reuse 
Plan. (Settlement Agreement, paragraph 2.) 

You characterize my first argument as saying that Section 8.02.010 of 
the ]\laster Resolution modifies the consistency review standards of the 
FORA Act to require "strict adherence to the 1997 Reuse Plan" before 
consistency can be found. Although I'm not aware of having phrased it 
as "strict adherence," I do read Section 8.02.010 literally as saying the 
FORA Board "shall disapprove" consistency of a general plan when 
substantial evidence shows the general plan is "not in substantial 
conformance with applicable programs specified in the Reuse Plan and 
Section 8.02.020." I read subdivision (c) of Section 8.02.010 as saying 
that substantial compliance is demonstrated when the applicant land use 
agency has complieq with all provisions of Section 8.02.010 in addition 
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to Section 8.02.020. If that's vvhat you mean by "strict adherence," then 
yes, that is my argument. It is based on FOMs agreement to adopt 
Chapter 8 as an implfmentation measure for the Reuse Plan and in that 
respect does not "modify" the consistency review standards of the 
FORA Act, but rather denotes how they will be implemented. 

You characterize my second argument as saying that evidence of 
intensity of land uses, density of land uses, and substantial conformance 
with applicable programs in the Reuse Plan triggers the "shall 
disapprove" requirement. I'm not aware that I mentioned intensity or 
density of land uses, but definitely I argued that the Monterey County 
General Plan's omission of Reuse Plan Recreation/ Open Space Land 
Use Program A-1.2 triggers disapproval, and is also a CEQA violation 
with foreseeably significant environmental consequences. Program A-1.2 
would apply to the 72.5 acre Habitat Reserve Parcel El9.a.2 which 
Seaside will need to annex from Monterey County for purposes of 
including the parcel in Seaside's Monterey Downs project. Seaside's 
General Plan does not include a program such as A-1.2, so if Seaside 
annexes that parcel without Monterey County having first recorded the 
Natural Ecosystem Easement deed restriction, the parcel's sensitive 
Oceano and Arnold soils will lack the protection required by the 1997 
FEIR. Similarly, Monterey County General Plan omission of a critical 
requirement in Program B-2.1 also has foreseeably significant 
environmental consequences. 1 (See 1997 FEIR pages 4-14 and 4-15 
attached.) 2 

You characterize my third argument as saying there is no legal authority 
supporting a consistency review standard that parallels the consistency 
standard under the Planning and Zoning Law. I agree with your 
characterization in that I believe that the "shall disapprove" requirement 

1 Your memorandum states that my October 10 letter objects that Nionterey County has not 
yet recorded the easement. I can't find that objection in my October 10 letter and it seems 
unlikely I \.vould have made it because Nlonterey County has not yet accepted the deed to 
Habitat Reserve Parcel El9.a.2. 

2 Your memorandum notes that the entirety of the BRP has been incorporated "by reference" 
into the :Nionterey County General Plan. I find the General Plan statement that you reference 
(but without the "by reference"), but the statement is belied by the fact that the Plan omits all 
or portions of the 8 programs identified in footnote 2 of my October l 0 letter in addition to 
Reuse Plan Recreation/Open Space Land Use Programs A-1.2 and B-2.1 plus Noise Program 
B-1.2. 
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in Section 8.02.020 differs significantly from the Planning and Zoning 
Law consistency standard applicable to consistency with general plans. 

As this letter's final point, my November 8 letter, which you've 
apparently read, explains my belief that FOR.Rs general plan 
consistency determination is an adjudicatory decision and is therefore 
subject to the Topanga holding that the findings must bridge the analytic 
gap between the raw evidence and the ultimate decision. The Board 
Report for FOR.Rs upcomingJanuary 10 hearing on the Monterey 
County General Plan consistency determination contains a proposed 
resolution to find consistency (resolution available on the FORA website) 
utilizing the findings I object to, such as the factual finding that 
"consistency" in this context is defined by OPR's General Plan 
Guidelines and that substantial evidence sho-ws the General Plan is in 
substantial conformance with applicable Reuse Plan programs. In my 
view, those findings do not bridge the analytic gap between a consistency 
decision and the requirement of Section 8.02.020. 

Attorneys whom I highly respect, respect you highly. That's why I 
thought it worth the time to write you this letter -- to ensure that you are 
aware of Sierra Club's stated reason for supporting the Reuse Plan. I'rn 
not affiliated with Sierra Club and I'm on inactive status with the 
California Bar so I can't give legal advice. I simply wanted to 
communicate to you on my own behalf what I've stated above. 

Sincerely, 

Jane Haines 
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Urban Village and Employment Center with approximately 85 acres dedicated to 
Office/R&D and Business Park/Light Industrial land uses. These manufacturing and 
possibly labor-intensive uses could create nuisances including increased noise, traffic, and air 
pollution, which may adversely affect the r~creational opportunities and experiences at the 
Youth Camp District. The 1t£0UT POST facility would also potentially conflict with the 
Youth Camp District due to noise and public safety risks. 

The following policies and programs developed for the Draft Pert Ord Reuse Plan for Monterey 
County relate to both the protection of open space and compatibility of open space areas with 
adjacent areas: 

Land Use Element 

Recreation/Open Space Land Use Policy A-1: The County of Monterey shall protect 
encourage the conserv frtion and preserv ation of irreplaceable natural resources and open 
space at former Fort O:~;d. 

Program A -1.1: The County of Monterey shall identify natural resources and open space, 
and incorporate them into Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan and zoning designations. 

Program A -1.2: The County of Monterey shall cause to be recorded a Natural Ecosystem 
·Easement deed restriction that will run with the land in perpetuity for all identified open 
space lands. 

Recreation/ Open Space Land Use Policy B-=-z:TneCounty of1Vlonterey sliall use open 
space as a buffer between various types of land use. 

Program B-2.1: The County of Monterey shall review each development project at former 
Fort Ord with regard to the need for open space buffers between land uses. 

Recreation /Open Space Land Use: Program E-1.6: The Youth Camp District in the 
Reservation Road Planning Area is intended for rehabilitation of the existing travel camp. 
The County of Monterey shall assure that this planned use is compatible with adjacent land 
uses which may include a public safety agency training facility with shooting ranges in the 
East Garrison area lo(;:ated to the East. 

Institutional Land Use Policy A-1: The County of Monterey shall review and coordinate 
with the universities, colleges and other school districts or entities the planning of both 
public lands designated for university-related uses and adjacent lands. 

Program A -1.4: The County of Monterey shall minimize the impacts of proposed land uses 
which may be incompatible with public lands, such as major roadways near residential or 
university areas, location of the Y ark School augmentation an~a adjacent to the habitat 
management area, and siting of the Monterey Peninsula College'sMOUT law enforcement 
training program in the BIM Man~gement/Recreation Planning Area. 

Further policies regarding the general protection of open space areas can be found in Section 4.3 -
Recreation and Open Space Element of the Drtift Fert Ord Reuse Plan. Additional policies and 

Environmental Setting, Impacts and Mitigation 
4-14 

Fort Ord Reuse Plan EIR 
Certified: June 13, 1997 
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programs to protect natural habitat resources and implement the HMP are listed in Section 4.4.3 -
Biological Resources section of the Conservation Element. 

While these policies and programs require the identification of open space and natural habitat areas 
and review of compatibility with adjacent uses, they provide no mechanism for assuring that 
incompatible land uses will not be introduced. Therefore, significant adverse impacts on adjacent 
open space areas may occur. Implementation of the following mitigation measure would reduce 
potential impacts to the extent that they would be considered less than significant. 

Mitigation: Amend Program B-2.1 within the Fort Ord Reuse Plan to state: The County of 
Monterey shall review each future development project for compatibility with adjacent open 
space land uses and require that suitable open space buffers are incorporated into the 
development plan of incompatible land uses as a condition of project approval. Wben 
buffers are required as a condition of approval adjacent to habitat management areas~ the 
buffer shall be at least 150 feet. Roads shall not be allowed within the buffer area except for 
restricted access maintenance or emergency access roads. 

2. Impact: Development in the Coastal Zone 

Implementation of the proposed project would result in development of the coastal zone. In the 
Fort Ord Dunes State Park Planning Area, the Draft FtJrl Ord Reuse Plan proposes a 59..,acre multi-use 
area, a 23-acre future desalination plant, and 803 9+9 acres reserved for park and open space. This 
coastal area, which contains significant environmental and natural resources, would be managed by 
the California Department of Parks and Recreation (CDPR) for habitat restoration and limited 

~-------vrsitrrr=s-erving-activiti-es-:--Bevelopment-ofthe-pretpe>sed-mllici=ase-area,-whleh-weukl-pet€-11tiaJJ.:y--­

include a 40-room lodge (including Stilwell Hall) and other associated facilities, has the potential to 
destroy or disturb a portion of these resources. The following policy and programs relate to 
protection and appropriate use of the coastal area: 

Land Use Element 

Recreation/ Open Space Land Use Policy E-1: The County of Monterey shall limit 
recreation in environmentally sensitive areas, such as dunes and areas with rare, endangered, 
or threatened plant or animal communities to passive, low-intensity recreation, dependent on 
the resource and compatible with its long term protection. 

Program E-1.1: The County of Monterey shall assist the CDPR to develop and implement a 
Master Plan for ensuring the management of the former Fort Ord coastal dunes and beaches 
for the benefit of the public by restoring habitat, recreating the natural landscape, providing 
public access, and developing appropriate day use and overnight lodging facilities (limited to 
a capacity of 40 rooms). 

Program E-1.2: The County of Monterey shall assist CDPR to carry out a dune restoration 
program for the Fort Ord Dunes State Park. 

Additional policies and programs to protect natural habitat in the coastal zone and to implement the 
HMP are described in Section 4.10 and are listed in the Biological Resources section of the 
Conservation Element. Any development in the coastal zone would need to be consistent with the 

Fort Ord Reuse Plan EIR 
Certified: June 13, 1997 

Environmental Setting, Impacts and Mitigation 
4-15 
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' •. 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT Al'fD GE?-l~RAL RELEASE 

This Agre-ement is rr:~de this . 50 day of November~ 1998, by and between Petitioner 
SIE~'t(_,_L\. Cl.tJB and Respondent FORT ORD RE:USE AUlBORITY. 

A. On July 16, 1997" petitioner SIBRRA CLUB, a Cslifornia non-profit corporation, 
filed a Petition for Writ ofMan4aznus agtPnst Respondent 'FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY 
("~FORA .... )~ a go:v-ero..merr~ entity ()rg~~t;i undei the lam offue State of Califo~ ~1eng41g 
actions of FORA. in appro"'>ing ~Fort Or~ Reu~ Plan fu.~d the ReuSe Plan~s concomita!"J: 
Environmental Impact Report. · The Pe@q~'fqr Writ cfM:anda..""llUs was filed in Montere'j Countj 
Superior Court a.TJ.d is identified in tf;-e o:ffid.ai records of the court as Ca.~ No. 112014. 

B. Pursuant to the provisions ofthe Ciliforilia E~vironril~ Quality_~~ the 
Petitioner and Respondent have met on riw""nerous occaSions over Ina.ity months in an att~upt to 
resolve the dispute in an ~micable ~d const..roctive ~-mer. 

C. Without-admjtting llabiijty 9r guilt, aJl parties desire to resolve this litigation and 
avoid ir..tettrring ;further cost.~ ~~ens~~- ,ru;4 di~t!prlon incident to the litigation. Tb.e pm;ii$' ~Jrther 
.desire to ·achieve a fuU artd co:mP!ete settlement of· all clafuJS and causes of action with reference 
to each other. . * . , .. ·• - · . 

D. Settlement of the di~pute ~o~y~~ FOILA. adqption of a Ie-iiSiative adion. in tl:~ 
form of an amendment to FORA,~s ~~faster Resolutioli-n This lemslative action has been 
idenfilled as ~"Chapter 8 to t.he Fort. Ord."iteuse Atifuority·Mastet Resah..tfrll11._. relating $o Base 
Reuse Plar:!.l".ing and Consistency Deterrr'~nations,, and the proposed legislative action haS beelf 
subject to public ~gs-~. wsc.us~ions. The most recent draft of this legis1ati:ve action. reflects 
the re:.-"Ults of this hearing p~aces~ ~d it i§ a~~<;hed to trtis agre~ent as Exhibit '17 A."' The form of 
t:~e deed restriction and ngtice reguh-ed by Section 8J1l.Oltf(j) an~l(k) of Chapter 8 are attach~d 
to this agre~~ent as Exhibits 11B'~ and nc_n The Sierra Club has reviewed Exhibits ;~A_~-." n;Bf! and 
•ten and the Sierra Club has approved L~e dQ~~ and supports the FORA Board of 
Directors: adoption of this legi$lation in its current form. · 

-
Terms 

T:lle parties hereby agree, warrant, and represent as follows: 

1. FORi\ adopted Chapter 8 to the Fort Ord Reuse Au."th~rity I\-1a..~er Resolu-tion in 
substantially the form contained in Exhibit <,+A"" to this Ag1eement, subject to Sierra Club 

Sierra Club'"- FORA 
Case Number 112G14 l 
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2. . . W1tJiEO~ a~~on o((;hapter 8.iti ·tlla f{4~ 4e$Cribedin Patagra.phl as a.~ 
im!llet!l~~ion :U~~e .. fottl!e ~,PI~ the $~-r{._t\ CLT.JB ~:nd9~re~ ~~ ~Jli~s fue Reuse 

:~~ri;w::,:=s:aa~tte1!:~ 
improvements and infr~~e nece8sary to serve F,Qrl6ra~.. . . . . 

3 a . fu a fo!ril accep+..able t\! .Auihorit¥ Q)~e!.o~FO:g_~ fne SIERR.f\;.. CLUB will 
disn-Jss r-he litigation t~feten~ in ~e ~:. ~prejudice~·.· · · · , 

4, FORA agrees that in the ~;ent FOR .. 4. cenSide-rs any a.~eridmeht to Chapter 8 of 
.;.1 .:.-.0 :n A 'Air-..:.i .... -o, .... · ~- .............. n a. " 1-i ... - • 1 ... • - - • .•• :t. 
me . .r ·,.· .~~ i:Y~er ~e.so.-uuo~ .t<UAfi snau oent11m f11 .. en-v::a9~emai .ass-esg~oni. cons1ster.u: Vl.tlm 

::~===%r~1§f~;::::~ 
In arlditlo~ FORA shall proiEide the SIERRA Ci:..L~ and 1ts ·~th.Jniey oftecord S:t ieast 30 d..rys 
notiee Ofthe preparation of suei'1 err-lf-iro!h~-entai assessment, which shall include &.'"1 opportunirt 't-3 

corn.~ect ~n.S!W~ ~esstt.~ ~n.d #l~l$da:;-s n~~~ ~7Y ~ ... ari~¥on. any proposed 
~-n~Tl&ne!itofqi~ter 8. The: P¥.ti~. fuitner~~ #.l~t ~c~ ~~to ~nrer s w-ill be 
r?vie?/ea'lli~er CEQA· as a L-=eW proj~ not be sukf~~ to.$~· errko~ntal review limitations of 
Puhlic~outces'€0deSevton41166~ ,, · ··· · ·· 

5. FOR~ sbaU fort4wi"tb. upon tire eiecuu,on ofthlS'agreement contribute the ~Jnt 
of$ . ' directlv to the sill~ CLUBi~. ~dtneystov .. ~ds tlietotai cost 
the_~~ CI:':~~s aitem~T.f ~~~.·~· ~e~ 1~~jl ~e Pr:R~~on ~=d fill~ of the P~iticr~ 
and m me negcuanon of¥.~ settl~--r&ato~ ~~ a~t.~;> 7~Iumng tnere¥"1e'W ana comrr.en~ on t¥-e 
proposed C'r~er 8 and the preparation of thi$ ~efitt~ ·Except as cthermse· pr~±deQ in this 
paragrap11~ the parties agree that each party Sf~ be responsible :t~·-nvely forme payn:-ent of 
their own costs, atto.r.c.=eys~ fees~ and all other~ inc..L...-red 1n connection 'Vilith the above 
action or any matter or thing r~~ecting !!~ ref~ clallns. 

·~-~~· 

6. In consideratic-n oft.~ cci\rena.nts mui~utllyand individually un\k-r~~en in. thls 
agr~-nent an-d except as ~p:ressly provided m this .agreement, the SIERRA CLu13, its age.lt"t.S, 
a...~gns- successor~m~inrerest. ·and ·ari¥ oilier perS-on .. w.slg by~· fruou~ m:'i!er-Or in coTh..--ert -with 
any of them hereby U!e".,rccably and ~concL~oirJly relea~ FORA, ft~s n-rembers~ and any and all 

Sierra Club v. FORt\. 
Case Number 112014 
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. .,_," 
·' 

SEITLE1\1ENT AGREE~fENT AND GENERAL RELEASE 

offORA~s or it members' agents~ assigns:- attomeys:r executives':J managers;> officers~ trustees~ 
employees, successors-in-interest, indudh~g at--zy and aU employee$ ofFO~ rt"'$ members~ and 
any other- person acting by,. throu~ or in concert with the~ from any and all charges~ 
complai..tJ.ts, ciai!ns~ a!iegations, actions, caa..1ses of action~ liabilities, of?Iigations~ costs (other tha..~ 
as set forth above), cont.t-oversies, damages, ri~~ts, of aey nature whatsoever;, knovvn or 
unknown, suspected or u.."'1Suspecte£L wi"'.Jch SIERR.A CLUB has ·or mig.ltt have had, or which 
SIERRA CLUB at any time heretofore had or might have had~ claimed to have or may claim to 
have, agaiP:.St FOR.~ it~s :members, or any or all ofFORA's or its m~mbers~ a,.gerr..s, assigns., 
attorneys~ managers, exeet.wes,. officers, employees, SUC£e$sors-in-interest., or any other person 
at FOR.A... or its members acting by:t through, under" or in concert with any of them, 1-vhich were 
raised or might have been raised in this litigation arising out of the preparation of the Reuse Plan 
and the Environmental t~pad:· report prepared in ooBju---r:.ctioo with $e Reuse P,l,an. This ;elease 
sr..all not apply to fi.lture ac-J.ons taken by FORA to. 8.J."llend the Reuse PI&--t or Chapter 8. 

1. Each party expressly waives and relinquishes ~-:1y and aU rights and benefits 
afforded byCalifo~a Civil Code Section 1542:- wr..ich provides: 

u .. A... general release does rtot eXtend to claims which -the creditor doe.s not kp_qw or 
suspect to exist in his favor at the Lime of executL:,g th.~ relea...~, which if known by · 
him must have m?-terially affP....cted his settlement with the debtor. 11 

- · "" h · h 1-,.,, ~ • '- ~ • f~""' ··"' · r· ·~ C .. - · i 5A2 .tach OI t e parties ereu j express1y VYatVes i!.te plOV1SlOnS 0 val1!01T'.US. "-'lVl.i oae ~ecflOn .. ~ , 
and each party further expressiy waives any right to invoke said provisions now or at any time in 
the near :fut-~e. 

8. The plli-ties recognize ~d acknowledge that factm:s which have ir;~ced tpem tp 
enter into this Agr~-nent may tth""U out to be incorrect or to be different from what they had 
prev-iously anticipated~ and the parties hereby expressly assu.1·ne any and all of the risks thereof a.11d 
further expressly assume the risks of -w-ai'viF_e the rig.t1ts provided by California Civil Code Section 
1542. 

9. Each pa..-rty represents that in exeo..1ting this Agreemer...t, the pa.rty does not rely upon 
~4 ~a~ not relieq upon a..-rrt. repre5eittation, prowJse~ or statement not expressly co~tamed here~~ 
and t~at parry b25 conferred V~ifi~ 1ns~ her~ or its b"\.vn attorneys wi"tl~ regard to the basis cr effect of 
this Agreeir..ent. 

10. Each pa-rty denies any wsrongdoing in this matter:: at1.d tbe payment of alTJ sun1S of 
money in the matter is not to be deemed an adrr..ission of guilt or liability. The pat-ties understand 

Sierra Onb v* FOR.;\ 
Case Number 112014 
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SETTI.E~NT A.GREEMENT A:N'"D GENERAL RELEASE 

d .- t - 1 • ,4 "" i-. ~ . . • h. A d .. ... . . t.! ~ an agree tnat tms settt.ement 1s maue t;p _t:mng,~~ end tot ~e contestea &1 .. _ corJ1pl~ ntlgatH)rl wmcn 
has resulted from the filing of the 1\.foriterey co~t¥ Superior Court Case Number 112014. 

T
• . . .. _. . . . . . . : _;.;·. . ··_;J ;;:t • p . -:_ .... ~ • ·. ·. . • ,.. . . <"' ....... ~--... . !~ 1 1.. • __ 1 

11. ~ms Agreemel}t 1s exec;r~t~ ~~- Uc~nver~ m tr..e-.-:.tate or Lall!~~a~ aiJ.G tue ngn'S 
and obligations_ of tl}.~_ partie~ he~eunper shall be bo:nstrti¢ and etiforced in accordance with t.he 
lawsoftheState.ofCalifq:ma. ' ... · · ·· --~·;··· ·. ·• .' .. . · 

. . . : . ·. ·: ·.·. -: .. : · .. · .. _ . .:. . .' : '· .. · :. :, ! '.· . ;' _:'. : . -~ . ·. . . .\. . : __ : : '. :· . . . . . . . . . • _:. . . •.' 

. 12~ ·. This Sertle?l~nt i\gr~mettt and Gen~ral Release is ~he .complete ~gryement between 
-u~ partie~ and supers~d~ ~,_Y pryg:r a$--~m~s o~ discussions betw~n the Paffi.es: · 

. _.;·_:· '·;_: . ·.-.''"'·., •. . . . '• ...... . .. 

13" · Tnis Agr~~~~~ ~.~e ~¢cute~ by tll~ p~es many nu1pb~ of q1mterparts, 
which are defined ~s dupiicate ori~.i~s, ~ ofwhich taken together shall ~e const!Y::~ as on.e 
document. · · · ·· · · · · · - · · 

14: 
~· ~·· ~·-i.·· ... : 
.1 une IS o! tne essence. 

. .:· ·.- ' 

15. . T~~-r~d~ ~gr-ee _t~7t~ejl ~ave -~epar.-ately and independenuly thorzyJgrJy discussed 
all.~pec~s Qfft~~,{.igr~rnyr:t ~~~ ;t~~ t~~ ~-ur~, and that ~ey have carefu~y_ !ead arrd fully 
unaerstan-d alr o:t the pro>nS1op.s rontrunea m t.f."H.uS .. <\gt-~n:~-

II! 

PLEASE READ CAFRFULLY .. THIS SETTLE1\'1ENT AGREEIVIENT A.i"l\f.D GENERAL 
RELEASi.mCi.t:Ji)ts A RET.RASE oF ALL KNOviN.&~-rn. UNKNovt"N cLAilVIS .. 

S~4Jl-'\CLUB 

1998. 

.... 

Sierra Cliib v. FORA 
4 
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By___..f£~~~/t#_.liA-t--""-fl --
P.1lt.hority Counsel 
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A RESOLUTION OF THE FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY, At"\4El\fl)ING SECTION 
l.fH .. OSO AND ADDING CHAPTER 8 TO TilE FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY 

MASTER RESOLUTION1 RELATING TO BASE REUSE PLANNING AND 
CONSISTE.t'l'CY DETER..TVIINA TIONS 

Section 1. Section 1.01.050 of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority Master Resolution is amended by 
adding the full-owing definitions to such section in alphabetical order: 

~~..A..:ffected territory» me41-is property withi:.i the Fort Ord T erritocy th41-t is the subject of a 
legislative l?nd use decision or fui application for a development ~~tlement and srith additional 
territory within the Fort Qrd Territory that may be subject to &'"l a.d.f~stmerrt in density or intensity 
of allo-wed deyelopmen:t to accommodate development on the property subject to the 
development entitlement. 

'~Army urb~d fQotp~t~ r;ue~TlS the Mait1 Gat~son Area azid the .Histor,ic East Ga.rrison Area as 
such areas are described. in the ReuSe Plcu-1. 

""Augmented ~ter supply~ means au1y souiee of potable water in excess of the 6,600 acre feet of 
potable water -from the Salir.a~ Basin as al~owed under tt~ Reuse Pl~""l. 

"Development entitiements~1 incl-udes bL--t is not limited to tentative and final subdivision maps: 
tentatr"<~e, prelirr.dna.ry~ and fir~l_parcel ~ps or minor s-.;:bdivision maps; conditional use permits, 
arlnlli--rlstrative permits. variapqy,;, '~~e pian reviews,_ and bm1ding permits. The t~ ude"ielopment 
entitlemenf' does not include the t-erm ·'"1egisiati~e_ land use permits~~ as that term ·u{ defined i.~ tl't..is 
rvfaster Resolution. In additio~ t.lJe term ~;:development entitlement" qpes not-include: 

l) Construction of one single f(U-:rJ!y house, or one multiple :fa.-m1y house not 
exceeding four units.: on .a va~__nt lot within. a11 area appropriately designated in the 
Reuse Plan. 

2) ImprovQ--nents to existing single family residences or to exis~ing multiple ~dy 
residences not excet?ding four unitS; induding remodels or room additions. 

3) Remodels of the inte..rior of any existing buildi..qg or str!.lcture. 
4) Repair and maintenance activities that do not res-ult in an addition to") or 

enlargement ot;, ~y l;:,~dir..g or s:~acture. 
5) L'lStaUatio:n~ te~J.t:Ige and placement in Service or t.he replacement of any necessary 

utilir-y connection between an ~xisting service facility and development approved 
purs-ua.,t to the Authority Act. 

6) Replacement of any l:!uilding or st.-ucture destroyed by a natural disaster with a 
con1parable or lik~ building or structure. .-

7) Final subdivision or parcel maps issued consistent with a development entitlement 
subject to previous review aiid approval by the .t\..ut.hority Board. 

8) Building penr.it issued consistent with a development entit!ernent subject to 
previous re'-iew by the Authority Board. 

l 
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"F o:rt Ord Territor/~ means all territory within the ju..'isdktio:n. of tt1.e .A..nthority. 
- . . ; . 

'':Habitat Mirr~g-ement Plan~, mean~·~he Fort Ord'!r..sta1~on-:-W1de l"Yfulti-Species Habitat 
Management Plan.~ dated April~ 1997. 

<~L2.1""1d use agency'' rr..~arl$ a member agency -;-vith la.'fld use jurisdiction ove:r territory witr.Jn the 
.;. • "!'. .. 't .. ·· ...... :~--- _· ._, . 

JUnsoict~on of ~"le Authonty .Board. 

~·Legis1ative land pse ,~ecisi-ons,'~ p.eans g;enerai plaz.'"lS,. general plan a.--nen.dmentS,. 'red~Jeldpmem: 
plans~-redeve1opm~ plan ·~¢hrl~ents, zbnmg orclirtance5, zo~e 9istrict maps or amendments to 
zone dL~ct rnap~·~n,d. zrir;4~ ·ch~ges. · · 

L<f-.Joticed public hearin~ means a ifabtid'he~~-ig noticed in th~Jofiowin$ mar~"1?f 
1. Notice of the public hearillg shall be posted on the. pubji9 ii!e~.fug room at 

t..ite FORi\ o~'(;e at least 10 days befqre t.he date of the. hei.~ng; anrl 
N6tice'6fth~fpriblic hearingS~~1 be ~ed or _4elivere~ ~t.Ieast: 10 days 
prior to the affected L:ll:-d use agency" ;o al!Y ·p~san yjhct ~as IDea an 
JP!\~:,.~~ i~ ~*p~r~~: wl:~ ~a; requ~t:iispeei81 ~~tit~; an? . 
No~ce ~~~e paol1c !l~ar..ng sr~ o~ P¥!J9s11~d at leasr __ 1 0 ~ays oefore me 
~te of t~~e ~l;~~rig ~,at 1~t'o?e.~eJ¥fP~~ .. ~~ 5~Jrf~I ·~it~~I~~o~ wi!hin 
the area tnat tn~e rem prope.u.y trun 1s tne suoJecr or me·pubhc neanng lS 
'1ti8itkii . ' . ·.· .. ~ . ~ .. ·. . - ~ 

~~Reuse P~at~~· ~~~the pla~forret1se:,and ~eveiopm~-:1t Oi.me tei.i~~ory within the jurisdiction of 
tb.e Authoriry~ ~- ;z_-rpe~.ujea .·pr ie"'<~ed from tjme io time~ and the. plans~ policies~. a<Id programs {}f 
the Auu.~ority :Bo¥~~6Iudhig the l\ia5ter Resob.t~on. · 

Seetkm. 2. Chapter 8 is added to the Fort Ord rv!aster Resolution to :read: 

. CR.-U?TER 84 
BASE REUSE PLA.t~~Th"G ti ..... FID CiJNSISTENCY DETE&i\iliNATIONS .. 

(a) The Authority Board shall preparer adopt re¥iey.:,_ revi~e from time to time~ and 
maim~ in. a Reu .... ~ Plan for'u1e USe ar.td developrr:.tent of the territorj wJ:hln the jurisdiction of the 
,A.uthority. Such plc.u-'1 shall contain the elementS mandated p~rsua11t to the Autiorir.r Act and such 
other elements, po!icies7 and progra.•!lS as the Authority B~ard' may. ir1 its ·soie discretion, consider 
and adopt. · · · · · 

2 
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(b) The Reuse Pl.a~ inducting aH elements, policies~ arid prograrr..s adopted in 
corljunction with the Reuse Pian; and 6.l.iY amendments thereto~ shall be the official and .-::ontrolling 
plan for the reuse of t4e Fort Oid territory for the purposes specified or inferred in the Authority 
Act. 

{c) .All general and specific plans~ redevelopment pla..TlS~ and all other community and 
local plans regardless cf title or descriptio~ and a_~ a.~ndments thereto, and an policies and 
programs relating to the land use or the constructio~ ir~tallation, or maintena.t1ce of capital 
improvements or public works v1ithln the Fort Ord tei.t~tory) shaU be consistent with th.e Reuse 
Pian of the Authority &~ the plans and policies of the _Authority:~ ind:uding the Master Resolution. 
The Authority shall ma.lce a determination of consistency as provided purs"...Iant to the provisions of 
the Authorit-y Act ~"1d,. after the effective date hereof; this Cl--tapter. 

(d) A revision or other char.tge to the Reuse Pian which ocly cu..::rects Fort Ord territory 
and only one of the member agencies may only be adopted f:?y the ft...uthority Board~ if one of dte · 
foHowing conditions is satisfied: 

(1) · rne revision or other change was initiated by resolution adopted by the 
legislative body of the affected land use agency and approved by at least a 
majority affinr..ative vote of t!r..e Authority Board; or 

(2) The revision or other chart.;ge was initiated by the Authorit}· Board or any 
entity other than the affected land use agency an.d approved by at least a 
two-thlrds af:Ii~JE.tive vote of the Auth.ority Board~ 

(e) AH propet-ty transferred from the federal gave;.lli~er4 t-o any user or purchaser, 
whether public or private, shall only be used in a manner consistent with tl:re Reuse Plfu~ vvit.h the 
following exceptions: 

(1) 

(2} 

Property trdDSfeHed to California State Uni-ver~=ty o:r the University of 
California and such property is used for educa.tion..aiiy related or research 
oriented ty.JJ.-poses: or · 
Property transferred to the California State Parks and Recreation 
Department. 

(f) No 1~-:id use agency or any 1ocai agency shall permit, approve, or other~vise allow 
a:.Ty developm~it or other cha.ng:e of use. or approve anv deveiopmer.J.t entitlement, for properr-.r 

."' ... "' - .. ~.. '. .,),.- • J •-e. ... - - ., 

~ntrun the temtor:y of the Authonty that 1s not consistent w1tn the Reuse Plan. 

(g) No la."1d use agency shall. issue~ approvef or otherwise allow any building permit 
until all applicable pern1its~ development entitlements, and approvals required under law have been 
approve~ includ~..g" but not limited to:t the approvals and permits descP,bed and enumerated in 
Section 3. 7 of the Final Envi_row.uental Lrnpact Report fur L1w Reuse Plan. 

(h) The Reuse Pian shall be reviewed periodically at the discretion of the Authority 
B d T• A . . B ~ . ll ..... - II . d .d . ,.. • oar· . ne uthonty oara sna pertorm a tu reassessment reVIew~ an cons1 eratron or tne 
Reuse Plan and all ma.."ldatory elements as specified in the Authoritt "'.o ... ct prior to the allocation of 
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an augmented water supp-ly~ o.r prior to the issua1"1ce of a building permit for the 600 1st new 
:residential dwelling u:nit {providfug a total po:pui~t.ion of353000 p~sons} on the Fort Ord teu~tory 
or by Januaiy 1, 20! 3? whichever event occu"TS first :t-Jo rr-rure than 6000 r.tew dwelling units shall 

r be perrru=tted on the Fort ~v1rd.~ territor-r U•""' .. ·itll such reassessment~ review~ and consideration of the r - , -
1 Re-use Pian has b{;en prepared~ revit;w~, and adopted purs-uant to the pro-v'isions of t."le P._uthorirt 

Act. the },/faster Resolutior ... and an aouficahie enViroiunemal 1aws .. No development stillli be 
. y·, ....-..-..:.·· . .c:. ·~ .. .~. .. , .-· _:··-~ ··~-).:,·· ·'; '- .. :/n . ..:."!.---, ... · .. _,; ... ;. 1: • 

approved oy FuKA or any umfi. us~ agency or toca1.a~ency alter rnetrme spec1ned ~n tb1s 
~u~section unless a.id lli"1~i ¢e ,fiate,r i~i,1pl!~~: ~~t~~1at~ .~~sposal~ ·road_ capa;ity ~ ~d .. the 
mtrastr~cture to supply tn~s~ retsq~rqs.Jo st;rve Si.JCII d~veloprn~nt have. been 1derrufiea, 
evaluated~ assesse!L and a pl~ f.:;r !!litigation lias been aaopterl·as rr>._qtiited by CEQA, the 
Authorit-y Act, the t-i.fuster Resolution, and a~ appli~...ble eir·lfroilirienthllaws. 

(i} The failur~ of any perso11 o:r enmy to receive notice given pursuant 't:) this Chapter 
shall not constitute grounds fur 1hTi yqurt to.~nvap(late the action on: any legislative act or - · · · -·· · · ~ ~ c~ · · ·· ··' · ··- ·· ~~;!...:: h · ·· -..l · · • · • a.eve1opment entrti-ement pursuant to tms napter tor vn.uc . ..-.:requrrtru notice was giVe..i.. 

(k) In t~e f:;Vent ~;e Au~o.rity ret~es,. purchases, .or acquires, by ~Y means" fee 
interest title to piot.efty within-th~ Fort Ord tell itorj, the Au.tz~ority shcill recor~ a COV<;;:fiant 
running ~ith ti1~ land arl~~sing ~: f.~t?re o~-ln;!"¥ of such p:ropeittJ that develo-pmeJ;lt. 311<fuse of the 
p--zoperty is ~ubject to the P-.._f;us-e Pl?.n.-::;rrdtFJit development of such. property stan be liT..ited by the 
Reuse Pla.ti~ the priilide.s and progriL"ils of the Ji:>.Uthority:t mciuding the M~~ter ;f{esolutio~ and/or 
CCH1stra1"1ts on rlev~lop-rnem: identified ill the Ke'..!S-e p~-,_~ irlclu-ilir..g lack vf a~-ailable water Sllpp1yj< 
wastew'ater a."'!d solid V-iaSte disposal capacrry:1 and inadequate ttansportation &"ld oti~er services 
and irrfrastruct'.Jre . 

. FROCEDURES FOR CONSISTENCY' DETE&ifl!NATIONS FOR 
LEGISL~ .. tr~i:E LAND USE DJ;CISIONS. 

(a) Each land use agency shall strbrr..it an 1egis1ative land use decisions ~ffecting 
• ,. . • . . f" ._. ~ . • • ' ·E . ,...,r'<£0' .... . . • 

properi:f m tt~ terntory o ... the Au~nonry to tne xecutr-;e vrn.~r ror review an4 processm.g 

(b) ftJI subtrdssions regardine a legislative i!h~d use decision.J)hall h1.clude: 

.... '\ 

.; ... - . . s ' . "-""' :1'7; ~ • ,.. ..... •. ,"! .. ~ .. ot • 

\1) A complete copy o:r 'L'le leyslatrve la..id use dec1smr~ mc1udmg remted or 
.,... ~ 1 t... ~ ·~ appi1cam-e tex~ maps~ grapu1cs., ano stua1es; 

(2) A copy of the resolution or o-rdi.'1a1"'1Ce of the legislative body approving the 
legislative 1~"1d use decision, adopted. at the conclusion of a noticed 
~ • ,,., • • " • ,... • ·.- • , < "' A • ~ neanng cerntymg tnat tne port.1on or a Ieg:rs!anve lana use ~ecrSlon 

4 
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applicable to the Fort Ord territorf is intert..d.ed to be carried out in a 
manner fuHy in confonnity with the Reuse Plan and t..'he Authority Act; 

(3) A copy of an staff reports and materials presented or rr'...ade av-ailable to the 
legislative body approving the legislative decision~ or any advisory agency 
relating to the legislative iand use decision; 

(4) A copy of the completed environmental assessment related to the 
legi..slative land use decision; 

( 5) A statement of findings and evidence supporting the fh"Lilings that the 
legislative land use decision is consist~'"lt with the Reuse P~ the 
Authority's pl&"1s and policies,. including the Iv.!aster Resol-u-tion, as1d is 
otherwise consistent ~~th the Authority Act; and 

( 6) Such otr.ter materials as the Executive Officer deew.s necessary or 
appropriate a.'"ld which have been identified within 15 days of the receipt of 
the items descnbed in subsectio-n (b) of this Section_ 

(c) V/ithln 90 days of the receipt of all of the items described in sl.rbsection (o) above') 
or from the date the Executiv-e Officer accepts the submission as con1plete, v:-1hichever event 
occurs firs1: the Aut~~rity Board shall cond-uct a noticed public h...~..fug, calendared and noticed 
by the Executive Officer, to certizy or refuse to ce:t tify, in whote ·or iTJ. part. the portion of the 
legislative land use decision applicable to Fort Ord territory. The Authority Bo~d shall adopt a 
resolution maki.1.g findings in suppert of its decision, such decision. ~haU he rendered within tne 
ti.t'lle frame described in tlrls section, and s-uch decision shall be :finat In the event ·the Authorit:.;­
Board fails~ V~-ithin the time frames descnoed in this sectio~ to conduct a public h-earing or ra'fce 
action o~ detenr.dning whether the lar1d p:se decision is consistent with the Pian and the .A..:uth.ori..+y 
Act, th-e land use agen.:;y may fJe, upon ten days notice, a request with the Executi-ve Officer to 
r~ve u\e n-Iatter place<j on the next Board agenda for a noticed public he&,.;illg to take· action to 
consider the consi$tert~ finding and the B-oard shall take action at such noticed public hefu-ing and 
such decision .shall be final. 

(d) In the e'-'-ent -u;e Authority Board :finds~ on the basis of subs'"ta..qticl e..;idence 
supported on the record, that the legislative act is cons=&ent 1-vith the Reuse Pian a..11d this Chapter~ 
the Authority Board shall certify the· Iegisfuu"ive act pursuant to the pro·visions of the AuthoritY. 
Act. 

( e} In the event the ~4\ut..IJ.ority Beard-refuses to certifY the legislative 1&"1d. use decision 
h, whole or m part~ the AutJ!ririty Board~ s resolution It'~ :findings shall include suggested 
modifications w.Picr~ if adopted and tr£U"1srr-:itted to the Autho~ Board by "L~e affected land use 
agenc-t~ Vvi.U allow the legislative land use decision to be ce1--tified_ If such modifications are 
adopted by the affected la'ld use agency as suggested, and the Exeo.1tiye Officer confirms such 
nlodifications have been made1 the legislative land use decision shall be deemed certified. In the 
event the affected land use agency elects to meet t.he Autz1ority Board's refi1sal of certification in a 
rnanner other than as suggested by the Authority Board, the legislative body of the affected. land 

• ..... r .. . - 1 . 1 • 4 .. d . . ' - . . ......ffi d fi 11 ... r... use agencv snaJl resuonut lts egts1at1ve 1a.11a use ec1S10n to tt1e .txecU11ve u ,cer a..11 .,.ChOW t.~te 
~ ~ ~ 

procedures contained in this Section_ 

5 
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(f) No tegislativeJand use d,edsion shaH be deerrred final and complete~ nor shall any 
- • ~ ~ • .A ~ ·. . .....- ' • ·' ·• . . .• -. ~ •- ~ 1 • t • f ~ l.cuid use en.utiement oe 1ssueu .tor property arr~cted otne~"lse pernutteu. DY sucn :.egrs1at1ve ana 

• • •. . - ~ ... • - .. . •. . -· .. · . A ~ •• ~ - ~ • "" • use dw...s1on. uruess rt nas oeen cer"iJ.hea pursu~"!t to me proce. ..... ures aescnneu. m tms ~ect10n. 

...,..h . h . B "' . . 1 . .. . . ·- - ..:~: • .-1· • -{g) 1 e Aut ... on.ty · oara ma-.r Dihy retuse to cenrry zomng oru1nances. zomng .wstrict 
2 1 .. 1 • "! .. ~ • Jt . : .• "'!'"- . . • .... . ! . 'l . .. ~1 ...... ., .. 

maps,. or otner !e§I&atr".r:e :&"1{1 use .uec151on on tne grounos tnat sucn actWf.l$ o.o not cor..:torm 'W1tl"~ 
or are inadeq"Jatt;; tQ. ~-r:ry <rut, the provisions of ti\e geri.eral plan., certified as consistent with the 
R 

-1 ...... ··'t.. .• ·.~· ··:.f':-l.;•·t... ;·~ ............... t..: .. _ ... 1 _i'-1;< ........ ..:r 
~ euse r.a.n pursufu'"'lt to tuepnJvrsions o .. t.n...s ~ecn6r~ appn.~ .. ,c:~ult; ro t.ne meet~ propert"j. 

. . 

(h) Nothir~ :in thls ·se~~~n ?rin Ltlls Chapter shall apply to or be ~¢nstrued as 
adversely affecting ~y.~nt.iStency detQ""!TJ!nation pr~viou.sly obtained by a land. us-e agency and 
certified by the Au~?rity Board pur~iar.d to &~· A...utrl'ority Act. 

{ .., A·~ h . f"· •.. - .. ~ . ~· ,_, F . ,....., • . • J.. .. aJ ui~ tu~ portlQ.!} o. age?e~ ptan ~11cawe to on: un1 temtory na;s vecome 
effe...'"iive:< dev~lop~e!J,t r.eyie-Vf at1W9lii;.i ·within ·~..ich portion of territory sf"~ll be e~ert!j?ed by the 

l:!E~i:!]:;11~~~~:;;:~;i~J:3t~=~ 
Section 8JJL020 and the decisitmS isS-~~ 'denying~ or conditio.ruiJly issuing ¢tevclopment 
entitlements are.~co:qJ?i?ten! with~ adopted an-d ee;tified g~"'lerat'P.~ the1teriseP~·ana is in 
compliance w-ith CEQJ(.. and ai16ther ~r-plicable la1iif-s •. 

~ . ,H. : " : -: - . . :, . ,. .. . f. . .._ . . ~ ~ •• . "" ;.. • ~ . .<'. ~· ; ' •. 

(~} A'" cteo~10~ on aevempmen~ entu:1emen~s o.:r a if;nd. use.agency ~~ting property 
within the te1fitory of tlie A~•thorlty may be revie~ved by ~1:!e Aui:hority Briard o11'its ov,'n initiative:! 
or may be appealed to· the Authority Boar(L subject to the pr9cedures sp~fie~ in this Section. 
No developmeui.. entitlement shaH be deemed :Hnal and complete unfJ t.i:te appeal ~'"id r~ .. iew .. ·;; ~ . .. . s ... ; . "" ,... - ,..,. . .-. .. ~ " .... {'1,1 .... sn ~.,.·- ·cr-. - h i.. proc..eaures spec1.ueu.1n p1.1s ~ ecMon E.I.~a -:Jet..r~Icns o . ..J.t~v--+u ana ~,vi.U '-..t ortnlS 1.apter Jomveueen 
a'XhaliSted. 

( c} The-~and use agency appro-vir~ a develop~~nt erititlem~ ~~iL~n th.a jurisdiction of 
the Authority shall provide notice of approval or C.'Jnditiort..al approval to the Executive Offic.er. 
Notice of approv-al or conditional approval of a_development entitlement shall inclu4e: 

fl'\ A . . . . • . - ' - • + • t • ' •• 
\ ·J n co:r.r.piete copy o! tn.~ z;pprqv~~.Ci.~J:;Igp;r!ent ent..-t .. e."TTent~ mcnmmg 

related or: applicable text, ntaps:> graphics:> and stud!~. 
·. . .·.:-- oil ~ ~ • '-s' ··: .. . .. p'1 '! "! 

A copy or at. stan: reports anc. ma.tenrus pres.erru;d or m.aae avauame to any 
~ · ... ·.. b ,,.1.. ~ - d . .. 1 . . '.· .. • . neanng -C-u.J tra.t reV!ewe · the o.eve!op~ent en_tttemenr. 
- . . . F • • • • ";_1. . . ·~ • ~ ~ 

A copy o ... t.ne co.mpietea. env1ror..n:~nt:u assessma.tit related to tt1-e 
development en.t.it!ement. 

r 
D 
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RJ!;VIEW OF DEVELOP:M.ENT ENTI'ILEMENTS BY lNITL4..TIVE OF 
THE AUTHORITY BOARD. 

WitrJn 3 5 .days of the receipt of aU of the notice materials described in subsection (a) of 
Section 8.01.030: the Authority Board, on its O,_;:t.m it-lltiative, may consider a resolution setting a 
hearing on a development entitlement affecting Fort Ord territory. The Authority Boa:rd may 
continue Ll:ie matter of setting a hearing Or:£e for any reason. In the event the Authority Board 
does not act to set the :matter for hearing within the 35 day time period or at the continued 
meetin& whichever e-vent is last::! the ded~on of the iaP.d use agency approving the development 
entitlement shall be deemed fh"la! an.d shall not be subject to review by 1he Authority Board 
pursuant to Lttts Section. Nothing in thl~ se~on st-1411 be con.st.1.-ued as abrogaiw.g ailY rights that 
any person may have to appeal developn:..ent entitlements to the AurJ:tont:y B~ard pureu&-rt to 
Section 8.01.050. In the event the Authority Board sets the matter for h~ng, such hearing s..hall 
commence at the first regular m~g of the 4nthoritj Btr-ard foUriviL:"'lg L~ date d1e AL.Tthori:i:}' 
Board passed its resolu-tion setting the matter for heat=.mg or .at a; special bearing date prior to such 
regular meeting. The _A.rr"t.hority Board rnay continue tbe matter once. In t:b.e event the Authority 
Board fails to take action on the development entitle.rnent v.tiih~n such lli-r~ period, the 
deveiopm~""lt entitlement shall be deerc~d appro-v"ed. 

8..!!1.050.. REv'lE\V OF DEVELOPM&'IT ENTITLEMEI'£1S BY APPEAL TO 
AUTHORITY BOARD .. 

(a) Within 10 days of~!and use agency·appro~~ng a develop:merit entitlement, any 
person ag_mieved by that approval and who parrJcipated e~ .... her oral!}' or- 1:n 1¥ntin& in that 
agency's he&-ing on the matter, ~v file a written appeal ofs..1ch apuroval with the Executive 
officer:: specincany setting rciili th~ grounds ror tn~ ~ppeaL which ;ri311 oe limited to issues raised 
at the hearing before the land use agency. The person filing the appeal shall pay a filing fee in ~'1. 
amo-unt equal to the fee fur appeal of com.bined d~..rclopment permits as established by the 
1vfonterey County Board of Supetvisors for the cost of processing the appeaL The Executive 
Officer· shall set, schedule, and notice a ptiblif hea.rir..g before the A1Jtbority Board. In the event 
the Au-thority Board fails to act on the development entiLlement v.i.tJrln. the time periods specified 
h""l this Section to conduct a public hea.."'ing and take action v..-ithi.-·1 60 days on dete:rr:PJnmg whether 
dte development entitlement is consistent with the Reuse: Pian and t~-e P....uth.ority A~ the land use 
agency may file~ upon. ten d~ys notice~ a requestylitb the'Authority Board to have th? matter 
plated orfthe n·ext Board agenda for a noticed public h~arir.-g to take action to consider the 
development entitlement. 

(b) At the time and place noticed by the Executive Officer~ tile Authority Board \v=JI 
conduct a hearing on the development entitlement. The Authority B\!ani may continue th-e matter 
once for any reason. 

(c) Said continued hearing must be rescheduled to a date ttaat is not later tha.:."1 35 days 
from the date of the initial hearing date. L"l the event t.t~e Authority Board detemtines the 
development entitlement is not consistent with the Reuse Plan, the development shall be denied 
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and the Autho:rit-y Board)s decision shall be finaL In the event L.1.e Authority Board dete..-mines the 
.....i 1 · • • • • • ... t. ~h n D 1 ,..• A _..-. · ·· u A h 1• ... ueve4opmem: entruement 1s cons1stent Whu t e Ketl.se .:;_ ta!l..,. tn:e __ u~.nonrj .uoaru s. lall approve t..l'le 
development entitlement_ 

SUPERCESSION., 

In talc11.g action. on an legislatjv~ i~nd d~cisi9l-is and .for ie~e-w of all cltfvelopment 
entirlements. the A-u'thorit-v' Board shall act ·as a resnonsibie a£encv iu~cler CEQA 

-'1 J . , . .!,:"= : ~ . ., 

A..rry alli'T:inistrative decision made by the Execnrr¥e Officer may be appealed to the 
"' - • • ,.,... .· • - $ .·.. "' .. 1.... * $ . 1 • ~ ~-· • • ,. I 1.. n ...... - ... .r....uthomy .ooan1 Witllln. :> nays oy comp .. et,mg anu !•!mg: a n.:;:nce o:t_appear at "t.1e '-'mce ot tne 
Exec~.rtive Officer. · · 

Article &.02. CONSISTENCY DETERi\fiNATION CRITERL~. 

LEGISLATIV""E L.t\ND U~E ':iiEdS10N CONSIStL~CY ~ 

(a) In the review~ e;,taiuatior~ and deterrrillla:tion. of consiste:r..c-v regarding legislative 
~~~~ :se 'de~sio~~ tt~~um,?rjty B~atd sllal)~ ~$appto~.re_ ~-!egislatrve lind ;se decisi.;:"l for 
v;iucn there !S suostarr-~ ev'ld~ca sl.ippo;ted oy "Lli~ r~ord~ tnat 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

Pr~des ~-~~d;u~~ 4~~~ati~~ .~§ .. ~~k:rw!,~or? int~se l~~d:uses than the 
use.s ~tteu m. me P.....euse P1an: for w.~e a..u..e;_;tea terrn:or4: 
ProV:4es a deyelopment more' ify!L~ than ·th~:'fknsrt:t of u~ 

• • '-'·· '.'. · .. :.·.· . .- ~' · .. · ·:. .............. ·;._>,·~· .· •. · 

oern .. Itted m t.'le Reuse Pian fo-r tile afi~ed ter:ntory--: 
is not in substantial confri ... l~~ce "iVi~h ap-plicable. pro~&~$ s:P-edJied in the 
Reuse Pian and Section ·g .02.020 of this ~faSter Resolu-tion. 
Provides uses wbich conf.tict or are ~!compatible with uses permitt~d or 
afiowed --~~ th,-e ReJ.s.e Plan. for the affected property or ·which conflict or are 
inc.cmpatible wiill operi space, rec!eational~ or kabitat rr~agement areas 
within the jurisdiction • of trre Arit&oruy; 
D • T • • ~ t..., "h ... • ~ J ~ • ~11 • • 1\"n oes not requrre or otnerv.nse·p.rovm.e _o.rt =e nnai"1.cmg anotor rnsra. .. an ....... ~ 
cor!Structior~ and maintenance of all infrastructure ner-....essa.--y to provide 

h•. . . . ~t.. ri • h . . ~ . 1 • adequate pu~Hc ser·l1ces to t.xe property covereu oy t 1e teg:Is1at1ve :mna 
use decision; at.."'ld 
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- ( 6) Does not require or otherwise provide for implementation of the Fort Ord 
Habitat 1'-Aanagement P:Ian. 

(b) FOR.!\ sf'..all not preclude the'transfer of inter~ of land uses a.t""ldlor der.sit-y of 
des-,relopm~nt involving properties Within the affected territor.t as long as the land use decision 
meets the overall inter..sity and density criteria of S~--tions ·g_ 02.0 I O(a)(l) fu""ld (2) above as iong as · 
the cumul~'h:Ve net density or intensity oftti.e Fort On:l Territory is not increased. 

(c) The Aut.lJ.ority Board, L."l its discr~..ior.., may fuu:i a legislativ~ lani;l u~e decision is h1 
substantial conw.liance tJ<.zith the Reuse Plan v..'hen the Authorit'J Board finds that the app!Y-...ant la.~d 
use ag~cy ~as demoP..s.trated compliance with the provisions ·~eci:fied in this section a11d Section 
8. 02.020 of this ~~faster Resolution. · 

8,01.020. SPECIFIC PR.O.GRAMS A.l~D MITIGAJlQN:l!~~S~~·FdR. 
1N~LUSION JN LEGISLATIVE L.~-n USE D:E.CISION$. ··:. 

'----........ _,...,.._,=~~ .... .......::~-~-~ .. ::" ,... ~~ ... ~-~~-=::;.:::.~~~............ --~~-

{a) . Prior to app(oymg~~ d~_!clo~~!~®~~~is,:;.e.achjttl:~ use ~ency shall act to 
protect 11~11~ai resources ~id open spaees~Fort Ord t~ozy b,y including tire ope..-ri space a;-:1d 
conservation ptilicies and programs of'L~ Reuse PI~ aWii~le to~ land lb.~ agency~ t"llto their 
res~:~_v.~_~eJ:~ Ztr,~~ ~~ ... ~.~~._plariS. -·-·- -·--·----.. -·-·~------~·-··------... _ .. ___ ... 

(1) 

(2) 

Each 14~· us-e agen&.r shan review ·each appl.~ for a developrr...ent 
en~tl~~""it, for c&Ir~abih...~·with ·adjaeent open space t~nd ~ and 
reqlllrf! ~tabl~ opeil space butreisto be m-(A)rporated mto the . 
deV~fopin~flt pfariS Ofany poteFna11y fucompatfule·1ar~ uses is a ~ondition 
otpfl1Jecr approval. . " ·. o; ' . 

\'\tnen buffers are required as a con-dition of approval adjacent io Habitat 
Manao-emer..t areas the buffer shall be desial...~ in_ a tr~ruer .con...~u;nt v;,.ith ,..,...., . . . ..... ,. ...... .. -.: . -
tho5e ~.d,elines set out in tl:-e Habitat Management Plan. R9ads shall not 
be a!kn:ved witilln the !Y.:tffer area adjacent to P.uiliitat Y....ar..agemen.t areas 
except for reS-.... ~cted access mah-rtenance or em-ergency access roaqs. 

{b) Each land use agency shall include policies and programs m their respeCtive 
applicable general, are~ &ld specific plans that will enst.-rre consistency of ~ • .rture use of the ~ 
property V~~ithh"'l the coastal zone th!ough the n!&"'ter pl~ning process of the California Depcu-"!.nlent 
of Parks and Recreatiorl, if appli-cable. All fhfure use of Sllch property shall comply with the 
requirements of the Coastal Zone p.1anagement Act and the CEUliforr..ia.Co~'"'tal Act ~..,d tr.& co~"'tal 
consistency de~rmination process. 

(c) 1\tfonterey Coun~J shall include policies at:~ progr&"TTS in its applicable general, area, 
and specific plans that will ensure that :U..1ure development projec+Q at East Garrison are compatible 
¥~ith. the historic context and associated ~~d uses 2l"'1d development entrJ~-nents are appropriately 

9 
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I 
I 

I 
-1 
I 
f 

I 

I 
l 
i 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
conditioned prior to approval. 

' . . :. ' .. . . . : .... · .... · .... ' . · .. · ·. .· ·. ·' ' ' . .·· . 
{e) Each iand use agency sh~n include policies at.1d pro~~s in. thetr iespe.cl,ive 

applicable general;; are~ and. specific plans that sti3ll encourage la11d -~that 'are c~rtjp~tfb!e with 
. . f . ~- .. . - h' 1' rl - .,. ' l d ... ', ,' . . .. tne character o me s-urrmJn.ctmg mstnc'"!.S o:r ne1g~oornoo ... s an.d aiScourage new .~.an use acttmnes 

which are poten:t,ial Ii~fe~. an?f~r h~-.r.ards ~~thin and in close proximity. to residential areas. 
Reuse of property in the ~-.l1cy.u~~~z~d f~~~pnt eo~id b~· enpcrutagea 

' .· ·.· :· ....... , ... · .. ··' 
(f) . E~c.h land use agency Vtith jurisdiction over pn'.roert'f in tr,.e .Arrr~ urba.."Jized 

fE;t!~1~il~;:~!~i~lE!~;;:of 
genera!

2 
ar~ a1·1d specific plans. · · · · · ·. · .· .· · · ' 

and deS~eJf&W~if.;::!t:i~~~1:;=~~~t~~~ 
Road PI~~¥ }\fea_. fne ~~t·(t.<~on shaii-~:~annt;S ru1rlzo~~d. for pl~ed development 
~xed usess::-or:sstent 'V1it1\ tne Re~,. P!a:~ ~ ordef tq ~!:1p!:e~4rt ~tj% ~sp~, of the plan, t.~e 
'-'ount-j sr~h aaopt at least one spec-.u1c plan ror L~e .bast ~~spn ~ea a:IJ.d such specific plan shall 
be approved ~efore az."!y development entitlement shall be approved for such ·area. 

Each l&"lrl_ use agency shall a;ippftb~ f9~Qy;?.pg policies an~ progra..-ns 
· (1} ·,A solidwaste·reductio!l andrepydmg;prqgii~-alJplicahte to Fort Ord 

{7) 
'\.-,/ 

temtort oon~~~:!t,~v4t~ t~e,prcnf~onsof the (;aliforrJa L!tegrated 'YVaste 
Y~m~gement Act o,! ~~89~ P~lic,llesour~~ Code Section 40000 et seq. 
A progra.1!1 that vAll e~~~ tha% ~~ph lfu""1~ use'agency carries out all actJon 
necessary to ertSUre tha± the msta1iatiori Of water sUpply wens comply VF-itr~ 
State ofCalifbmia "¥later \VeU Standards and wen standards established 
by the Monterey Cou-tll:j Health Depart..~nent and 

(3) A program that will ensure t.iJ!lt each· la.t~d use agenc-y ca:-ries out aU actions 
• : • . • A" · tt.. ·• ~ 5t"' ,..,..<:> ,....t:'p " 1--.lo - .... ~ --... ne-cesscu")' 1:0 ens-ure tr..ar vl:Smounon anu t.ura0,., vi ~ Ch.a'-'l.'"' .:u~v. .avu-

10 
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potable water comply with State Health Depa.rtm.ent regulatioz1s. 

(j) Each land use agency shall include policies ar.-d programs in their respective 
applicable gener~ area, and specific plans to address water s-upply and water conservation. Such 
policies and p:rograrr..s shall include the following: 

(1) Identh"1cation of, "SNith the assistance ofth.e Mo.'"lterey County Water 
Resourr...es Agency al'""ld the Monterey Peni.11s11Ia Water Management 
Di~"tri~ potential reserv-oir and water impoundment sites and zoP.ing of 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(6) 

(8) 

(9) 

sue~ sites. for water'Sh~d use} thereby predudi.-,g urban development; 
Cornu-renee working with appropriate agencies to detex-mine the feasibility 
of developing additional water su:pply sources~ s-uch as water i.--nportarion 
a..lld desalination, and actively pa.-ticipate in irnp!e:metrJng the most viable 
option or options; 
Adoption and enforcement of a water conserv-ation ordinance which 
includes requirements for plnmh,}:ng rwofrtS a:rlrl is at ·least as stri.'1.gem as 
Regulation 13 of the Monterey PePJ..!lS'uJa Water M2.1.1agement District, to 
red:t.Jce both water dem~ and effiuenf generaf'~n. 
Active participation in the support of the development cf~~rec!a1-ned~, or 
..:'recycled"' water supply sources by the water purveyor and the '?1fonterey 
Regional Water Pollution Control Agency to ens-ure adequate \vater 
s-upplies for the territory witl-J.in the jut'!Sdicticin of the P...u.thority. 
Pr01.--n.otion of the use of on-site water collection~ i.'"lCorporafL.ri~ meas-ures 
such as cisterr..lS or oth~ appropriate impn:rvem.ents to collect surface water 
for in-tract irrigation and other pon-potab!e use. 
Adopti~ of policies and p~~~ consistent \Vith the -~ut.lmrity,. s 
Development and Resource l'vianagement P~ to establish progr.aw..s and 
rr..=nnitcr development at teu;tory within the jurisdiction oft.~e Authority to 
assure that it dc-es not exceed resource co:r.IStrnints posed by water supply_ 
A.l ~ ,.. • I d ~ . . -th..... ·~1! h n.uoptlon or apprOIJl.""l~ a..J: use reguiat1ons um:~.. v:F.li ensure tnat 
development enritlemeiT-i.S will not be approved until there is vef.lication of 
an assured long-term water supply for such development entitlements_ 
Pa.-ticipation in the development and L""nplementation of measures that W.!.H 
prevent seawater intrusion into L~e Salinas Valley and Seaside 
groundvv-ater basir:.S. _ 
L-nplementation of feasible water conservation met~ods where and when 
determined appropriate by the land use agency, con~l.Stent wit.h the Reuse 
Plan~ including; dual plumbing using non-potable water for appropriate 
fim-ctions~ cistern systems for roof-top run-ofe mandatory use of reclaimed 
water for any new golf courses; limitation on tt~ use of potable water for 
golf courses; and publication of a..t1.11uai water repoi!.S disclosing water 
consumption by types of use. 

"k" ..... h l \.. ... . ~· . d - ~ . . 
{ .. ¥ .tac.. and use agencv snail mclude r:whc1es an :oro2:rams m tne1r respectiVe 

aop-!icabl; generaL area. fuid snecifi~ plans that wi.~ reouire ne~ d;elooment to demonstrate ti"'iC.t 
... .._.;o ., ... • i. • 

ll 
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aU measures wm be taken to ensure that storm water runoff is mi:nk"""""lized and infiltration ffia}irnized 
in ground .. ...vater teeharge areas. Such policies rufd p~ogr-a111s shall include: 

( 1) Preparation, adoptior~ .and er..tbrcem~nt of a ~?rm water detention plan 
" . 'd .,.. : . ...:;. 1 . . . + .· . .:l~ ~ .. ~ ·. • . . . ~ ~ ' l ·. . .-.1· tnat 1 ·entmes porenuai Storm Yia ... er U>.;;ienu_on a{;Sun1.anaimn .. em~-l!.:a 1on 

measures to he co11~dered in ,ail. new deve!opmen~in· order to increase 
gtoilild-vvater rect<~ge and. th~1~ ~erluc~.pO,teriti£ilfcrfhrther seawater 
intrssion and provklefor ~. ai;gn:t,~ntati,9n o(fufllr.e ·W2f~ suppEes. 

(2) Preoaratio~ adoption. and enforcement of a Y.ulS!ei'D~amaQe Pla"l to 

··~:re~7r~i:~~1~~~~~~ 
pot~r1ti~ fur grour;({water degr~~tion &'-1~ prova]~·~tirthe long term 

. m~nitoring andrnalli~ena.,ce of all storm watei.retenrl-6ri ponds. 

(1) Each land use agency Sha~· ~dppt pblidi::i~d progra.-ns that ensu.re that aU 

~~~~: ~ ':;~~:;;';{~;!:~al#~$!~w?Ji me hazardaiis and to"-~ materials 

(m) Eacl,lland, ~~agency s~an ~~opt ~Jd ·~:r~_~rce an ordh-w.nce acceptable to the 
Califurr.Ja Dep~-ttr..oQ"!t ofT.oxic $u]jsiim~~s, Co-ritfoi '('TITSC,:) !6 contfol and resLict exca-v"ation 
or· arry soil mo~;ement on tho~~ pars-eis offh-e, fo~. 9rd ~~:fiitpi)l wi-~ch ~lei:Ef cbntarr.dnated with 

=~~=::;i~;~!a~i!~~~~l~~:!;:~£~aar~e 
to such ordinance witr.u:}ut ndor· notice to ·~md ·aririrovru bv· DTSC . .. ·,.;:;, . . -.. . ...... .; 

. . . .. -
. . . . 

. . - -
... ..,. . < - .' --~ ." . .,·~-~ . .. ~--·=. __ ·--~-e-: :.i-· : _,_, --:·:- . • .., .. .. 

(nJ Eac~ ~a use age11cy snah n:.cmde P9kc1es and prograrr'lB :rntnerr respectlve 

::!,~~0g=J:e~:k!~:~~~~::;:r::::.::::n::~rtation 
star.rlards ofthe T ransi:mrt::ltiori A~eb-4;:i ofMonterey Cout'1ty. Such p-olicies and programs shall 
include: 

(1) Establis.hrnerit and pro-~~ion of a dedicated fiinding mechanism to pay for 
the ·~fair share't' of u~e impact on the regional tra.TlSpO:r+<.3.tion system caused 
or contribiited by dev-ei~n:::i-it -ou retrit-erJ v.ri:thin the jurisdiction of the 
·A 1-ithority; arid 

(2) Suppo~ and participate m regional and state planning efforts and fundi.""Jg 
. . . ·' .. · . - . •,..7. . ~ • "' • ~ 'i-r- ~rt . • ~ rt -"· ,.. ~~ prog:."""ams to pr'OVlue an ernClent. :rP.~~"'!.nat .... J..anspv ~.anon en:o:t t.0 a."'ce:;:.;:;) 

Fort Oi-d tcl.ritoty. 

( o) Each 1~na use agen~t shall include policies. and progr~~s in their respective 
applicable generaL area, cu"'ld specific pi&'1S u'iat ersure that L1e design and cons-truction of ail major 
arterials wirrLirr t'4e territory under' the jurisdiction of the Authority .. will have direct cormections to 
h •. • . . .. · . ~ . . . • ·h . R ....... "" t 1 • . I. ,. - "1 • ~ ~ the regtonai net-worK consistent wn:h t.tle _euse rlan. :sucn p.ians and. po tc1es shai. mcmn.e: 

12 
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(I} Preparation and adoption of policies and programs consistent with the 
Au"'thoriti~s Development and Resource Management Plan to establish 
programs and monitor development to assure that it does not exceed 
resource constra.h~ts posed by transportation faciLities~ -

(2) Design and constrd:ction of an efficient s-ystem of arterials in order to 
connect to the regional tra.r1sportation system; rurd 

(3) Designate local truck routes to have direct access to regional and r-..ationa.l 
trtlck routes and to provide adecr...mte movelilQ""lt of goods L."1tO and out of 
the territory under the jurisdiction of the AuL~ori:t"y. 

(p} Each ~"'ld use agency ?hlill mc~de policies and programs in u~eir respective 
applicable general. area~ a..11d specific p1a."1S tp pro\ride regional bus Service and facilities to serve 
key activity centers atiq key corridors within the ter .. itory under the jurisdiction of "t1.e Auth.ority in 
a n:1am:-er consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

( q) Each land use agency shafl adopt policies and pro~--ams that e-nsure development 
and cooperatioo in a regic-nallaw enforcement program that p:rore-bte5 joLm efficiencies in . . . ·n _:1 .:!~ • ~ « .~:. • ... -A .d ~ ~ .. 1--
o-peranons~ lOe..Tit1 es au.mtionallaw er.uorcement neeu~ au.-.u. 1 -entn:1es a."'lU see~ to secure the 
appropriate fanding mech&-risms to provide the :reqirlred services. 

{r) Each land use agency sr..all indude policies and programs in their respective 
applicable generaL area.. a..r!d specific plans ¢at CJl?L..l!"e cl~veJopment of a regional fire protection 
proa-EL'"'n L~t promotes iomt efficiencieS t~ operation$,. identmes addiriortru fire nrotection needs~ 
... ....... -0 "' - ... 'I 

&~d ~d~:rtmes and seeks to secure thf;; appropriate :P..u'"ldL"'lg mechrurisrns_to provide the reqUiTed 
ser~n.ces. 

( s) Each land use agency shall incl,ude policies a.---rd prcgr&-ns in their respvoctive 
applicable generaL m-ea, and spet.."ffi.c plan$ .thai- will .ensure tfu.tt native plants from on-site stock will 
be used in alllar .. dscapir.g except for turf area~ 1h~ere practicai ·a11d appropriate. In areas of nau~e 
plant restoration, all cultivars~ includi~ but not limited to, w . ..anza.tiita 2.i!d ceanotlms, shall be 
obta1-red from stock originating on Fort Ord territOt-y. 

8 .. 02J)30* DE)l""ELOPI\tiE...~T ENTITLElVfENT CONSISTENCY 
~ . . "'. -:-. - . 

(a) In the review~ e'\.raluatior..,. and determination of consister1c:y regarding any 
development entitlement presented tD the Au-Jicrity Board pu1suant to Section 8_01.030 oftbjs 
Resolution, the Atrthority Board shall witlntru.Id a finding of consistency for B.n"f development 
entitlement that: 

(1) Provides an intensit-y of land uses w:r.ich is more inter.tSe than that provided 
for i.~ the applicable legislative land use dec.LSions ~which the Authority Board 
has found consistent with the Reuse Plan; 

13 
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{2) 

{4) 

(6} 

Is more deriSe th.a.ry_ the densirj of de-ve1opm~nt permitted in the applicable 
ie§islativ-e land use decisions which t~e A•~thorit}f Board has found 
ronsist~nt~>ith the Re-use Plan; 
Is not tonditioned upon orot..'i.d.ing, pet-:f-0~£~ fundi.11fr. or making a,'1 

agreerrtent ~Jata.qteeing L,e provisior~ perfo~e~ otF .. mding of all 
programs applic-able to the deye~o.PW~i;!t enti=tir;meni as specified in tr£ 
RetisePlan and in Section ~.02.020oftrs.isM~i.:erRe:Solution and cor..sistent 
win~' !neal deterrninations m2:d,e IT,ist,:~nt to S~ction ·8.02. 040 6f this 
Resolution .. 
""1"1! .: • ..c '!' . .., . - . ~ . :. ,.·, , .. , "! ·~ 1' a- ,. 

rrov1des uses wr.ucn cq:rrfuct or are mcompatibte wrtn uses pernnttetl or 
aliov.~ ;n the R~~s~ Pl:an for_the atf'eq?d pro perry or w~hichconflict or are 
incompmi.bl~ .. V'Ji+JlQpen sp~ce:2 iec±"ea'ti?nal or habitat rr;anagement areas 
~ the .fur~dictiotl ()f the iuitPp~; · · 
Does not req-uire or otherWise ·pro;Ad~ t"o.r ti1k :fmanc;rig and installatior.., 
COP...stri.lctlOn" ru:.d maintenance of af! i.o"!fr~~.k.-t-~~ neeessiuj ttr pro;.ide. 
adequate Pti~Hc serilices to the. propem· covered b-y the applicable !egishttive 
i(h'"id u...~ decisicilL · 
Does not require or.othe~EiseproVi:de for implementation of the Fort Ord 
H ...,.h:t.,.._ 'l!. .K ,..._.,.-..,.~""""' ... D~'::ln . 
~ AiJi .. i:it !V.i~i~~~~i~i.. J.. ~~. 

{7) Is not consistent \"ith the :Highway r·scecic Corridor design standards as 
• - ~ • . d - . 3 • • '"' A • • - ~ s-uc.n Si;an~a~ !I,';~Y. oe_ .. ~~vef.?pef1 a.'lo. fpprovea oy t..te "'...utnonty l:$Oaru. 

ADOPTION OF REOul:RED PROG-1?_4.1\-ISs · 
. -- ' .- . . ,. :· ... ·_' ·-. 

No development entitlement shall be· approved or ·CO±~ditioruih~ ·approved v.ith1r;_ the 
jurisdiction of any land use agenc:,.r until the land use agency has taken appropriate action:, m th.e 
discreticn'ofthe Iac.duse agenc;r,to a.dopt.'the p~o~~tSspecified in the Reuse Pla~ the Habitat 
Mar=~3emem P~i;;=tt.e De\~op~~i~nt and ~e£-:)urce Management Pl~ the Reuse Plan 
En~~omnental Impact Report rvt.1:igation_'and 1vidrJtorlng P!ari and tl'js rvfaster Resqlution 
applicsbie to such deve16p~t e:ntttletaeiit. · · ·, · '· · ·. '· 

8.0'3J)l0. 

DEFThiTIONS. 

Except as otherwise defined in fr.is section, words and phrases used in thls eiiicle shall have 

14 
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the same m£a~g given them by Chapter 2. 5 of the California Environmental Quality Act a1'1d by 
Article 20 of the State CEQA Guideli."1es. 

8.03JJ30 .. STATE CEQA GUIDELINES ADOPTED. 

The At.tthority hereby adopts the State CEQA Guidelines C~Guidefines~~) as set forth in Title 
14, Section 15000 et seq. of the Califowia Administrative Code and as rr-..ay be amended from time 
to time. This adoption shaH not be construed so as to lim!t the Authority:1 s ability or aut..hority to 
adopt additional implemerr..ing procedu'Tes in accordance with Section 15.022 of such Guidelines~ or 
to adopt other legislativ-e enactmerus the Board may d~m nec;:essarJ or convertlent for the 
protection of the enviror.anent. 

8 .. 03.040,. 

(a) 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER~s RESPONSIBILITY. 

Tne Executive Officer shall~ consistent with FOR.4.. obligations: 
(1) Generate and keep a list of exf!l.upt projects and report such list to the 

(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 
{10) 

{11) 

. Bo~-tt-
Conduct fu..itial studies~ 
Prepare negative declarations. 
Prepm-e draft and fi~j:ll em:zironmental impact reportS. 
Consult with ~nd obtain c..orr.unents from other public agencies and 
mernbers of t~...e public'with regard-to the e:nVu-~nta! dfec~_of project..s, 
inclurl1ng Gscoping~ ~eting~ when deemed necess&-y or adv1sable . 
. Assure adeqm:tte opporttinfty and time fo:r public re\riew ac-d con-.unent on a 
d.1lift environmental uupact report or neg~ve ~ec...lararion. 
Evaluate the adequacy of an e;.-rvi_romttental i:up~ r~+t or ~atrve 
declaration and ro..ake appropriate recommendations to the Board. 
Sub:rrJt the final appropriate enviromnet'"'io'fai document to the Board who 
V~i11 approve or disapprove a project. The Board has the authorit-y to 
Cc;!tifY the adequacy Of the env.ror~"n.enta! document_ 
File docurr:.~s required or authorized by CEQA an-d th~ State Guidelines. 
Collect fees and charges necessar-Y for the im.piementatign of this 
artide in a:fr~urits as may_be specified by the Boat~ by resolutjon and 
as may be a.:--nended from time to time. 
Forml.llate rcles and regulations as u\e Execut.1ve Officer ro..ay determine 
are necessar7 or desirable to further the purposes of Llrls &'"ticle. 

CO!\-IPLETION DEADLIN'"ES. ... 

( ) 
....... ,. • "" 1 • r' .,_ - h - .. 1.. • l . .. a 1 rrne tlimts ror co:mp1etlon or tne v&"'OUS p ases ot tue env"!fonmentat re-Ylew 

precess shall be consistent with CEQA and Guidelines and those time limits are incorporated in 
this article by reference. Reasonable extensions to these time Ii.mits shall be allowed upon cor.rSent 
by any applicant 

15 
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Time Hrr...its set forth in t.his section shall not apply to legislative actions. 

(c) 
appeal. 

.A..11y time limits set forth in this section shall be suspended during ~~ ad.rnidstrative 

PlJBLlC NOTICE OF Ei"i"'\TIRON1Y1ENTAL DECISION~ 

I'-.. N···r·+ ... ~ ~- · - ...... h t · · .... act .,.... t.&J .otlce o ·u~e aec1s1on o:t -v.;rxe._ er o prepare an enVlronmemai nnp"" -t. repo.1'> 
negative d-eclaration, or declare a project exempt sbali be available for IYJ.blic reviev.r at the Office 

...... t. ...... • . o·.s::t::! .,.- . . ,. :f' " • • . l..~'l: .. 'L • 't~.J • • . • h CE"""" .l. o:r W.ie .c.xeo.J.trve •l,llcer. l"40tlces o~ aeCislcms: sual! .oe prov10v..J. m a man..~ cons1stent 1A<1.L""' "\lr--
.and the G~ l1de!ines. 

(b) Notice that the Au-thority propose~;t.9 adopt a negafrv~ d~la.r:ation shall be 

P 
·A~- _.. ..~. + 1 .. - r~.rr.}.;r,.... - ...... ~ -" ......... .., M~ · .,. l- · ·A·· ... ·-·-,roVJ. ........... u ro t.ne punuc a~. reast. v..on '1.1 \1 uays pnor .t.O tne a&e or -i.ue me .... i.1r.g at Wl.!1{ili. ccns~erawou 

of adoption of the negative decfui'ation sf-~ be gi'c-1en. 

(c) Noti~s: of decisior~ to prepare an e~-tironmental llnpact repo~ negathre 
de-claration, or project exemption srl211 be given to an orggni'tiitiom aJ.ld .inrlividuals t-zvilo have 
previoH==ly requested s-uch. notice. Notice shali also be gr,.>-en by publiCation one time in a 

... · • • jf .. .;. .. , .•. , M. C · 
ne,.,.~paper or ge11:era1 v.rcmanon m _ onterey om1ry. 

APP:Efi...L·OFENVIRON~~1ALDECISION_ 

.£ "'!!:. -"{"'Ill:~ .·.• • · l"t.rt .. · :: _-.£ '· ...: • • ~ • ·TYW', • · • "' "~ :f • ,.. 

\a; . Wtt1-.un L."!t-een (I 5 j a~ys after tne cxecutrve Omcer J?f0"\-'1des m:m5~ or a aoosron, 
anv interested nerson rrrtrv axJIJeal the decision to the Board by comule:ting and£lin~ a notice of 

.,. 'II: ~ ..z....-« .,1; ·; ' .,c;. ,. .·· ... ·-... ·" . ..,:a: · .. (' ~ 

appear at .. ne Office Ot the Executrve Officer. 

(b) The appdl&:t shall pay a fee in the &.-no~-nt as spe~ified m Section 8_01.050 (a) of 
tl1is P~solt!"tion .. 

(c) Tr~ &~SJ. U sf-.tall hear all appeals of decisio~ on ~1Y en::rriroru-nental issue. The 
he8.1ing st..all be _liu~ed to eonsid.eratiorti; of the en:v-!ro:mn-ent~ 1 or procedu~ iss~lles raised 1Tj the 

n..,.,......,. w -t-.. • ... ~ · -k · ..,.. • ...... h A • • ,;.+t.. cc:.... ... t"';.c;:: h ~1 <- A .appeifQ;,t..:.;,. ln ... he wu<.ten no~).ce or·apperu.. 1 •e u~c-iSlon or .. ue ~ec-t!L.tve vl.llce:r S1~au _u~ preS'Jm-eu 
ri • • 4 +:< .... - -1~ b ;.t.. 11 "- r ~, . . ~··.· . T~ ...... • correct ana the tmra-en 01 proox shau e on tu.e app.e11antJo.~~JJ&# 94>.~~#}. r~ tioara rnay 

uphold\:lt. reverse· the· eilviioturiental decision, or remand t.i:.e decision back to the Exec-u.trve Officer 
if substantial e";ride..'1ce of procedural or sign;ficant nev:; environmental issues are presented, 

(d) Tne decision of the Board will be fi...YJ.ai. 

16 
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8.JJ3.080~ CO!'t"'FLICT DET.ERl\-fiNA TIONS. 

This article establishes procedural guide11nes for the evaluation of the enviro:nmental factors 
concerrJng activities 'Within the jurisdiction of the At.r..hority fu"ld in accordance with State 
Guirlelin.es. Wnere conflicts exist bevneen this a...rticle and State Guidelli"1es3 the State Guidelines 
shall prevail except where this article is more restrictive. 

Section 3. This resolu.i:ion sb..all become effective upon. adoption.. 

PASSED AtiD ADOPTED this __ day of _____ -" 1998,.upon motion of Member 
______ ___,. seconded by Member ~r.d C8.1-ried by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: . 

ABSENi: 

... 

17 
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DEED RESTRICTION AND COy~A_NTS 

This Deed Restriction and Covenants is made fr.J.s _. _da-y of , 199 . 
by the F crt Ord Reuse Aut..ltority ("O~·ner~)~ a governmental public entiit organized unde"rthe 
Iav;-s of the State of Californi~ 'With reference to the following facts and circum$tances: 

A frwne-r is the owner of the real property descnbed in Ex..lrlbit u A~ to t.his Deed 
Restriction and Covenants (~~the property"), by virtue of a conveyance of the property from the 
United States Gove.m.-nent and/or the United States Depa..-tment of the p._rin_y to Owner in 
accordance 1.:~l~tl1 state &'"ld federal :law,.. the Fort Ord Base Reuse Pla.Tl Ctthe Reuse Pian2")~ a."ld the 
policies 4l'ld jirograms of the Fort Ord Reuse .A...t..~lh..J"ifity. 

B. Future development of the property is gov~11ed under the pro-visions of the ~...1se 
Plan and other applicable general pl~1 and land use ordinances and reg1llations of the local 
governmental entity on which the property is located cor.tSistent with the Reuse Plan. 

C. The Reuse Plan provides that the property can on~y b~ used atld developed in a maimer 
consb~ent with the Reuse P1&"1... · · · · 

D. The Reuse Plan recognizes L~t development of all property con-veyed from_ fORA. is 
. d h .. - .. . . ~ ~ . ~ . . A M "i. 

constr~-e, y .a.TIU:tea water, sewer, tra.bporran~n, ana oth.er Ir.J..last.ru.ctnre servrces 8-l."'1G vY otuer 
residual effects of a former :milita.)" t~~arior4 including unexploded ordnat"'l:ce .. 

E. It is the desire and :it"ltention of frw--uer~ concurrently 1f'r1+Ji its acceptat"1ce of the 
conveyance of the property, to recog!'.ize at"1d acknowierlge the existence of these development 
con9;raints on the property and to give due notice of the same to t.he public and a.""Iy f-.:u.--ure 
purchaser of the prof-en-f. 

F. It is the intentiw""l of the Ow-ner tl-JZt this Deed Restriction and Covenants is irrevocable 
and Stt..tE.ll constitute enforceable restrictions on the property. 

NOW~ THER.crOFF,. Owner hereby irrevocably covenants that the pr-operty subject to 
&Js Deed Restriction and Cove-uants is held and-shall be held, conveyed, hypothecated, 
enc-~-mbered, leas-...-=-<1,. rented, u_~d, occupie~ and improved subject to th.e follo--w-ing reS"'..rictions 

~ h . . . f ~ be h .. ctt. ~ and covenaJlts on t 1e use a~-d. enjoyment o the property , to attac eo to an vecom-e a part OJ. 
the deed to the property. The Owner~ for itself and for its heirs~ assigns, and successors in 
iuteres+~ covenants and a01 ees that: 

•' 

1. Development of the property is not guaranteed or .. Harra11.ted in a..1.y rn~1ner. Any 
development of the property "viii be ~id is subject to the provisions of the Reuse P~-; the policies 
and programs of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, indudL.I1g the Authority's Master Resolution. and 
other applicable general plan. a.11d land us-e ordinances and regulations of the local goverrh-nental 
entity on \.vhich the property is located and compliance with CEQA. 
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2. Development of the property ~ill onl-y be allowed to the extent such de"velopment is 
consistent with applicable local general plaiLS whlch ~..ave been determined by the Au--thorit-y to be 
consistent with the Reuse P~ includi.TJ.g ra...;:f:r~ints relating to water s-upplies, Wfu,'tewater and 

,;.;# "'f • d::.- '! .. ~ . . · .. "_1 ,: . . ·'-•. if . ~ ~'"' .... ... ~ . -:; 

so he. waste !sposat .. road capac1rt~ ana tne ~...-"atlatr'.:.1."1ty o.t tn.:rrastrUcn....rre to supply tnese resources 
and se:Plices~ a.Tld. does not exceed the constrair.J: li:rtJtations ·describe-d in the Reuse Plan and the 

Final Progr~ En\-1tonrnentar I.rrtpact Report bn:the Reuse Plan, 

3~ 
----~--------~----------------------------------------------~----------~----------

_ ... 6~ ... o:'.Ti.~r }i9fees to record tr.ds Deed Restricti-on and Cover.arJ:s as soon as possfole after 
the aa..e or exectt"'tton. 

Tk- "'""rrTN~~ -.· "\~~m..;... ....... rl!:...... •• ~ ~ • +-. ... A ~ .. · ...1 D. -.t Vv 11 ... '1:!. ...... ~ Vl'.:t:ii::.J:.ti:!.vl:', me Ioregomg rr..stru::ffi=ent was S"'uuscnoeu on tne nay lliiv year 
first above ~mtten .. 

--·-------- ----·----- -- ------·--:.ABJa~e~~~EBG!v:f:ENT-- -------·-------~-------.. - -----..... -----

... 

/ 
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NOTICE OF APPLICATION OF PLA_N Ai\-rn DEv"'ELOPlViENT LrirflTATIONS 

This Notice of Pian Application and Development Limitations is made this ___ day of 
---------·' 199 __ ~ by the Fort Ord Reuse .An:d1ority r~ Authority:'), a govemm.ental public 
entity organlzed under the laws of the State of California, mth reference tv tt~e fo!lowi..tlg facts 
ana crrcu:rr.LStances: 

.A. Authority) cor..sistent v.r1th its charge a:nd obligations under the Fort Ord Reuse 
Authority Act\' Title 7.8$, Section 67650,. et seq.,. of the Califorr;.ia Govfu-nment C-ode, has 
prepared 8-i"'ld adopted a Fort Ord Reuse Plan (the ~'Reuse Plan~} as the controlling plfu-ming 
document reg-ulating and limiting development of propert-:,• -within the territory of the former Fort 
Ord W.illit.ary Res~-v·ation. 

B. Fut'ure development of the property is governed under the provisions of the Reuse 
Plan, the policies and prugrams of the Authority. fu.cludi.i.g the Authoritt s Master Resolution, 
and other applicable general plru, and land use orrli_naTtces ar~ regulations of the local 
governmental entity on v;hich the prop-ert; is Iocated. 

C~ Tne Reuse P!an provides L~at the property can op.Jy be used and develOI_;~d in a mam1er 
consistent -with the Reuse Plan. 

D. Ti'le Reuse PlatJ. recognizes that developm-ent of all prcperr; conveyed from FORA. is 
.. . • r . - . . . t......, • ,... • constrmnea oy .&ruteo. water:5 ·i.ewer~ tra."'lsponatro~ &"1!1 ot1.fJ¥r mrrastPJct'ure serv1ces. 

E~ It is the desire and intention of Authority to give dL~ notice of-the existenc-e of~ these 
develcpme,.'lt constraints en the prop-erty 'Within !i~e te.u:D:ori of the form-er Fort Onl 1-..-~lit&-y 
Reservation to Ll)e public &zd any frure purchaser of the property. 

NOW$ THEREFORE .. Au."thority .hereby gives notice to the public and any and aU fhture 
o"l;:~!!ers of propert}~ located on territo~-1 vmhin the boun.dw.;es of t_P.e f~rmer Fort Ord i\lf.ilit&y 

- - -- -- -Itesei=Vzti~-rtbat-. ____ ~----- _--· _.... -· _____ ---·- _ .. _. _ --- _____ . ____ -·-- ---··---

1~ Development of the properrt is not grJ.ararrt:eed. qr \VarT$.-~ted h1 mTf ~.az-:u1er. P.Jiy 
dev-elopment of the property will pe ~""id is subject to the provisions of the Reuse Platr, the policies 
and progra.rns of the Fort Ord Reuse P....u:'"iliority. including the Authority's "tvfaster Resoiu.tio~ ::~nd 
other applicable general plan and land use ordinances and regulations of t"he local govem-nental 
er.:.tity on v;hich the property is located and comp!i&~e vvith CEQP. .... 

2. Development of the property will orufy be allowed to the extent such de<-1elopment is 
• " 1- -r• • ~ • t 1 • L ~ • • • d " ~ t... • A •• 1-. • -: conststent w1tn appncaole iocfu generru pt&"ls wmcn nave oeen etermmea oy tne .n.Utuonty to oe 

consistent with the Reuse Plan.l' including restraints relating to water su.pplies, wastewater and 
solid waste disnosal, road cap:acirv> an-d the availabi!it'i of i.t""lfrastru:cture to supplv these resources 

~ ~ .. 1 ....... .. _., • "" .. "'J. • 1;1 • .~ .... -:-~ .. 

and sennces2 and does not exceed tne coiLqramt tiJmtatlons descnoed m the Reuse .J:iiim and the 
Final Program Enviro:r.unental Impact Report on the R....:.use Plan. 
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,.., 
..;). 

IN" VIITNESS WHEREOF~ the foregoing instrument was subscribed on the day and year 
first above written. 

Authority 

ACKNOWLEDGlvfENT: 

--- --·-·--- ---- -·-· ---... --------------------------- -~--· -~---· --·- -·- -·- -·--.. _ .. _ 
F:\ WPWIN60YIX1\FOR.4.\DE.ED..RES 
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MONTEREY COUNTY 
RESOTJRCE MANAGEMENT AG:ENCY 
Benny J. Young, Director 
Carl P. Holm, AICP, Deputy Director 

Michael A. Rodriguez, C.B.O., Chief Building Official 
Michael Novo, AICP, Director of Planning 
Robert K. Murdoch, P.E., Director ofPublic Works 

October 23, 2013 

Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
Jonathan Garcia, Senior Planner 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A 
Marina, CA 93933 

Attachment G to Item 8b 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

168 W. Alisal Street, 2"dFloor 
Salinas, CA 93901 
http ://mvw .co. mon terey.ca.us/rm a 

SUBJECT: 2010 :tv1onterey County General Plan Consistency Determination. 

Dear Mr. Garcia, 

This letter is provided as the County's responses to corriments received during the General Plan 
consistency determination process. 

Overview 
-In 2001, Monterey County added the Fort Ord Master Plan to our General Plan, -yvhich the FORA 
Board found consistent :with the Fort Ord Reuse Plan in 2002 (FORA Resolution #02-3). In 2010, the 
Fort Ord Master Plan (FOMP) was updated to recognize actions that the FORA Board had already 
·taken. The changes included references to the Land Swap Agreement, the East Garrison approvals 
(both of which were found consistent with the Reuse Plan by the FORA Board) and other minor text 
changes made in consultation -yvith FORA staff. There was no intent to change any policy or program. 

It has come to our attention through the consistency determination process that the 2001 :Nfaster Plan 
and hence the 2010 Monterey County General Plan does not accurately copy word for \vord several 
Base Reuse Plan policies and programs. Policies and programs certi±1ed by FORA for the 200 I' plan 
were not changed as part ofthe 2010 update. The County has stated its intent in the language of the 
FOiv1P and the subsequent resolution to carry out the General Plan in a manner fully in confonnity 
-vvith the Reuse Plan, -vvhich includes the FEIR, Implementation agreen1ent and the Authority Act. The 
County submits for your consideration that ful±1lling the intent of the policies and programs is more 
important than whether the language is identical benveen the FOrv1P and the Base Reuse Plan. In this 
case there is significant history in the Fort Ord Reuse Plan, and in the FEIR that shape and guide how 
the policies of the FO:Y1P are interpreted and applied. The County submits that while the language is 
different, the implementation must be consistent with the intent of the Reuse Plan, as such the Fort Ord 
f./laster Plan should be found consistent with Reuse Plan. To demonstrate this, below are the County's 
responses to conm1ents received during the consistency determination process describing how the 
plans are consistent. 
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Comments and Responses 

2010 Monterey General Plan Consistency 
Page 2 

Issue 1: Parts of the FOMP [Fort Ord Master Plan] reverse specific changes mad~ in 
response to comments in the Fort Ord Reuse Plan Final EIR. 

County's Response; As noted above it was not the County's intent to change anything as part of the 
2010 General Plan that had not been acted on by FORA. The policies and progr.~ms do seem to be 
based upon the draft plan evaluated in the DEIR for the Reuse Plan. The question is whether these 
polices would be implemented in a manner consistent with the plan. Those policies identified are: 

• Recreation/Open Space Land Use Policy A-1. The word change from "shall 
encourage the conservation and preservation" to "shall protect' 

This word change in the FEIR was made as a result of potential Land Use Compatibility Impacts, 
specifically concerning the ~'Frog Pond" which is L.~ Del Rey Oaks, the Police Officer Safety · 
Training (POST) facility that was relocated by the Land Swap Agreement, and the Youth 
Camp/East Garrison development that has already been addressed through approvals of the East 
Garrison development and Youth Camp restrictions in the HMP. The concerns behind this 
language change have already been resolved through :implementation. 

• Recreation/Open Space Land Use Program A-1.2- program calling for Natural 
Ecosystem Easement Deeds on "identified open space lands" omitted. 

This program also -vvas the result of the potential Land Use Compatibility Impacts described 
above yet the County is committed to complying with this requirement through plan 
implementation. The item is included in the County's Long~range work program. 

• Hydrology and Water Quality Policy B-1 andPrograms B-1.1 through B-1. 7. 
The language of the FOMP is not identical to the Reuse Plan, but the language has been included 
in other policies and programs in an equivalent or more comprehensive manner. 

• Hydrology and Water Quality Program C-6.1- Program requiring the County to 
work closely with other FORA jurisdictions and CDRP to develop arid implement a 
plan for storm water disposal that will allow for the removal of ocean outfall 
structures. 

The County is under order from the State Water Board to develop storm water requirements that 
meet current state standards. The County is nearing completion of those standards including 
eliminating ocean outfalls and will work closely with other FORA jurisdiction to accomplish the 
same in_ Fort Ord. The County is leading a storm water task force to address this issue. 

• Biological Resources Policy C-2 and Programs C-2.1, C-2.2, C-2.3 and C-2.5.-
Preservation of oak woodlands in the natural and built enviroirrnents. 

Oak woodlands are protected under the General Plan, state law, and within Current County code. 
The County reviews and requires each development to minim1ze impacts on native trees through 
siting, design, and other mitigations pursuant to policies within the Fort Ord Master Plan, the 
HMP, the Open Space Element of the General Plan (Policies OS~5.3, OS-5.4, OS-5.10, OS-5.11; 
OS-5.4, and OS-5.23), and the Land Use Element of the General Plan (Policies LU-1.6 arid LU-
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2010 Monterey General Plan Consistency 
Page 3 

1. 7). Appropriate protections are provided for Oak woodlands within the natural and built 
environments. 

Issue 2: Fort Ord does not have a long~ term sustainable Water Supply contrary to . 
County General Plan Policy PS-3.1 [which establishes a rebuttable presumption that there 
is a long-term water supply in Zone 2C which includes Fort Ord Territory]. 

County's Response: Policy PS-3.1 requires a determination that there is a long-term sustainable 
water supply. An exception is given to development within Zone 2C; however, "This exception 
for Zone 2C shall be a rebuttable presumption that a Long Term Sustainable Water Supply exists 
within Zone 2C{ ... } Development in Zone 2C shall be subject to all other policies of the General 
Plan and applicable Area Plan" (emphasis added.) In the case of the Fort Ord Master Plan (an 
Area Plap), there are more specific area plan policies that give· guidance on making a finding that 
a Long Term Sustainable Water Supply exists consistent with PS-3.1. The Determination of a 
Long Tenn Sustainable Water supply would rely on the Hydrology and Water Quality policies of 
the Reuse Plan including the requirement to comply with the Development Resource 
Management. Plan (DRMP). The DRMP establishes a water allocation for the County. The 
Public Services Element and the Fort Ord Master Plan policies work in conjunction with each 
other in a manner that is consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

Issue 3: The Fort Ord Master Plan does not comply with the Land Swap Agreement 
because the Land Swap Agreement traded residential density at Parker Flats for increased 
residential density at East Garrision. This trade made the Eastside Parkway no longer 
desirable as a primary travel route; 

County's Response: The Fort Ord Master Plan reflects the action taken on the Land Swap 
Agreement in 2002 and 2003 by acknowledging the revised Habitat Lands under the HMP. The 
Land Swap Agreement did not include amendments to the Reuse Plan. The Land Swap 
Assessment that accompanied the Land Swap Agreement provided the biological evidence 
necessary to gain concurrence from HMP stakeholders that the "swap" was sufficient under the 
terms of the HMP. The Biological Assessment mentions changes being considered at the time of 
the Land Swap Agreement preparation 1, but those references within the biological assessment for 
an HMP amendment did not amend the Reuse Plan nor do they make the adopted General Plan 
inconsistent with adopted Reuse Plan since both documents have the same land use designations 
for the areas in qu~stion. 

1 
The FORA Master Resolution states "FORA shall not preclude the transfer of intensity of land uses and/or density of 

development involving properties within the iffected territory as long as the land use decision meets the overall intensity and 
density criteria of Sections 8.02.010(a)(l) and (2) above as long as the cumulative net density or intensity ofthe Fort Ord 
Territory is not increased.~· 

Issue 4: The County Still has not complied with the Fort Ord Reuse Plan Policie~ 
after Fifteen (15 Years). 

County's Response: The County has implemented some of the Reuse Plan policies and is 
actively working on others. Delays in implementation do not make the General Plan inconsistent 
with the Reuse Plan. 
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. 2010 Monterey General Plan Consistency 
Page 4 

Issue 5: Is the County the lead agency under CEQA? 

County's Response: Yes. The FORA Master Resolution describes FORA's role as a 
"Responsible Agency" under CEQA for review of legislative decisions and development projects 
_(Section 8.01.070). The County has certified an EIR prior for the 2010 General Plan. The DEIR, 
FEIR, Supplemental Information, and subsequent addendums to the EIR have all been provided 
to FORA. with the consistency determination submittal/request. 

Conclusion 
The Description of the Fort Ord Master Plan on pg F0-1 states "The purpose of this plan is to 
designate land uses and incorporate objectives, programs and policies to be consistent with the 
Fort Ord Reuse Plan (Reuse Plan) adopted by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) in 1997." 
The County is implementing the Reuse Plan by adopting Reuse Plan Land Use Designations, 
enforcing the Habitat Management Plan, participating in the Base-wide Habitat Conservation 
Pla..11 process, and coordinating -vvith the public and private jurisdiction regarding development 
and open space in Fort Or d. 

The County has supported the purpose statement of the Fort Ord Master Plan by adopting a 
resolution containing fmdings and certification that the 201 0 General Plan is consistent with and 
intended to be carried out in a manner fully in conformity with the Reuse Plan (as required by the 
FORA Master Resolution). Attached to the fmdings is a table that outlines how the County's 
General Plan addresses all of the "Specific Programs and Mitigation Measures For Inclusion in 
Legislative Land Use Decisions" (Section 8.02.020 of the FORA Master Resolution). 

None of the Findings requiring denial of the consistency determination, contained in 8.02.010 of 
the FORA Master Resolution can be made. The General Plfu! does not allow more intensity (1) 
or density (2)ofLand Use than the Reuse Plan (see Land Use Designations), (3) Required 
programs and Mitigation Measures have been included and/or are being implemented· as 
evidenced in the attachment_to the County's consistency resolution and as further explained 
above, ( 4) The General Plan contains the same types of Land Uses that the Reuse Plan and the 
General Plan will not conflict or be incompatible with open space, recreational, or habitat 
management areas, (5) financing and the provisions for adequate public services and facilities are 
required, and ( 6) implementation of the HMP is required. 

· The 2010 General Plan is consistent with the Fort Ord Reuse Plan. 

Sincerely, 

___,..____·, r;Z~ 
Benny· oung,.Director ~ 
Resource Management Agency 
County of Monterey 
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Pollution Legal Liability (PLL) Insurance Policy 

January 10, 2014 
Be 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

INFORMATION/ACTION 

i. Receive a presentation regarding the PLL insurance policy from INFORMATION 
Executive Officer Houlemard, Special Counsel Barry Steinberg 
(Kutak Rock, LLP), and FORA Insurance Broker Kathy Gettys (Marsh) 

ii. Consider insurance coverage options, provide direction 
to staff 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

INFORMATION/ACTION 

In June 2000, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) entered into an Economic 
Development Conveyance Agreement with the United States Army (Army) for the transfer 
of former Fort Ord land. In 2001, FORA entered into property transfer agreements with 
underlying jurisdictions. Under the terms of these Implementation Agreements, with a few 
exceptions, FORA is obligated to transfer former Army property to individual jurisdictions, 
and those jurisdictions are required to accept title to this property from FORA (or direct 
FORA to transfer to their designee) once regulatory approval of environmental conditions is 
achieved. The affected jurisdiction then owns former Fort Ord land within their jurisdictional 
boundary to transfer for private development or to maintain for public purposes. Since both 
FORA and the underlying jurisdictions are in the chain of title for these former military 
lands, environmental liability concerns exist. Board members expressed concern that 
associated environmental risk might expose their general funds to claims and asked FORA 
staff to provide options for environmental insurance coverage, which would be cheaper and 
more efficient if acquired collectively. In 2002, after research and industry inquiries, FORA 
staff determined that only limited coverage was available for former military owned land. 
Subsequently, after consultation with FORA special counsel Barry Steinberg, it was 
concluded that coverage could be obtained, but at significant cost. 

In 2004, after noting changes in the financial markets and upon receipt of information from 
the Association of Defense Communities, staff reported on options for coverage for PLL 
insurance. That year, the Board authorized purchase of a ten-year policy to provide PLL 
insurance coverage to FORA, its member land use jurisdictions, and their developers. That 
policy of insurance coverage will expire at the end of calendar year 2014, and staff 
recommends the Board provide guidance addressing environmental risk. The options are: 
1) obtaining an extension of the existing policy, 2) securing a new policy, 3) self-insuring, or 
4) allowing the existing policy to lapse with no provision for coverage. The existing PLL 
insurance has only been called upon in limited ways; no formal claims against the policy 
have been made over the years it has been in place. While the existing cost cap policy 
addresses FORA's obligations under the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement 
(ESCA) with the Army, that coverage terminates upon completion of remedial work. The 
current cost-cap policies do not adequately address many of the risks associated with the 
day-to-day operations and activities that will occur over the next 5 to 1 0 years. 
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In Spring 2005, the Army and FORA entered negotiations for an Army-funded ESCA for 
removal of remnant Munitions and Explosives of Concern (MEC) on the former Fort Ord. 
Under the terms of this ESCA contract, FORA accepted transfer of 3,340 former Fort Ord 
acres prior to regulatory environmental sign-off. In early 2007, the Army awarded FORA 
approximately $98 million to perform the ESCA parcels MEC cleanup. FORA also 
entered into an Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency and the California Department of Toxic Substance Control defining 
conditions under which FORA performs contractual responsibilities for these Army 
remediation obligations. 

In order to complete the AOC defined work, after a competitive selection process, FORA 
entered into a Remediation Services Agreement with LFR Inc. (now ARCADIS) to provide 
MEC remediation services and executed a Cost-Cap insurance policy for this remediation 
work through American International Insurance Group. The Army ESCA Grant also 
provided FORA with $916,056 toward the purchase of PLL insurance coverage similar to 
what the FORA Board purchased in 2004. 

Through FORA's ESCA contract and the Army's other work under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, most of the remaining lands 
transferring through FORA have completed significant risk "characterization." In other 
words, much more is known today about the pollution conditions on the 6,000 acres than 
was known ten years ago. This should assist in attracting proposals from the insurance 
industry. The combination of: 1) the availability of ESCA PLL insurance funds and 2) the 
status of the investigations and characterization that has been performed since 2004 
provides the FORA Board with a unique opportunity to supplement these funds and 
negotiate an extension to or replacement of the existing FORA PLL policy. There may exist 
an opportunity in- this year to extend coverage at a reasonable price and terms partially 
using funds already intended for that purpose. 

FORA Special Counsel Barry Steinber J.nd Insurance Broker Kathy Gettys will be present 
at the January 10, 2014 meeting to pr i e a brief presentation outlining the policy, options, 
and a recommended acquisition proc s for Board consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reviewed by FORA Controller--+­

Staff time for this item is includ d in the approved FORA budget. 

COORDINATION: 

FORA land use jurisdictions and other agencies receiving property and/or accessing 
insurance coverage include: City of Marina, City of Seaside, City of Monterey, City of Del 
Rey Oaks, County of Monterey, Monterey Peninsula College, Marina Coast Water District, 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County, and Monterey-Salinas Transit. 

Prepared by C Reviewed by ~ U 
Stan Cook 

Approved by!).S~ ~ .(br 
Michael A. Houlema d, Jr. 
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Subject: Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) Update 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
Agenda Number: 8d 

INFORMATION 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Receive an Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement ("ESCA") status report. 

BACKGROUND: 

In Spring 2005, the U.S. Army ("Army") and FORA entered negotiations toward an Army­
funded Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement ("ESCA") for the removal of 
remnant Munitions and Explosives of Concern (MEC") on the former Fort Ord. Under the 
terms of this ESCA contract FORA accepted transfer of 3,340 acres of former Fort Ord 
prior to regulatory environmental sign-off. In early 2007, the Army awarded FORA 
approximately $98 million to perform the munitions cleanup on the ESCA parcels. FORA 
also entered into an Administrative Order on Consent ("AOC") with U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency ("EPA") and California Department of Toxic Substance Control ("DTSC") 
defining conditions under which FORA performs its contractual responsibilities for the 
Army's remediation obligations of the ESCA parcels. 

In order to complete the AOC defined work, after a competitive selection process, FORA 
entered into a Remediation Services Agreementf'RSA") with LFR Inc~ (now"ARCADIS") to 
provide MEC remediation services and executed a Cost-Cap insurance policy for this 
remediation work through American International Insurance Group ("AIG"). FORA received 
the "ESCA parcels" after EPA approval and gubernatorial concurrence under a Finding of 
Suitability for Early Transfer on May 8, 2009. 

The ESCA Remediation Program ("RP") has been underway for approximately six years. 
Currently, the FORA team has completed the known ESCA RP field work, pending 
Regulatory Agency review. 

DISCUSSION: 

The ESCA requires FORA, acting as the Army's contractor, to address safety issues 
resulting from previous munitions training operations conducted at the former Fort Ord. This 
provides for the FORA ESCA RP team to successfully implement cleanup actions that 
overcomes three major past concerns: 1) the requirement for yearly appropriation of federal 
funding that delayed cleanup and necessitated costly mobilization/demobilization expenses; 
2) state, federal regulatory questions about protectiveness of previous actions for sensitive 
uses; and 3) local jurisdictional/community/FORA's desire to reduce, to the extent possible, 
risk to individuals accessing the property. 
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Under the ESCA grant contract with the U.S. Army, FORA received a $97.7 million grant to 
clear munitions and to secure regulatory approval for the former Fort Ord ESCA parcels. 
FORA subsequently entered into a guaranteed fixed-price contract with LFR (now 
"ARCADIS") to complete the work as defined in a Technical Specifications and Review 
Statement ("TSRS") appended to the ESCA grant contract. As part of a contract between 
FORA and LFR, insurance coverage was secured from AIG (formerly "AIG" then "Chartis" 
and now "AIG" again) for which FORA paid $82.1 million upfront from grant funds. This 
policy provides the funds that AIG uses to pay ARCADIS for the work performed. 

The AIG coverage also provides for up to $128 million to address additional work for both 
known and unknown site conditions, if needed. That assures extra funds in place to 
complete the scope of work to the satisfaction of the Regulators. AIG monitors/approves 
ARCADIS expenditures in meeting AOC/TSRS grant requirements. 

Based on the Army ESCA grant contract, the EPA AOC requirements and AIG insurance 
coverage provisions, AIG controls the ARCADIS/AIG $82.1 million Commutation Account. 
The full amount was provided to AIG in 2008 to as payment for a cost-cap insurance policy 
where AIG reviews ARCADIS' work performed and makes payments directly to ARCADIS. 
FORA oversees that the work complies with grant/AOC requirements. 

Item Originally Allocated Accrued as of 
September 2013 

FORA Self-Insurance or Policy $916,056 $916,056 
Reimburse Regulators & Quality Assurance $4,725,000 $1,985,401 
State of California Surplus Lines Tax, Risk Transfer, 
Mobilization $6,100,000 $6,100,000 
Contractor's Pollution Liability Insurance $477,344 $477,344 
Work Performed ARCADIS/AIG Commutation Account $82,117,553 $66,229,121 
FORA Administrative Fees $3,392,656 $2,710,242 

Total $97,728,609 $78,418,164 
ESCA Remainder 19,310,445 

For the County North and Parker Flats Phase 1 ESCA properties, FORA has received written 
confirmation from the Regulatory agencies that CERCLA MEC remediation work is complete 
(regulatory site closure). For these properties, ARCADIS has commuted ESCA insurance 
coverage for related clean-up costs to coverage for unknown conditions. Per the existing 
FORA/Jurisdiction Implementation Agreements and Memorandum of Agreements regarding 
property ownership and responsibilities during the period of Environmental Services, deeds 
have transferred these properties to the following: 

• County of Monterey - County North 
• County of Monterey- Portion of Parker Flats 
• Monterey Peninsula College - Portion of Parker Flats 

Access to these properties has been transferred to the underlying recipient new land owner. At 
the County's request, FORA staff is working with County staff to adjust the signage based on a 
signage plan under the joint direction of County staff, the Monterey County Sheriff's Department 
and the Bureau of Land Management with review by the FORA ESCA team. The relocation of 
the ESCA signage will be coordinated with the County's installation of their new signage. 
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As noted above, the FORA ESCA RP team has completed the known ESCA Remediation 
Program MEC field work (remedial investigations). It is important to highlight that the data 
collected during this investigation stage remains under review by the Regulatory agencies who 
determine when the remediation work is complete. They will only issue written confirmation of 
Regulatory site closure when they are satisfied the work is protective of human health and that 
the Final Proposed Plan, Record of Decision, Land Use Control Operation and Maintenance 
Plan have been completed and approved. The process of completing the review and 
documentation is expected to take up to eighteen (18) months depending on the Regulatory 
agency responses/decisions. Until regulatory site closure has been received, the ESCA 
property remains closed to the public. As regulatory site closure has been received, FORA will 
transfer land title to the appropriate jurisdiction. 

Regulatory approval does not determine end use. Underlying jurisdictions are empowered 
to impose or limit zoning, decide property density or make related land use decisions in 

compliance with the. FORA Bas:1 Plan. 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller 

The funds for this review and report are part of the existing FORA ESCA funds. 

COORDINATION: 
Administrative Committee; Executive Committee; FORA Authority Counsel; ARCADIS; U.S. 
Army EPA; and DTSC 

Prepared by &!A 
Stan Cook 
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Subject: Multi-modal Transit Corridor- Presentation by Transportation 
en for Montere Coun 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
Agenda Number: Be INFORMATION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive a Transportation Agency for Monterey County (T AMC) presentation outlining the 
planning process for finalizing the Multi-modal Transit Corridor (MMTC) alignment. 

BACKGROUND 

Transit obligations in the 1997 T AMC Regional Transportation Study were included in the 
adopted 1997 Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan (BRP). The BRP defined a transit corridor that was/is 
intended to serve as a major transportation route from Highway 1 to Salinas, through former 
Fort Ord lands. The "original" alignment (included in the BRP) extended from Highway 1 along 
lmjin Parkway and lmjin Road, diverting through University of California Santa Cruz (UCSC) 
managed habitat lands to Reservation Road/Blanco intersection, and then to/along Blanco 
Road into Salinas. The route "envisioned/anticipated" light rail as the mass transit vehicle which 
in part determined many of the alignment requirements. Issues were identified with the original 
alignment, including potential impacts to wildlife habitat lands and agricultural operations. 

Interested parties, including FORA, T AMC, Monterey-Salinas Transit, City of Marina, Monterey 
County, California State University Monterey Bay, UCSC Monterey Bay Education, Science 
and Technology Center and Golden Gate University (collectively known as the "stakeholders") 
reviewed and identified an alternate MMTC ·route than the alignment presented in the BRP, its 
Final Environmental Impact Report, and FORA Capital Improvement Program (CIP). Initial 
planning for implementing the MMTC surfaced a significant number of detailed concerns about 
habitat protection and the impact of the corridor on the agricultural community along Blanco 
Road. Consequently, long range planning for transit service resulted in the stakeholders 
identifying an alternative transit route of lntergarrison - Reservation - Davis Roads corridor to 
a) mitigate impact on the agricultural users along Blanco Road, b) increase habitat protection, 
c) provide additional support for needed improvements to the Davis Road Bridge and d) fulfill 
the transit service needs between the Salinas area and Peninsula cities and campuses. Bus­
Rapid-Transit replaced the light rail method as the mass transit component of the multi-modal 
corridor- which requires a much less restrictive alignment. 

A series of stakeholder meetings were conducted to adjust and refine the proposed multi-modal 
corridor re-alignment plan-line. The stakeholders completed a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) in November 2010, agreeing to cooperate with each other to process the proposed re­
designation of the transit corridor from the original alignment to the new alignment, complete 
preliminary designs for portions of the new alignment that would extend through their respective 
boundaries, and agree to grant right of way reservations for the new alignment. These steps 
would have to be completed prior to any FORA Board action to formally rescind the designation 
of the multi-modal corridor alignment presented in the BRP. The MOA and alternative new 
alignment was presented to the FORA Board in December 2010 for 1) approval of the new 
alignment, 2) rescission of the reservations of the previous alignment, and 3) to authorize 
FORA to adopt the MOA and include it in any subsequent update of its BRP. The FORA Board 
provided all necessary approvals at their December 2010 meeting and the prior ("original") 
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route was rescinded. That MOA currently defines the corridor and must be amended or 
modified by written and recorded instrument, executed by all parties, if change is desired. 

DISCUSSION: 

TAMC staff has indicated that since the 2010 MOA was signed, several stakeholders including 
CSUMB have requested that the alignment be re-evaluated. TAMC has agreed to re-evaluate 
the alignment and plans to focus on expanding existing roadways, attempt to address 
unresolved concerns and uncover new opportunities for high quality transit and transit-oriented 
development. (A map illustrating roadway segment alignment alternatives is included as 
Attachment A). 

The first part of the planning process will focus on determining a preferred corridor route which 
will then be adopted by TAMC partner agencies. The second part of the planning process will 
identify preferred conceptual roadway design features along the agreed upon corridor route. 
Some features that may be considered are bicycle facilities, sidewalks or paths, transit 
stops/shelters, transit prioritization at signalized intersections, dedicated bus rapid transit 
facilities and pedestrian and equestrian crossing enhancements. (Attachment 8 outlines the 
project schedule.) 

Because the route will traverse several jurisdictions and provide access to a mix of land uses, 
the planning process will strive for stakeholder consensus and community collaboration. TAMC 
will coordinate the creation of a comprehensive transportation/land use plan for the corridor. 
The process will engage a diverse group of stakeholders that represent different socio­
economic, jurisdictional and community interests. TAMC staff will use visualizations to better 
communicate detailed corridor options to a wide range of community members and potential 
users, including Spanish speakers and students. The visualizations produced will help frame 
the potential trade-offs between different roadway alignments and designs and help solicit the 
community's preferences. 

A conceptual plan for the multimodal transportation corridor will be a guiding document for 
development and roadway designs, and serve as a tool to raise money for project 
implementation. Land uses along the corridor will be evaluated to identify opportunities to 
create transit-oriented developments and enhance the community environment. TAMC will 
work with FORA and other partner agency staff to ensure that the MMTC Plan is consistent 
with existing local plans and policies as well as current planning efforts. 

T AMC staff will present the project to Transportation Agency committees and all partner agency 
councils and boards throughout the planning process beginning-in November 2013. A series of 
public workshops will be held in Sali and the Marina area. The first round of workshops will 
be held in January 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reviewed by FORA Controller~---="-' 
/<'/ 

FORA previously contributed· $15,000 in matching funds for a CaiTrans planning grant 
application made by T AMC which was approved by the FORA Board on April 13, 2012. These 
funds were applied against FORA's obligation to Inter-Garrison Road improvements, Capital 
Improvement Program Project #F06. No additional contributions are anticipated. 

COORDINATION: 

Administrative Committee, Executive Committee, TAMC 

Prepared by (J~JlJ.pJt~-- Approved by D -~~ ~ .Pt,r 
Crissy Maras Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Subject: Accept Fiscal Year 12-13 Annual Financial Report 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
A enda Number: 9a 

ACTION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, Certified Public Accountants (Auditor) Fort Ord Reuse 
Authority (FORA) Fiscal Year 12-13 Annual Financial Report (Audit Report) (Attachment A). 

BACKGROUND: 

Each fall, FORA staff and/or Auditor present the Audit Report to the Finance Committee (FC) 
for its review and consideration before the Audit Report is forwarded to the FORA Board. The 
FORA Board has directed that every three to five years the FC evaluate the financial 
consultant providing the requisite opinion. Last year the firm Moss, Levy & Hartzheim (the 
Auditor) was hired to conduct the FY 11-12, FY 12-13, and FY 13-14 audits. For FY 12-13, the 
Auditor also conducted an audit of the Preston Park Housing financial operations - a change 
from past years where such audits were performed under the prior management contract. 

DISCUSSION: 

In the FY 12-13 review, the audit work of both the FORA and Preston Park financial operations 
began in October. The Auditor met with FORA Management and a Finance Committee 
repre-sentative as well as with the Preston Park managem-ent team -(Alliance) -to discuss 
pertinent items and audit procedures. The draft Audit Report was completed in early 
December and the Auditor presented the draft report at the December 17, 2013 FC meeting. 

FORA has held title to the Preston Park Housing complex since 2000. However, the asset 
was not noted in past reports as it was expected to be acquired by the City of Marina. The 
Auditor has determined this capital asset should be included in the FORA financial reports. 
The FY 11-12 report included "unaudited" Preston Park information and as stated above, the 
Auditor audited Preston Park for the FY 12-13 report. 

As a result, the Auditor issued a "qualified" opinion with respect to the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements because FORA (thru Alliance) has not yet recorded the value of Preston 
Park land and buildings. Accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. require that 
those capital assets be capitalized and depreciated. The Auditor also reported several third­
party (Alliance) findings with respect to the Preston Park internal control structure. Alliance 
management provided response and corrective actions, which the Auditor accepted. 

With respect to FORA operations (Fund Financial Statements), the Auditor issued an 
"unmodified" opinion (formerly "unqualified") and complimented FORA staff for implementing 
previous year's recommendations. There were no findings/questionable costs in the FY 12-13 
financial audit concerning FORA internal control structure. The Auditor's letter expresses the 
opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, FORA's financial 
position as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, for the fiscal year 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles general accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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The FC unanimously voted to recommend to the FORA Board that: a) it accept the FY 12-13 
Audit Report (after making specific typographical and other grammatical corrections and 
inserting additional footnotes requested by the FC), and 2) FORA staff implement the Auditor's 
recommendation to determine the Preston Park asset valuation and include this information in 
future annual audit reports. Please refer to item 11d for more details regarding the FC meeting. 

Copies of the Audit Report are included in the FORA member board packets. Interested 
members of public can obtain copies at the FORA office or on-line at www.fora.org. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Cost for the audit services is included in the approved FORA and Preston Park budgets. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance Committee, Executive Committee, the Auditor 
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Voting Mernbers 

Mayor Jerry Edelen 
Mayor Pro Tern Frank O'Connell 
Mayor Ralph Rubio 
Mayor Jason Burnett 
Council Member Gail Morton 
SupeNisor Dave Potter 
SupeNisor Jane Parker 
SupeNisor Simon Salinas 
Council Member Nancy Selfridge 
Mayor David Pendergrass 
Mayor Joe Gunter 
Mayor Pro Tern lan Oglesby 
Mayor Bill Kampe 

Attachment A to Item 9a 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/14/14 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
MARINA, CALIFORNIA 

Annual Financial Report 

June 30, 2013 

Board of Directors 

R-epresenting Title 

City of Del Rey Oaks Chair 
City of Marina 1st Vice Chair 
City of Seaside 2nd Vice Chair 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Director 
City of Marina Director 
County of Monterey Director 
County of Monterey Director 
County of Monterey Director 
City of Monterey Director 
City of Sand City Director 
City of Salinas Director 
City of Seaside Director 
City of Pacific Grove Director 

Appointed Official 

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
Executive Officer 
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PARTNERS 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA 
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA 

Board of Directors 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
Marina, California 

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES 
433 NORTH CAMDEN DRIVE, SUITE 730 
BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 
TEL: 310.273.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 
www.mlhcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
5800 HANNUM, SUITE E 

CULVER CITY, CA 90230 
TEL: 310.670.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 

www.mlhcpas.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Authority), California, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, -issuedby the Comptroller General ofthe UnitedStates. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Proprietary Fund 

The Authority has not recorded the value of land and buildings within its business-type activities (Preston Park), and 
accordingly, has not recorded depreciation expense on those assets. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America require that those capital assets be capitalized and depreciated, which would increase the assets, net 
position, and expenses of the business-type activities (Preston Park). These amounts are not reasonably determinable. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion on Proprietary Fund" 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Proprietary Fund of the Authority, as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flow 
thereof for the fiscal year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, California, as of June 30, 2013, 
and the respective changes in financial position, for the fiscal year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2012, the Authority adopted the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 60- Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Service Concession Arrangements, GASB Statement No. 61 - The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, GASB Statement No. 62- Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA Pronouncements, and GASB Statement No. 63-
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis on pages 3 through 9, the budgetary comparison schedule on page 37, the schedule of funding progress for defined 
benefit pension plan on page 38, and the schedule of funding progress for post-employment benefits other than pensions on 
page 39, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Authority's basic financial· statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Authority. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 2, 2014 on our 
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and do not provide an 
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

'-11f,..,# ;(~ 'I ~~ 

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP 
Culver City, California 
January 2, 2014 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina, CA 93933 

Phone: (831) 883-3672 I Fax: (831) 883-3675 I www.fora.org 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2013 

This section of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's (FORA) financial statements presents an 
analysis of the FORA's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
This information is presented in conjunction with the basic financial statements and 
related notes, which follow this section. 

This is management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) of FORA financial performance for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The national and state economic downturn/recession from the 2006-20012 fiscal years has 
significantly slowed Fort Ord reuse and economic recovery. Consequently, FORA 
developer fee and land sale revenues have been deferred and/or reduced during those 
several years. However, the past two fiscal years showed evidence of change as building 
permit issuances and new projects began to return. During the FY 12-13, FORA: 

•!• Accomplished significant munitions and explosives cleanup as 1 00%> of known MEC 
- field work has been completed under the--U.S. Army ESCA contract Additional property -

transfers now in progress as a result. 

•!• Completed $540,000 ($350K in FY 12-13) in Base Reuse Plan Reassessment. On May 
17, 2013, the Northern California Chapter of the American Planning Association 
recognized the Reassessment Report with an Award of Merit for Best Planning 
Practices. 

•!• Completed $130,000 in the Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) preliminary draft, which 
currently awaits wildlife agency review prior to distribution of a public draft. 

•!• Finalized a Capital Improvement Program Developer Fee review process, resulting in a 
24% Fee reduction/adjustment for most future projects. 

•!• Collected $5.7 million in redevelopment revenues, including $4.5 million in development 
fees and $1.2 million in property tax payments. 

•!• The County of Monterey, City of Seaside, and FORA dedicated and agreed to transfer 
approximately 78 acres of former Ford Ord land to the State of California to establish the 
California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery (CCCVC). FORA assisted in the 
completion of local documentation needed to transfer ownership of the dedicated 
parcels to the State of California for submission to the U.S. Department of Veteran 
Affairs in order to apply for grants to construct and operate the CCCVC. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the FORA's basic financial 
statements. FORA's basic financial statements include three components: 1) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. 

1) The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term 
information about FORA's overall financial status and inform how FORA's general 
government services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future 
spending. 2) The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of FORA's 
governmental funds and report FORA's operations in more detail than the government-wide 
statements. 3) The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements provide information about FORA activities as a 
whole and present a comprehensive overview of FORA's finances. The government-wide 
financial statements include information on Preston Park Housing project, reported in 
business-type of activities. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the FORA's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in FORA's net position are one indicator of whether its financial 

- health is improving-ur deteriorating.- --~ ------ -- --

The statement of activities presents information showing how the FORA's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as 
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Thus, all the current year's revenue and expenses are reported in the 
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The focus of the 
government-wide statement of activities is on the net cost of governmental activities 
provided by a governmental entity. 

FORA was engaged in the following types of activities: 

Governmental Activities: During the FY 12-13 FORA employed federal grants, property tax 
receipts, lease proceeds, development fees, franchise fees and membership dues to 
finance: 

• Munitions and explosives of concern remediation investigation, processing, and 
removals; 

• Infrastructure construction/planning and development; 

• General administration and planning; 

• Property surveys and transfers; 

• Habitat conservation planning; 

• Water augmentation planning; 

• Insurance policy and liability protection issues; 
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• Real property development, consistency determination, and planning review; and 

• Preston Park Housing management. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10-11 of this report. Fund 
Financial Statements 
Fund financial statements provide a shorl-term look at FORA's fiscal accountability and 
compliance with restrictions on the use of certain financial resources. The fund financial 
statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the Authority 
as a whole. 

Governmental Funds: FORA's services and activities are reported in governmental funds, 
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at fiscal 
year-end that are available for appropriation. FORA maintains 5 individual governmental 
funds the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. 

The General Fund: The general operating fund accounts for all of FORA's financial 
resources except for those resources that are required to be accounted for in Special 
Revenue Funds, which are restricted as to expenditures. 

Special Revenue Funds: In FY 12-13 FORA maintained 4 Special Revenue Funds: 1) 
Lease/Land Sale Proceeds Fund - land sale proceeds are are designated to finance the 
FORA CIP (building removal), lease proceeds to debt financing (Preston Park Loan); 2) 
Developer Fees Fund - CFD/developer fees are designated to finance the FORA CIP 

· · (CEQA mitigationsX 3) PoiiUtiCfr"I-Legar liability-- (Pl[) -Fuhcf -.:... revenue· is -·aesignated to - -
finance the PLL coverage; and 4) Army Grant ET/ESCA- grant funds are designated to 
finance the munitions and explosives cleanup activities. 

Proprietary Fund: Revenues and expenses of Preston Park Housing complex are reported 
in this fund. 

The fund financial statements can be found on pages 12-19 of this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements provide long-term and short-term information 
about FORA's overall financial condition. 

Net position in the Statement of Activities on page 10 of this report show FORA 
governmental activities improved from negative $6.4 million to negative $3.8 million. The 
negative balance in net assets means that all liabilities (including long-term debt not due at 
the end of the fiscal year) exceed all assets FORA had at the fiscal year end (including 
long-term receivables and non-liquid assets). In addition, the unspent balance in the ESCA 
grant fund at June 30, 2013 of $4.4 million is classified as revenue collected in advance of 
the earnings process and recorded as unearned revenue, a liability account, for financial 
statement purposes. It will be recognized as revenue when it is earned. The business-type 
activities (Preston Park) also show an increase in net assets from $5.5 million to $5.9 
million. 

5 



Page 126 of 190

Revenue 

FORA annual revenue decreased from $15.1 million to $14.5 million, this variance is 
attributable to the conclusion of the EDA grant revenue for the General Jim Moore 
Boulevard/Eucalyptus Road construction in FY 11-12. There were increased development 
fees (as compared to the previous fiscal year) but other revenue sources did not vary 
significantly. 

Revenue sources in FY 12-13 were provided from the following: 

• Federal funding - 9o/o 

• Lease proceeds (Preston Park)- 18°/o 

• Property tax- 13°/o 

• Development fees - 4 7% 

• Membership dues and franchise fees - 5% 

• Other revenue sources (land sales, interest) - 8°/o 

Expenditures 

The FY 12-13 cost of FORA programs was $11.2 million. The cost of governmental 
programs was about $6.2 million and business-type activities (Preston Park) about $5 
million. The major governmental programs were the Environmental cleanup and Fort Ord 
Base Reuse Plan reassessment. 

The government-wide financial statement showing the net cost of FORA's major projects 
can be found on pages 10-11 of this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND STATEMENTS 

A fund is a group of related accounts used to maintain resource control and is segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. Reporting standards require that a major governmental 
fund be presented in a separate __ _e_olu_mn in the fund financial statements. In accordance 
with GASB Stmt. No. 34, paragraph 76, FORA has elected to report all its special revenue 
funds as major funds as these funds are important to financial statement users. The 
General Fund is always considered a major fund and therefore presented in a separate 
column. The fund financial statements focus on FORA's individual parts. 

The segregated governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and 
balances of expendable resource balance. As FORA completed the fiscal year, its 
governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $14.9 million; an increase of $2.6 
million from FY 11-12. 

$10 million of the $14.9 million ending fund balance is assigned for specific use, such as 
federal grant funds assigned for environmental cleanup or developer impact fees and land 
sale proceeds assigned for the CIP projects, it also includes non-spendable funds such pre­
paid insurance. Approximately $4.9 million is available for administration and operations. 
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E d' F dB I n mg un a ances 
Land Developer Pollution Federal 

Fiscal Year General Fund Sale/Leases Fees Liability Grants TOTALS 

2011-2012 3,232,455 2,865,493 4,670,842 1,533,815 - 12,302,605 

2012-2013 2,556,202 4,091,215 7,305,343 964,070 - 14,916,830 

Change+(-) (676,253) 1,225,722 2,634,501 (569,745) - 2,614,225 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

A budget is a plan of financial operations that provides a basis for the planning, controlling, 
and evaluating of governmental activities. Governmental funds generally use a fixed 
budget, which reflects a specific estimate for revenue and expenditures. Once expenditures 
and revenue are incorporated into the budget, the total estimated expenditure appropriation 
amount becomes a limit for current expenditures, and the estimated revenue amount 
becomes the basis for comparison to actual revenue. Even though FORA is not legally 
subject to any budgetary controls, the budget is included as a part of the general accounting 
record, and it is used as a guide to controlling expenses. 

The FORA Board approved the FY 12-13 budget on July 13, 2012 and the mid-year budget 
update on February 15, 2013. Despite continuous recessionary economic conditions 
slowing the former Fort Ord redevelopment activities, FORA Board policies have sustained 
financial stability. 

Budget Variances (from mid-year budget projections to year-end actual) 

Revenue: $78.500 increase 

Land sale and property tax revenue decreased and other funding slightly increased, as 
follows: 

• $471.7K decrease in land sale revenue; 

• $88.6K decrease in property tax revenue, direct payments from Monterey County; 

• $301.6K increase in development fee revenue; 

• $281.7K increase in lease income from Preston Park; 

• $50K revenue increase from other funding sources (such as insurance 
reimbursements and investments). 

Expenditures: $991 .600 decrease 

FORA realized savings in all expenditure categories including salaries and benefits. The 
most significant expenditure variances were: 

• $120K decrease in salaries and benefits; mid-year budget assumed $60K for 
temporary help and vacation cash out set aside. The temp help was not hired and 
only $18K of the vacation cash out was spent. One lost permanent position not 
replaced until FY 13-14; 
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• $48K decrease in administrative categories due cost saving measures and expense 
policies reinforcement; 

• 107 .6K decrease in consulting services mainly attributable to savings in Legal fees 
($500K projected, $400K spent); 

• $1.3 million capital project decrease due to capital projects timing; 

• $600,000 adjustment in amortization; FORA does not include amortization expenses 
(non-cash expenses) in the operating budget. 

The budgetary comparison information schedule can be found on page 37 of this report. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

FORA employs real property assets and lease revenue (such as Preston Park Housing) to 
amortize or collateralize long-term indebtedness. Current asset valuation is in the range of 
$100 - $150 million, of which FORA is entitled to a 50% share. Please refer to page 24. 
Note 1-1 for more information regarding capital assets. As of June 30, 2013, FORA had 
about $18.8 million in long-term debt consisting of: 

a. $18.2 million - Preston Park loan; 
b. $0.1 million - capital lease equipment purchase obligation; and 
c. $0.5 million -compensated absences and retirement funding obligations. 

a) In March 2010, FORA borrowed $19 million (Preston Park Loan) from Rabobank. The 
FORA Beard allthorized- the-loan- to 1-)--pro¥ide_ stimulus_grant JocaLmatching_funds and_ __ _ 
2) retire certain existing debts (Revenue Bonds and Line of Credit). The loan must be 
paid off in June 2014. 

b) The capital lease obligation was incurred in 2003 to purchase firefighting equipment and 
will be repaid in July 2013. 

c) This amount represents FORA's liability for compensated absences (vacation and sick 
leave), postemployment benefit cost and the Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) side fund at June 30, 2013. 

More detailed information about FORA's total long-term debts is presented on pages 31-33. 
Notes 7-12 to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

In FY 12-13 major economic revitalization projects were approved or moved toward 
construction, including the VA Monterey Health Care Center Project, California Central 
Coast Veterans Cemetery, South County Housing University Villages Apartments, and Mid­
Peninsula Housing Coalition Manzanita Place project. These major projects are supported 
by FORA's completion of the General Jim Moore Boulevard/Eucalyptus Road project and 
the conclusion of much of the remaining field work under the U.S. Army ESCA contarct. 
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Despite these successes, the past fiscal year has reinforced the need to emphasize blight 
removal and to complete the Regional Urban Design Guidelines - two significant remaining 
goals to the reuse effort. 

As a consequence of two unanticipated referenda/itiniatives targeted at certain Fort Ord 
developments, FORA is obligated to pay for its share of the County of Monterey 2013 fall 
elections cost. It will be reflected in the FY 13-14 budget, but is noted here as an impending 
expense/debt. 

CONTACTING FORA'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of FORA's finances, and to demonstrate FORA's 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, Executive Officer, 920 
2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina, California, 93933. 

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
Executive Officer 
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I Government-wide Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2013 

Government~! Business-type 

ASSETS Activities Activities Total 

Cash and investments $ 18,742,0:41 $ 794,101 $ 19,536,142 

Cash restricted for equipment purchases 4,341,403 4,341,403 

Accounts receivable 867,455 867,455 
I 

Interest receivable 2o.a43 20,848 

Ten ant receivables 2,748 2,748 

Prepaid expenses 97,224 97,224 

Prepaid insurance 910,~23 910,323 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 80,S191 1,263,822 1,344,813 
I 

Total Assets 20,621 ,q58 6,499,298 27,120,956 
! 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 365,020 57,580 422,600 

Unearned revenue 5,258.a17 30,062 5,288,879 

Long-term debt and obligations: 

Due within one year 18,385,266 18,385,266 

Due in more than one year 436,676 474,335 911,011 

Total Liabilities 24,445,7,79 561,977 25,007,756 

NET POSITION 
i 

Net investment in capital assets 80,991 1,263,822 1,344,813 

Restricted for: 

Capital purchases and projects 
i 

4,341,403 4,341,403 

Unrestricted (3,905, 112) 332,096 (3,573,016) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (3,824, 121) $ 5,937,321 $ 2,113,200 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements :. 10-
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I Government-wide Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position 
I 

Program Charges for Operating Grants Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Fees Activities Activities Total 

Governmental Activities 

General government $ 2,675,571 $ $ 81,719 $ {2,593,852) $ $ (2,593,852) 

Capital improvements 505,014 4,559,337 4,054,323 4,054,323 

Environmental cleanup 827,746 827,746 

Reuse planning/EDC transfers & environmental 1,043,247 1,689,204 645,957 645,957 

subtotal - capital improvement program 2,376,007 7,076,287 4,700,280 4,700,280 

Interest on long-term debt and short-term debt 1,106,998 (1,106,998) (1,106,998) 

Total governmental activities 6,158,576 7,158,006 999,430 999,430 

Business-type Activities 

Preston Park 5,076,271 5,444,979 368,708 368,708 

Total business-type activities 5,076,271 5,444,979 ! 368,708 368,708 

Total primary government $ 11,234,847 $ 5,444,979 : $ 7,158,006 999,430 368,708 1,368,138 

General revenues: 

Property t~x reven~e 1,211,423 1,211,423 

Membership dues ; 261,000 261,000 

Franchise fees 244,506 244,506 
I 

Investment earnings 142,130 9,004 151 '134 
Miscellaneous 10,817 39,142 49,959 

Total general reve~ues 1,869,876 48,146 1,918,022 

Change in net positior 2,869,306 416,854 3,286,160 
I 

Net position at beginni~g of fiscal year (6,404,048) 5,520,467 (883,581) 
Prior period adjustments (289,379) (289,379~ 
Net position at beginnifjlg of fiscal year, restated (6,693,427) 5,520,467 (1,172,960) 

Net position (deficit) at 1end of fiscal year $ (3,824, 121) $ 5,937,321 $ 2,113,200 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements - 11 -
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2013 

Lease Pollution Army Total 
General and Sale Developer Legal Grant Governmental 

Fund Proceeds Fees Liability ET/ESCA Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 2,545,202 $ 4,093,008 $ 7,380,078 $ 64,069 $ 4,659,684 $ 18,742,041 

Accounts receivable 126,561 21,224 24,750 694,920 867,455 

Interest receivable 20,848 20,848 

Prepaid insurance 10,323 900,000 910,323 

Total Assets $ 2,682,086 $ 4,114,232 $ 7,404,828 $ 1,679,837 $ 4,659,684 $ 20,540,667 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 75,427 $ 1,793 ! $ 74,735 $ $ 213,065 $ 365,020 

Unearned revenue 50,457 21,224 I 24,750 715,767 4,446,619 5,258,817 
Total Liabilities 125,884 23,017 99,485 715,767 4,659,684 5,623,837 

Fund Balances (Note L, page 25) 

Non-spendable 10,323 900,000 910,323 
Committed 64,070 64,070 
Assigned 1,653,590 7,305,343 8,958,933 
Unassigned 2,545,879 2,437,625 4,983,504 

Total Fund Balances 2,556,202 4,091,215 7,305,343 964,070 14,916,830 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,682,086 $ 4,114,232 $ 7,404,828 $ 1,679,837 $ 4,659,684 $ 20,540,667 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements 12-
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2013 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, all 
assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation. : 

Capital assets at historical cost $ 159,584 

Accumulated depreciation (78,593) 

Net 

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the 
statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. 
Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: I 

Capital lease obligations 
PERS Side fund 
OPEB 
Preston Park Loan Payable 
Compensated absences 

Total net position, governmental activities 

Total 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements 

$ (110,645) 
(266,098) i 

(113,926) i 

(18, 188,205) ' 
(143,068) 

13-

$ 14,916,830 

80,991 

(18,821 ,942) 

$ (3,824, 121) 
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Lease Pollution Army 

General and Sale Developer Legal Grant Governmental 

Fund Proceeds Fees Liability ET/ESCA Funds 

REVENUE 
Membership dues $ 261,000 $ $ $ $ $ 261,000 

Franchise fees 244,506 244,506 

Property taxes 1,211,423 1,211,423 

Federal grants 827,746 827,746 

Developer fees 4,232,542 4,232,542 

Lease/Rental income 81,719 1,660,908 1,742,627 

Real estate sales 28,296 28,296 

CSU mitigation fees 326,795 326,795 

Investment/Interest earnings 110,859 31,271 142,130 

Other revenue 3,529 7,288 10,817 

Total Revenue 1,913,036 1,689,204 4,566,625 31,271 827,746 9,027,882 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries and benefits 1,434,591 249,719 320,285 2,004,595 

Supplies and services 113,170 11,501 12,124 136,795 

Contractual services 1,041,528 9,234 171,777 1,016 495,337 1,718,892 

Capital improvements 472,457 472,457 

Insurance amortization 600,000 600,000 

Debt service 1,364,918 116,000 1,480,918 

Total Expenditures 2,589,289 1,374,152 1,021,454 601,016 827,746 6,413,657 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) Expenditures (676,253) 315,052 I 3,545,171 (569,745) 2,614,225 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 910,670 910,670 

Transfers out (91 0,670) (910,670) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 910,670 (91 0,670) 

Net change in fund balances (676,253) 1,225,722 i 2,634,501 (569,745) 2,614,225 

Fund Balances - July 1, 2012 3,232,455 2,865,493 4,670,842 1,533,815 12,302,605 

Fund Balances - June 30, 2013 $ 2,556,202 $ 4,091,215 $ 7,305,343 $ 964,070 $ $ 14,916,830 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements 14-
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ' 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Total net change in fund balances- governmental funds 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated usefu;l 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital outlay 
of $3,272 is less than depreciation expense $(35,829) in the period. 

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In the 
government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as reductiorys 
of liabilities. 

To record as an expense the net change in post employment benefit liability in the Statement of 
Activities. ! 

I 

I 

To record as an expense the net change in PERS side fund liability in the Statement ?f Activities. 

In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during 
the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by th:e 
amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and 
compensated absences earned was: 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements ~ 15-

$ 2,614,225 

(32,557) 

373,920 

(113,926) 

23,281 

4,363 

$ 2,869,306 
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 
June 30, 2013 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments 
Cash restricted for capital purchases and projects 
Tenant receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

~LIABILITIES -

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Tenant security deposits 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Captial purchases and projects 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements - 16-

$ 

$ 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 

Preston Park 

794,101 
4,341,403 

2,748 
97,224 

5,235,476 

1,263,822 

1,263,822 

6,499,298 

57,580 
30,062 

87,642 

474,335 

474,335 

561,977 

1,263,822 

4,341,403 
332,096 

5,937,321 
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 

Preston Park 
Operating Revenues: 

Rental income, net $ 5,444,979 

Total operating revenues 5,444,979 

Operating Expenses: 
Administrative 551,313 
Utilities 92,911 
Operating and maintenance 453,932 
Taxes and insurance 296,412 
Depreciation 359,887 

Total operating expenses 1,754,455 

Operating income (loss) 3,690,524 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 9,004 
Miscellaneous- revenue · . - __ 39,.:1_42. 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 48,146 

Income Before Distribution to Owners 3,738,670 

Distribution to owners 3,321,816 

Change in net position 416,854 

Total net position- July 1, 2012 5,520,467 

Total net position -June 30, 2013 $ 5,937,321 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements - 17 -

-----~ -·-----·-
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash received from tenants 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Miscellaneous income 
Distribution to owners 

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest revenue 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Fiscal Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Fiscal Year 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 
Cash and investments 
Cash restricted for capital purchases and projects 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements - 18 -
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I Fund Financial Statements 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 
(Continued) 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in tenant receivables 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Increase (decrease) in tenant security deposits 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements - 19-

$ 

$ 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 

Preston Park 

3,690,524 

359,887 
(1 ,328) 
(4,362) 

29,895 
19,512 
(1 ,370) 

402,234 

4,092,758 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

The notes to the statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes considered essential to 
fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, as follows: 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

Note 3 - lnterfund Activity 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Note 5 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Note 6 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

Note 7- Long-Term Debt Obligations 

Note 8 - Capitalized Lease Obligation 

Note 9 - Loans Payable 

Note 1 0 - Public Employees Retirement System Side Fund 

-Note 11-- Compensatea-Aosences-- -~----- ··- - --·-- -- - -------- -

Note 12 - Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions 

Note 13 - Health Care Plan 

Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies 

Note 15 - Property Sales and Lease Income 

Note 16 - Contingent Receivables 

Note 17- US Army Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement Grant 

Note 18 - Office Lease 

Note 19 - Prior Period Adjustments 

Note 20 - Subsequent Events 

-20-
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Authority) was created under Title 7.85 of the California Government Code, Chapters 
1-7, signed into law on May 10, 1994. The Authority was incorporated in the State of California as an instrumentality 
and is considered a quasi-governmental regional agency. The Authority has specific powers in State Law to 
prepare, adopt, finance and implement a plan for the future use and development of the territory formerly operated 
by the U.S. Army as the Fort Ord Military Reservation in Monterey County, California. 

The Authority is governed by a 13-voting member board, which consists of various Monterey County's Board of 
Supervisors, City Mayors and/or Council Members from surrounding jurisdictions. The Authority Board has 12 non­
voting ex-officio members. There are no component units, as defined in the Governmental Accounting Standards 

• Board Statement (GASB) No. 14 that are included in the Authority's reporting entity. 

The Authority receives funding from local, state and federal governmental sources and must comply with the 
accompanying requirements of these funding source entities. However, the Board is not included in any other 
governmental reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncement. The 
Board has the authority to levy taxes, the power to designate management and the ability to significantly influence 
operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 

Title 7.85 of California Government Code specifies that its terms and provisions would become inoperative when 
the board determines that 80% of the territory of Fort Ord (that is designated for development or reuse in the plan 
prepared pursuant to the bill) has been developed or reused in a manner consistent with the plan, or June 30,2014, 
whichever occurs first, and would be repealed on January 1, 2015. 

B. Accounting p-olicies - -

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental agencies. GASB is the accepted standard­
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant 
accounting policies of the Authority are described below. 

C. Basis of Presentation 

The financial statement presentation, required by GASB Statements No. 34, 37, and 38 provides a comprehensive, 
entity-wide perspective of the Authority's assets and liabilities and expands the fund-group perspective previously 
required. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Authority. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. Government­
wide statements differ from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. 
Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify 
the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for the governmental funds. 

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function or program of the Authority's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that 
are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore, clearly identifiable to a 
particular function. The Authority does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. 
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the 
Authority, with certain exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent 
to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the Authority. 

- 21 -
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements 
Fund financial statements report detailed information about the Authority. The focus of governmental fund financial 
statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major governmental fund is presented in a 
separate column. 

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental 
funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included 
on the balance sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds 
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing 
uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual 
basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are included on the proprietary fund's Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position for proprietary funds present increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net 
total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the Authority meets the cash flow needs 
of proprietary activities. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund is 

- -cnarges to otlier fLincfs fo(self=insurarrc-e-cnsts.--e>p-erating-expenses forthe--i nternal-service-ftJnd-incltJde-the costs-of-- -­
insurance premiums and claims related to self-insurance. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Authority resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are 
to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The Authority's accounts are organized into 
major funds and a proprietary fund as follows: 

Major Governmental Funds 

General fund is the general operating fund of the Authority and accounts for all revenue and expenditures of the 
Authority not encompassed within other funds. All general revenue and other receipts that are not allocated by law 
or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, paragraph 76, the Authority has elected to report all its special revenue 
funds as major funds because they believe these funds are particularly important to financial statement users, as 
follows: 

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue sources (other than 
trusts, major capital projects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed to the financing of particular activities 
and that compose a substantial portion of the inflows of the fund. Additional resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to the purpose of the fund may also be reported in the fund. The Authority maintains four 
major special revenue funds: 

-22-
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

1. Lease and Sale Proceeds Fund is used to account for revenue from the sale/lease of real estate on the 
former Fort Ord. 

2. Developer Fees Fund is used to account for moneys received from fees levied on developers or other 
agencies as a condition of approving development on the former Fort Ord. 

3. Pollution Legal Liability Fund is used to account for resources and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term debt associated with the purchase of Pollution Legal liability insurance. 

4. Army Grant ET/ESCA Fund is used to account for revenue and projects funded by the U.S. Department 
of the Army for cleanup of munitions and explosives of concern. 

Proprietary Fund 

Preston Park Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses of the 354 apartment units that are located at 
682 Wahl Court, Marina, California. 

E. Budgetary Data 

The Authority is not required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the general and special revenue funds. An 
annual budget is however prepared, adopted by the Authority's Board, and included as a part of the general 
accounting record and used as a guide to controlling expen~es. ~ach budget is prepared and controlled by the 

--- budget c-orifroffer at tne-revenue and-expen-ditt:freffunction/6bjecf level.- - ---- --- ------ -- -- -- --- ----- --- ---------- --

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

• A proposed draft budget is submitted to the Board for the fiscal year commencing July 1. 
• Once the budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of the 

Board. Amendments are presented to the Board at their regular meetings. 

F. Use of Estimates 

Financial statement preparation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Cash and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Authority are reported as cash and investments. Funds can spend cash at 
any time without prior notice or penalty. Investments are stated at fair value. Fair Value is the value at which a 
financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or 
liquation sale 

H. Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/interfund payables (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
advances to/from other funds (the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between 
funds are reported as interfund receivables or interfund payables. Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
internal balances. 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

I. Capital Assets 

The land and buildings that have been rehabilitated by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Preston Park) are owned by 
the Authority and are not included as part of the building improvements. The building improvements included herein 
are those associated with the rehabilitation. Repairs occurring during the rehabilitation period were expensed unless 
they added additional life to the building improvements. As of June 30, 2010 (the last appraisal report before the 
fiscal year ended), the appraisal value of the land and buildings was $57,320,000. For the latest available appraisal 
value of the land and buildings, see Note 20 - Subsequent Events. 

Equipment and furniture are stated on the actual cost basis. Capitalization level for capital assets is $500 per unit 
(including installation cost). Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the time 
received. There were no contributed capital assets during the fiscal year. Capital assets are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives. In accordance with the option provided by Government Accounting Principles Generally 
Accepted in the United States of America, infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets 
and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting are not recorded on the Statement of Net Position. Management has 
determined that the purpose of stewardship for capital expenses is satisfied without recording these assets. In 
addition, depreciation is not recorded on these capital assets. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Automobiles 

5-20 years 
2-7 years 
5 years 

In all cases, the infrastructure assets are owned by the Authority, as trustee, for a relatively short period of time. 

During the reporting period the Authority did not receive or transfer any real property. Real property assets have 
been transferred from the United States Government under an agreement dated June 23, 2000. These transfers 
included land, buildings, and infrastructure within the Cities of Marina, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Seaside and the 
County of Monterey. As of June 30, 2013, the Authority owned approximately 3,450 acres of former Fort Ord Army 
Base land which included the following parcels: 

• Preston Park Housing area 

• EDC properties transferred in connection with the ESCA Grant 

Real property assets are not recorded on the Authority's books since the Authority, as trustee, is a short-term real 
property holding entity. The Authority transfers property to underlying jurisdictions for disposal/development, 
retaining 50% interest in any future sale or leasing proceeds from any of these properties transferred for private 
development or for public non-institutional purposes. The ESCA Grant properties are undergoing munitions and 
explosives of concern remediation with covenants restricting use of these properties ("CRUPS") and have limited 
value until the CRUPS are lifted at the completion of remediation. 

Management has determined the estimated fiscal year-end value of all Authority owned properties to be in the 
range of $100-$150 million, of which the Authority is entitled to a 50% share of leasing or land sales proceeds. 

J. Net Position 

GASB Statement No. 63 adds the concept of Net Position, which is measured on the full accrual basis, to the 
concept of Fund Balance, which is measured on the modified accrual basis. 

Net Position is divided into three captions under GASB Statement No. 63. These captions apply only to Net Position 
as determined at the government-wide level, and are described below: 

• Net investment in capital assets -This represents the Authority's total investment in capital assets. 
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June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

J. Net Position (Continued) 

• Restricted net position- Restricted net position include resources that the Authority is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties or regulatory agencies 
that direct usage, or other impositions by contract or adopted covenants. 

• Unrestricted net position - Unrestricted net position represent resources derived from franchise fees and 
membership dues. These resources are used for transactions relating the general operations of the 
Authority, and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any 
purpose. 

K. Long -Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net 
position. In the fund financial statements, long-term debt is not reported. 

L. Fund Balance 

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable- amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (Prepaid insurance). 

Restricted- amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling 
legrslali6rf or becacrse- ofconstraTnts -manrre-exfemally-rmposeabycreditors-,-grarrtors ,- contrib-utoYs-;-or-ttle -laws-or­
regulations of other governments. 

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the governing 
board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Authority. Commitments may be established, 
modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the governing board (ET/ESCA grant and 
PLL insurance funds). 

Assigned- amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to 
be used for specific purposes. Under the Authority's adopted policy, only the governing board or director may assign 
amounts for specific purposes (CFD/Developer fees and land sale proceeds - assigned to the Authority CIP 
program). 

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the Authority considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the Authority considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the governing 
board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

M. Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less 
when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

N. New Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 60 -Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 60, "Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements". The objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public­
private or public-public partnership. As used in this Statement, an SCA is an arrangement between a transferor (a 
government) and an operator (governmental or nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an 
operator the right and related obligation to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public asset 
(a "facility") in exchange for significant consideration and (2) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from 
third parties. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 61 -The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 
and No. 34 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 61, "The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34". The objective of this 
Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, 
were amended to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance 
of those Statements. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 

GASB-Slatememi\I0:-6-z---=--cooificalian-of-ACCOITiltinqancl-FinaFlciai-Re55ftill9GUiaance-containea-lnF>re=----­
November 30. 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 62, "Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements". The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB's authoritative literature certain 
accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: (1) Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, (2) Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and (3) 
Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' (AICPA) Committee on 
Accounting Procedure. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 63- Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources. Deferred Inflows of Resources. 
and Net Position 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position". This Statement is effective for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The objective of this Statement is to establish guidance for reporting 
deferred outflows or resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial position. 
This Statement sets forth framework that specifies where deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources, as well as assets and liabilities should be displayed. This Statement also specifies how net position, no 
longer referred to as net assets, should be displayed. Implementation of the Statement and the impact of the 
Authority's financial statements are explained in Note 1 - J. 
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position 
Cash and investments 
Cash restricted for capital purchases and projects 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand 
Deposits with financial institutions 
Investments 

Total cash and investments 

$ 19,536,142 
4,341,403 

$ 23,877,545 

$ 200 
550,617 

23,326,728 

$ 23,877,545 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Authority's Investment Policy 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Authority by the California Government Code 
(or the Authority's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code (or the Authority's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, 
and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are 
governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the Authority, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Gevemment-Gode-or:-the-Author:ity'-s-iRvestmeRt-policy. ----------------------------

Authorized Investments Type 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 
Other Obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government 
Obligations of U.S. Federal Agencies 
Certificates of Deposit 
Deposit Notes 
Repurchase Obligations 
Bankers Acceptances 
Savings and Money Market Accounts 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Maximum 
Percentages 

per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 
per approval 

Maximum 
Maturity 

12 months 
12 months 
12 months 
12 months 
12 months 
30 days 
12 months 
12 months 
12 months 
12 months 

The Executive Officer shall consult with the Finance Committee Chair for any investment transaction exceeding 5% of 
the Authority's total portfolio; the Finance Committee will be routinely informed of these transactions. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments to market interest rate 
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the maturity date of each investment: 

Money market mutual funds 
Certificates of deposit 

$ 13,894,365 
$ 9,432,363 

Maturity Date 
Due on demand 
12 months 

The Authority has no investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. 
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This is measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below 
is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the Authority's investment policy, 
or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type. 

Rating as of Fiscal Year End 
Minimum Legal Exempt From 

Investment T ~e Amount Rating Disdosure AM AA A Not Rated 

Money market mutual funds $ 13,894,365 N/A $ $ $ $ $ 13,894,365 
Certificates of deposit 9,432,363 9,432,363 

$ 23,326,728 $ $ $ $ $ 23,326,728 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The investment policy of the Authority contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any type of investment 
or industry group beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one 
issuer (other than money market mutual funds and certificates of deposits) that represent 5% or more of total Authority 
investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the Authority's investment policy do not contain 

----------legaLocpolicy_requir:emeots_tbaLwo_uLd_limiUb_e_exp_Qs_ureJo custodial credlirisk fQL de12ositsL other _!ban 1~§ follo~ing ________ . 
provision for deposits: 

The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under 
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral 
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure Authority deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) 
to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the Authority's investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, 
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not 
apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment 
pools. 

As of June 30, 2013, $100,403 of the Authority's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts 

Cash Restricted for Capital Purchases and Projects 
As required by the City of Marina and the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, the Preston Park Property maintains a capital 
reserve cash account for future capital purchases. As of June 30, 2013, the reserve balance was $4,341,403. 
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lnterfund transfers consist of transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources are to be 
expended. lnterfund transfers for the 2012-2013 fiscal year are as follows: 

Major Governmental Funds: 
Lease and Sale Proceeds Special Revenue Fund 
Developer Fees Special Revenue Fund 

Totals 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

$ 910,670 $ 
910,670 

$ 910,670 $ 910,670 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Balance at 

Capital assets, being depreciated: July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions 
Equipment and furniture $ 451,051 $ 3,272 $ (294,739) 

Less - accumulated depreciation (337,503) (35,829) 294,739 
Total capital assets, net $ 113,548 $ (32,557) $ 

Balance at 
June 30, 2013 

$ 159,584 

(78,593) 
$ 80,991 

Depreciation expense was $35,829 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and charged to the general government 
-------------function-:-------------------- ------------------- ----------------------

Business-type Activities 

Preston Park 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Automobile 
Less - accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets, net 

Balance at 
July 1, 2012 

$ 3,970,204 

435,172 

35,563 

(3,093,662) 

$ 1,347,277 

Additions 

$ 261,989 

2,600 

11,843 

(359,887) 

$ (83,455) 

Deletions 

$ 

$ 

Balance at 

June 30, 2013 

$ 4,232,193 

437,772 

47,406 

(3,453,549) 
$ 1,263,822 

Depreciation expense was $359,887 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and charged to functions/programs of the 
Authority's business-type activities as Preston Park. 

Note 5 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 
All eligible full-time employees participate in the Authority's defined benefit pension plan, administered through the 
California Public Employee's Retirement System, which provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The California Public Employees' Retirement 
System (CaiPERS) is an agent multiple-employer plan administered by CaiPERS, which acts as a common investment 
and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California. A menu of benefit provision as 
well as other requirements is established by State statutes within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The Authority 
selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CaiPERS and adopts those benefits through 
local resolution (other local methods). CaiPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the 
CaiPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CaiPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, 
California, 95814. 
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Note 5 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Funding Status and Progress 
Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. The Authority makes the contributions required 
of its employees on their behalf and for their account. The Authority's required contribution is based upon an actuarially 
determined rate. The current 2012-13 fiscal year employer rate was 13.578% of annual covered payroll. The 2013-2014 
fiscal year employer rate is 14.057% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members, and the 
Authority, are established and may be amended by CaiPERS. 

Annual Pension Cost 
The Authority's total annual pension cost of $273,143 to CaiPERS was equal to the Authority's required and actual 
employer contributions of $180,228 and the employee share of $92,915. The required contribution was determined as 
part of the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 

The actuarial assumptions included: 

= a 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). 

• projected annual salary increases of 3.55% to 14.45% depending on age, service and type of employment. 

• an inflation rate of 3.0%. 

• a payroll growth rate of 3.25%. 

• individual salary growth merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation 
growth of 3.0% and an annual production growth of 0.25%. 

The actuarial value of PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in 
the market value of investments over a three-year period (smoothed market value). The Schedule of Funding Progress 

----,eA-F>8§e-32-sR:ews-tR:at-tl=le-(31aR-was-under:fuRfled-as-of-June-30r20-1-1-.-lnfoJ:matiordor:Jhe_fiscaLy_eaLende_cLJ_uo_e __ 3Q, __ ~~---· 
2013 has not been released by the Plan Actuary. 

The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the entry-age normal actuarial cost method, a projected benefit 
cost method. It takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already 
accrued. Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the 
same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation as described above. 

Historic Trend Information 
Three-year trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. 

Fiscal Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 

Year Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation 

6/30/2011 $ 135,110 100% $ -0-
6/30/2012 $ 158,799 100% $-0-
6/30/2013 $ 273,143 100% $ -0-

Note 6 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Authority offers its full-time employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
§457. The plan permits the employee to defer until future years up to 25% of annual gross earnings not to exceed 
$17,500; this amount increases to $23,000 for employees 50 years and older. Assets are not available to participants for 
disbursement until termination, retirement, death, or an emergency. 

The Authority does not fund the compensation deferred under the Plan except for $833 per month contributed on behalf 
of the Executive Officer per the employment agreement. The contributions are held in investments that are underwritten 
by ICMA Retirement Corporation. Periodic contributions are made through payroll deductions of the employees and all 
plan fees associated with the accounts are the responsibility of the individual employee. 
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Note 6 - Deferred Compensation Plan (Continued) 

The participants' accounts are not subject to claims of the Authority's creditors. The Authority has no liability for losses 
under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of any ordinary prudent investor. 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt Obligations 

Long-term debt activity for the fiscal year was comprised of the following: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year 

Capital lease $ 216,182 $ $ 105,537 $ 110,645 $ 110,645 

PERS Side fund 289,379 20,106 43,387 266,098 44,645 

OPEB 125,037 11,111 113,926 

Preston Park loan 18,456,588 268,383 18,188,205 18,188,205 

Compensated absences 147,431 81,020 85,383 143,068 41,771 

Totals $ 19,109,580 $ 226,163 $ 513,801 $ 18,821,942 $ 18,385,266 

*Denotes a prior period adjustment. See note 19 for further detail. 

Note 8 - Capitalized Lease Obligation 

The Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement to acquire fire fighting equipment that was distributed to local 
jurisdictions for fire suppression on the former Fort Ord Army Base. 

------------------~-----------------------------------

Scheduled Payments 
Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2014 
Total gross lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Net minimum lease payments 

Note 9 - Loans Payable 

Preston Park Loan 

$ 116.000 
116,000 

5,355 
$ 110 645 

In March 2010, the Authority borrowed $19 million from Rabobank Inc. In June 2009, the Board of Directors authorized 
the new loan to 1) provide stimulus grant local matching funds and 2) retire certain existing debts (2002 Revenue Bonds 
and $9M Line of Credit). 

The new loan has a fixed interest rate of 5.98% for five years and matures in June 2014. The monthly debt service 
(principal and interest) of $113,740 is being funded by the Authority's 50% share of Preston Park lease revenue. 

As of June 30, 2013, the amount of outstanding principal was $18,188,205. See Note 14- A for further details. 

Note 10 - Public Employees Retirement System Side Fund 

During the fiscal year 2005-2006, the Authority was required to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) risk pool. As a result, a side fund was created to account for the difference between the funded status of the 
pool and the funded status of the Authority's plan, in addition to the existing unfunded liability. The outstanding balance 
at June 30, 2013 was $266,098. 
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Note 11 - Compensated Absences 

The leave policy was revised in June 2011 to limit vacation accrual and include a vacation cash out provision. The 
Authority employees are allowed to accrue up to 10 days of sick leave and up to 20 days of vacation per year, depending 
on length of employment. Employees are permitted to accrue an unlimited amount of sick leave; vacation accrual is 
limited to 240 hours. Employees may elect to cash out up to 80 hours of accrued vacation one time during a fiscal year. 
In the event of separation of employment, an employee is reimbursed for any unused vacation leave, and a portion of 
their unused sick leave (limited to 17 4 hours). Reimbursement is based on the employee's regular salary rate at the date 
of termination or resignation. Vacation leave becomes vested immediately and sick leave becomes vested after 5 years 
of continuous services. Effective July 1, 2006, the Authority management employees are provided 5 days of 
management leave per year. There is no cash pay-off for unused management leave time. 

The Authority's liability for accrued vacation and sick pay at June 30, 2013 was $143,068. 

Note 12 - Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions 

Plan Description 
The Authority administers a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). 

The Authority provides post employment healthcare benefits to all qualified employees who met the Authority's Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS) current plan requirements. For regular Authority employees hired prior to 
January 1, 2013, five years offull time continuous employment with the Authority is required. The employee must be at 
least 50 years of age and has participated in the PERS plan for at least five years for health care benefits. For regular 
Authority employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, five years offull time continuous employment with the Authority is 
required. The employee must be at least 52 years of age and has participated in the PERS plan for at least five years for 
health care benefits. 

The Authority pays a fixed sum that is not to exceed 100% of the medical plan premium from the date of retirement for 
the life of the retired employee. Depending on the PERS payment plan chosen by the employees for spousal coverage 
after the death of an employee, the Authority would also cover the spouse for life under the same plan. 

Funding Policy 
The contribution requirement of plan members and the Authority are established and may be amended by the Authority. 
The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to 
prefund benefits as determined annually by the Authority. In the fiscal year 2012 - 2013, the Authority contributed 
$11,111 to the Plan. 

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation 
The Authority's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required 
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal 
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty 
years. The following table shows the components of the Authority's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Authority's net OPEB obligation. 

Annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 

Contributions made 
Increase in net OPEB obligation (asset) 

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of the fiscal year 

Net OPEB obligation- end of the fiscal year 
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Note 12- Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (Continued) 

The Authority's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation for the fiscal year 2012-2013 is as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

6/30/2013 $ 

Annual 
OPES Cost 

125,037 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Percentage of 
Annual OPES 

Cost Contribution 

9% 

Net OPES 
Obligation (asset) 

$ 113,926 

As of Jury 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued 
liability for benefits was $986,915, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL) of $986,915. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing overtime relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
ca leu Ia tions. 

In the July 1, 2012, the actuarial cost method used is the Projected Unit Credit with service prorates. The actuarial 
assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.0 percent 
initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent after five years. 

The method of determining the actuarial value of assets is not applicable. The UAAL is being amortized on a level dollar 
basis over thirty years. 

Note 13 - Health Care Plan 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, employees of the Authority were covered by a third party medical insurance plan, 
the California Public Employees Retirement System (CaiPERS) Medical Benefits Program, and by the Principal Financial 
Group for dental, vision, and life insurance. The Authority contributes to the employee medical premium and to eligible 
dependents medical premiums up to $1,323 per month per family. In addition, employees receive monthly cash 
allowances of $145 per employee to be applied towards premiums of the optional dental, vision, and life insurance 
benefits under an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Flexible Benefit Plan. 
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Note 14- Commitments and Contingencies 

A. Litigation 
As of June 30, 2013 the Authority was involved in several potential litigations. 

Appropriate insurance policies protect the Authority from most potential litigation effects. In addition, the Authority 
requires indemnification and contract provisions with its vendors and contractors that also guard against, and 
redirect, litigation costs and potential impact to the Authority's assets. The Authority retains authority and special 
counsel to defend any such actions. 

The Authority borrowed $19 million to fund Base Reuse Plan activities in 2010 from Rabobank Inc. using the Preston 
Park Housing complex as collateral. That loan comes due in June 2014 and must be paid off either through the sale 
to the City of Marina or by public sale. The outstanding balance of $18,188,205 is the Authority's obligation and the 
Authority does not have sufficient funds to retire the indebtedness in any other manner when it comes due in June 
2014. The City of Marina has legally contested the Authority's ability to sell the property and the use of the property 
as collateral for the loan by filing an injunction against the sale of the property that was granted by Monterey County 
Superior Court. That case is expected to be heard in Spring 2014. Since the City of Marina has filed formal action 
also against Rabobank Inc., it is expected that the loan maturity date will be addressed in the litigation process. 

B. Grant Payments 
The Authority participates in federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the 
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Authority has not complied with the rules and regulations 
governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any related 
receivables may be impaired. In the opinion of management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to 
compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been 

-------re-curded-in-th_e_a_c-c-omp-anyrn-g-cumbine-d-finan-cial-statem-ents-for-such-cuntingen-cie-s-:-eorrentye-ar-grant-informatinn·---
is as follows: 

1. Environmental Remediation Project 
The $99.3 million federal grant was paid to the Authority in three phases: $40 million in FY 06-07, $30 
million in FY 07-08, and $27.7 million in FY 08-09. The Army provided their payments ahead of schedule 
and secured a $1.6 million credit for early payments. With the last payment received in December 2008, the 
grant paid for all contracted expenditures through the end of the remediation project (June 2014). 

o Unearned Revenue 
The Authority's share of unspent, unearned Army grant revenue at June 30, 2013 is classified as 
revenue collected in advance of the earnings process and is recorded as unearned revenue, a liability 
account, for financial statement purposes. It will be recognized as revenue when earned. 

Note 15 - Property Sales and Lease Income 

California Law requires that all net lease or property sale proceeds generated on the former U.S. Army Base are to be 
shared equally between the Authority and the governmental entity with jurisdiction over subject property. This state law 
is affirmed under contract implementation agreements between the Authority and its underlying jurisdictions. The 
Authority's share of property sale and lease income activity for the fiscal year was as follows: 

Lease income 

Preston Park Housing $1,742,627 
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Contingent receivables are those for which there is some uncertainty of the legal obligation but have a prospect of a 
favorable settlement. Generally, a contingency involves some future determination, e.g., judgment or settlement. 

1. $50,457- The City of Del Rey Oaks (ORO) 
In 2002, ORO participated in a construction project funded by the EDA grant and local matching funds. On Apri123, 
2002, the ORO Council affirmed the City's commitment to provide the 25% local match or $50,457to pave a portion 
of South Boundary Road within the ORO city limits. ORO never paid this obligation citing insufficient resources. The 
Authority reports this debt as a long-term receivable on its financial statements and intends to collect payment as a 
deduction from the future land sale proceeds of ORO real property. The amount of $50,457 is recorded as unearned 
revenue. 

2. $4.1 million - East Garrison Partners (EGP) 
The Monterey County (County) approved the EGP project in 2005, postponing land sale revenues to future years. A 
portion of these land sale revenue was due to the Authority under State law and the terms of the Authority/County 
2001 Implementation Agreement. As a consequence, the Authority did not collect the deferred $4.1 Min land sale 
revenue and issued debt of the same amount to fund its ongoing building removal responsibilities. EGP, County and 
FORA entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which required EGP to: a) pay the Authority monthly 
interest payments on the $4.1 M loan that the Authority acquired in lieu of the land sale proceeds and b) repaid the 
$4.1 M principal due in 2011 or upon termination of the MOU. In 2009, EGP defaulted on the project. A new 
developer, Union Community Partners (UCP) purchased the rights and property associated with the project and 
questions their responsibility for the principal repayments. 

Note 17 - US Army Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement Grant 

Removal of munitions and explosives of concern (MEC) at the former Fort Ord has been in progress by the U.S. Army 
since 1992. Several areas formerly used for military training at the former base have been cleared over the years, but 
approximately 3,340 acres must still undergo specific MEC removal activities before they can be reused for key elements 
of the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan. In the spring of 2005 the U.S. Army and Authority entered into negotiations to execute 
an Army funded Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) leading to the transfer of former Fort Ord 3,340 
acres prior to regulatory environmental sign-off. In early 2007, the Army awarded the Authority $99.3 million to perform 
munitions cleanup on the ESCA parcels. The Authority also entered into an Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and California Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC), defining 
conditions under which the Authority assumes responsibility for the Army remediation of the ESCA parcels. In order to 
complete the AOC defined work; the Authority entered into a Remediation Services Agreement (RSA) with Arcadis, Inc. 
to provide MEC remediation services and executed a Cost-Cap insurance policy for this remediation work trough the 
American International Insurance Group (AIG). 

The ESCA Remediation Program (RP) has been underway for approximately 5.5 years. The ESCA property was 
transferred to Authority ownership on May 8, 2009. The FY 2011 ESCA RP field work focused in the Parker Flats, future 
East Garrison and interim action ranges areas of the former Fort Ord. 

On December 17, 2008, the Authority received the fourth and final ESCA Grant fund payment of approximately $28.6 
million. Per the AOC, the majority of these funds have been transferred to AIG (now "Chartis" company) for payment to 
LFR, Inc. under the terms of the insurance policies and related agreements. The Authority's administrative costs and 
oversight responsibility, including third-party quality assurance work, are also funded by the ESCA grant. 
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Note 18 - Office Lease 

On July 2, 2009, the Authority entered into a lease agreement for office space, with occupancy to commence on the date 
that a certificate of occupancy for the premises is delivered to the Authority, and shall terminate on midnight of the last 
day of the fifty-seventh (5ih) month, thereafter. Monthly rent for the initial lease term, as determined by a current, 
independent appraisal, shall be one dollar seventy cents ($1.70) per square foot, per month, for a total of$988,000 over 
the 57 month period. The transaction is part of an exchange agreement whereby the Authority is exchanging land, with a 
value of $988,000, as determined by an independent appraisal, for rent and tenant improvements. The Authority is 
responsible for a pro-rata share of the common area maintenance. The office lease agreement is scheduled to terminate 
with the sunset provisions of the Authority. 

Note 19 - Prior Period Adjustments 

The accompanying financial statements include adjustments that resulted in the restatements of beginning net position. 
The following summarizes the effect of the prior period adjustments to beginning net position as of July 1, 2012: 

Net position - beginning of fiscal year 
To adjust long term liabilities for PERS side fund 

Net position - beginning of fiscal year, restated 

Note 20- Subsequent Events 

Government-wide 
Statement 

$ 

$ 

(6,404,048) 
(289,379) 

(6,693,427) 

The Authority management has reviewed the results of operations for the period from June 30, 2013 through January 2, 
2014, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and have determined that no adjustments are 
necessary to the amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements nor have any subsequent events occurred, 
the nature of which would require disclosure. 

The management, however, feels that it is important to disclose the following information as it may affect the Authority's 
financial position as of June 30, 2013, and cause prior period adjustments in its financial statements, as follows: 

• Several significant receivables are under collection by the Authority. If not collected, year end fund balances 
may be reduced. 

• The Preston Park appraisal value of the land and buildings as of September 20, 2013, was $66,700,000. 
• There are four pending litigations as of January 2, 2014: 

1. City of Marina v Fort Ord Reuse Authority regarding sale of Preston Park Housing Complex (liability 
unknown). 

2. Keep Fort Ord Wild v Fort Ord Reuse Authority concerning Eastside Parkway environmental review (limited 
financial liability). 

3. Keep Fort Ord Wild v Fort Ord Reuse Authority concerning Public Records Act Compliance Issues (limited 
financial liability). 

4. Keep Fort Ord Wild v Fort Ord Reuse Authority concerning Conflict of Interest (limited financial liability). 
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Budget and Actual -All Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Resources (Inflows) 
Membership dues $ 261,000 $ 261,000 $ 261,000 $ 
Franchise fees 275,000 275,000 244,506 (30,494) 

Property taxes 1,300,000 1,211,423 (88,577) 

Federal grants 787,690 787,690 827,746 40,056 

Developer fees 6,000,000 3,930,986 4,232,542 301,556 

Planning reimbursements 7,000 7,000 (7,000) 

Lease/Rental income 840,000 1,460,908 1,742,627 281,719 

Real estate sales 28,450,279 500,000 28,296 (471 ,704) 

CSU mitigation fees 326,795 326,795 326,795 
Investments/Interest earnings 135,000 100,000 142,130 42,130 

Other revenue 10,817 10,817 

Amounts available for appropriation 37,082,764 8,949,379 9,027,882 78,503 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
Salaries and benefits 2,090,828 2,125,294 2,004,595 120,699 

Supplies and services 193,050 185,050 136,795 48,255 

Contractual services 1,417,500 1,826,500 1,718,892 107,608 

Capital improvements 4,584,000 1,787,542 472,457 1,315,085 
Bebt-service -9-;-1-24-;-3-40 1--;-4-80-;-8-80 1--;-4-88-;91-8 ~3-8} 
Insurance amortization 600,000 (600,000) 

Total charges to appropriations 27,409,718 7,405,266 6,413,657 991,609 

Surplus (Deficit) $ 9,673,046 $ 1 ,544,113 $ 2,614,225 $ 1,070,112 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Pooled Report Format 

Since the Authority has less than 100 active members, it is required by CaiPERS to participate 

in a risk pool. The following valuation reports the activity of the risk pool as a whole, and not 

the specific activity of individual members such as the Authority. 

Actuarial Valuation Date- Year Ended 

Miscellaneous Plan - 2% at 55 Risk Pool June 30, 2009 June 30, 201 0 June 30, 2011 

Accrued Liabilities (AL) $ 3,1 04,798,222 $ 3,309,064,934 $ 

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) $ 2,758,511 '1 01 $ 2,946,408,106 $ 

Unfunded Liabilities (UL) $ 346,287,121 $ 362,656,828 $ 

Funded Ratio (AVA/AL) 88.9% 89.0% 

Annual Covered Payroll $ 742,981,488 $ 7 48,401 ,352 $ 

tJ[ as a PercentageorF>ayroll 46--:-8% 4-8--:5% 

Note - Details of the defined benefit pension plan can be found in Note 5 of the basic financial statements. 

Information for the year ended June 30, 2013 has not been released by the Plan Actuary. 
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3,203,214,899 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Post Employment Benefit Plan Other than Pensions Trend Information 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date 

7/1/2012 

Projected Unit 

Credit Cost 

Accrued Liability 

Schedule of Funding Progress for 

Retiree Health Plan 

Actuarial Value 

of Assets 

Unfunded 

Liability 

(Excess Assets) 

$ 986,915 $ $ 986,915 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 

JUNE 30, 2013 
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PARTNERS 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA 
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA 

MOSS, LEVY & HAR 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES 
433 NORTH CAMDEN DRIVE, SUITE 730 
BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 
TEL: 310.273.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 
www.mlhcpas.com 

LLP 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
5800 HANNUM, SUITE E 

CULVER CITY, CA 90230 
TEL: 310.670.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 
www.mlhcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
Marina, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, business type activities, and each major fund of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Authority) as of 
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
January 2, 2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial reporting 
-------~iRterr:~ai-Gentrelj-te-dete~mine-tt:le-aHGiit-pmGeGiblres-tl':tat-a~e-appmpr:iate-iR-tl':te-Gin;;blmst.anGss-fm-t.t:le:---­

purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might 
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, 
as an item 2013-1 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Fort Ord Reuse Authority's Response to Findings 

The Authority's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. The Authority's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
January 2, 2014 
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PARTNERS 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA 
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA 

MOSS, LEVY & HAR 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES 
433 NORTH CAMDEN DRIVE, SUITE 730 
BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 
TEL: 310.273.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 
www.mlhcpas.com 

LLP 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
5800 HANNUM, SUITE E 

CULVER CITY, CA 90230 
TEL: 310.670.2745 
FAX: 310.670.1689 
www.mlhcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Directors 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
Marina, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Fort Ord Reuse Authority's (Authority) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the Authority's major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
The Authority's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

-------Mana§ement-is-respens+ble-fer-eemp+ianee-witM-the-reE)tlirements-ef-laws,--re§tl·latie>ns,--ee>Atfaets,--anEI-€lfaAtsr-------­
applicable to its federal program. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
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Report on Internal Control 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe that a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify and 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
January 2, 2014 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Description and Program Title 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
Direct Program: 
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers, HTRW Center of Expertise, 
Project grant for Environmental Services Cooperative 
Agreement 

Project grant for clean up of munitions and 
explosives of concern 
Agreement No. W9128F-07-2-0162 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

12.000 $ 

Federal 
Expenditures 

827,746 

$ 827,746 

The accompanying Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is an integral part of this schedule. 
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NOTE 1 

NOTE2 

FORD ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal grant activity of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (Authority) presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance 
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ 
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the Authority's basic financial 
statements. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedules are reported on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained 
in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

2. All federal grants were direct programs. 

3. There were no subrecipients of federal awards. 

4. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers included in the 
accompanying Schedule were determined based upon program name, review of grant 

------------------,c~oo-=-n·tracf information ana-fl"'eGffice ofl\7lanagement ana Buagef'sCFDJ\.-. __________ __, 
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FORD ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weaknesses? 

Unmodified- governmental activities and 
governmental funds 
Qualified - business-type activities and 
proprietary fund 

Yes _X_ No 

X Yes __ None Reported 

Yes _X_ No 

Yes _X_ No 

Yes _X_ None Reported 

_______ Iyp_e_ntauditocs_r:epo-rUssued-on_compJiance_for: __________________________ _ 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Circular A-133, 
Section 510 (a) 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

12.000 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
And Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: 
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Unmodified 

Yes _X_No 

Name of Federal Program Cluster 

U.S. Army Corp of Engineers. HTRW Center 
of Expertise, Project Grant for Environmental 
Services Cooperative Agreement 

$300,000 

X Yes No 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Single Audit Report 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section II - Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

Significant Deficiencies 

2013-01 Finding- Deficiencies in internal control over Preston Park (Third Party Management Company): 

During our audit, we noted the following issues: 
1. There was a deposit that had already been deposited into the bank. However, it was not 

recorded in the general ledger. 
2. Capital asset additions for the fiscal year 2012-2013 were not entered into the capital asset 

tracking module for depreciation, resulting in understatement of depreciation expense and 
accumulated depreciation. 

3. There were many capital asset additions replacing older appliances and other equipment. 
However, we did not see any older assets removed from the asset listing. Thus, these assets 
may still be depreciating, if not already fully depreciated. 

4. Lack of reconciliations between physical assets and capital asset listing. 
5. The liability for tenant security deposits did not agree to the security deposit cash account. 

Effect: 
1. The general ledger does not reflect the actual balance as of year-end. 
2. Depreciation for current year capital asset additions is not reflected in depreciation expense 

and accumulated depreciation. 
3. Preston Park does not have a current and accurate inventory of capital assets, which could 

result in overstatement or understatement of capital asset valuation. 
4. If the liability does not agree to the security deposits received, the difference could lead to 

overstatement of revenue. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that Preston Park implement procedures to accurately record and report cash, 
assets, and liabilities. 

Third Party Management's Response: 
1. The Deposit in question, Deposit #2469 in the amount of $8,346 hit the bank on 6/28/13 but 

was not posted to Yardi until July. We understand the auditor finding and the journal entry 
made to correct at Year End. We will have the Senior Property Accountant and/or the 
Accounting Manager review on a monthly basis to make sure that any Unearned Revenue 
gets booked in the correct month. 

2. Alliance uses FAS 50 Asset Accounting to calculate the Depreciation for Preston Park. 
Capital additions are uploaded from the General Ledger to FASon a monthly basis. We are 
adding, as part of the monthly accounting review, a reconciliation to be done between the 
Capital Assets posted to the GLand the Expense Report produced by FAS. Since there were 
some differences at Year End, we will go back to July 2013 and make the necessary 
adjustments to make sure these reports tie out going forward. 

3. The Accounting Manager will work with the Business Manager and Regional Manager to get 
a listing of capital assets that have been replace or have been recycled through MARS. After 
we identify them, and if applies, we'll proceed with removing them from the asset accounts 
and accumulated depreciations. 

4. The amount transferred from the Operating Account to the Security Deposit account in June 
was made to tie to the $463,347 Prior Receipts instead of Current Receipts. This was an 
error and was not caught until the following month. This has since been corrected and the 
Security Deposits amount in the reports now ties to the Bank Reconciliation. Please note that 
many times there is a timing difference due to the fact that the month end and the bank 
happen on the same date. For that reason we might not be able to wire the money on the day 
of close if the close happens after the cut off time. For example, in October you will notice 
that is a wire in transit in the amount of $2,618.60. Alliance does a monthly reconciliation for 
these accounts as part of the month end process. I have attached a copy of the most recent 
one. 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Single Audit Report 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section Ill- Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Awards Program Audit 

None 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
Single Audit Report 

Status of Prior Fiscal Year Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Prior Fiscal Year's Findings- Financial Statement Audit 

2012-01 Finding- Bank reconciliations are not prepared on a monthly basis: 
During our fieldwork, we noted that bank reconciliations are prepared quarterly instead of 
monthly. 

Effect: 
With the lack of frequency in preparing reconciliations, there is an increased risk of 
misappropriation of funds because management cannot determine as frequently if cash in the 
bank matches the general ledger. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend bank reconciliations are prepared on a monthly basis for the bank accounts that 
issue checks. 

Status: 
Implemented 

2012-02 Finding- Deficiencies in expense authorization requests: 
During our test of expenditures, we noted that the Executive Officer approves his/her own 
purchase authorization request. 

Effect: 
With the lack of review of expense authorization requests, there is a serious weakness of the 
system of internal controls and this opens the way for the possibility of not only unapproved but 

------------also-fraudulent-purchases:-.--------------------------------

Recommendation: 
We recommend that all purchase authorization requests are approved by the proper authority. 

Status: 
Implemented 

2012-03 Finding- Noncompliance with GASB 45: 
During our audit, we noted that the Authority has not done the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB 45) actuarial study. 

Effect: 
The liability of other post-employment benefits did not present in the basic financial statement. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that the Authority conduct a GASB statement No. 45 actuarial study. 

Status: 
Implemented 

Prior Fiscal Year's Findings- Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

None 
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Elect 2014 FORA Board Officers 

January 10, 2014 
9b 

RECOMMENDATION: 
1. Receive a report from the 2013/2014 Nominating Committee. 

ACTION 

2. Approve the Nominating Committee's proposed slate or conduct elections for individual offices, as 
follows: 
i. Elect three voting members of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Board to serve as Board 

officers (Chair, 1st Vice-Chair, 2nd Vice-Chair) and members of the Executive Committee for 
a term of one year. 

ii. Elect one voting member of the FORA Board to serve as the member-at-large on the FORA 
Executive Committee for a term of one year. 

iii. Elect a past Board Chair to serve on the Executive Committee for a term of one year. 
iv. Elect one ex-officio Board member to serve as a non-voting member of the Executive 

Committee for a term of one year. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
The FORA Master Resolution states that the three Board officers shall be elected annually at the end 
of the first regular Board meeting in January. The Board officers serve for a term of one year and 
may be reelected for no more than one consecutive, additional term in the same office. Under that 
policy, the current Board officers are eligible for reelection. The Master Resolution also establishes a 

---Board-p-o-licy-of-suceessien-ffem-2nd V:ise-Ghair:-to~~\1-ice-Chair_to_C_bair._Ibe Board may~g_g_o_in_t __ _ 
other officers as deemed necessary. 

Serving on the 2014 Nominating Committee were Chair Edelen, Mayor David Pendergrass, Mayor 
Rubio, Mayor Pro Tern Frank O'Connell, and Supervisor Parker. The Committee met on January 2, 
2014 and recommended the following slate with a vote of 4-1 (Parker dissenting). 

Chair: Del Rey Oaks Mayor Jerry Edelen 
151 Vice Chair: Marina Mayor Pro-Tem Frank O'Connell 

2nd Vice Chair: Seaside Mayor Ralph Rubio 
Past Chair: Monterey County Supervisor Dave Potter 

Member-at-Large: Sand City Mayor David Pendergrass 
Ex-Officio (Non-Voting) Member: CSUMB President Eduardo Ochoa 

VOTING PROCEDURE: A summary nomination covering all offices may be offered by the 
Nominating Committee Chair or any board member before voting for the individual offices is 
commenced. In the absence of a summary nomination, the Chair will accept nominations for each 
office, starting with the Chair, and cond ' ... eett:S n election as noted in Attachment A. A majority of votes 
cast confirms election. / 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller_----£_ 

None 

pprovedby D.~~ &r 
Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Attachment A to Item 9b 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

FORA VOTING PROCEDURES 

Election of Officers 

1. The Chair (or Acting Chair) opens the election of officers by requesting that the 
Chair, or other member, of the Nominating Committee present the committee's 
recommended slate of officers. 

2. The Board may elect the three officers and the "At-Large" Executive Committee 
Members by a summary nomination, wherein a motion to elect all three is made, 
(typically by the Nominating Committee Chair) seconded and carries. In the 
absence of a summary nomination, the Chair will request nominations for each 
board position in turn. The order of the election shall be the Chair first and then 
the First Vice-Chair followed by the Second Vice-Chair. Each position, if voted 
individually, is voted on before the next position is voted on. The two appointed 
representatives to the Executive Committee (a representative-at-large and a past 
board chair or, if there is none, another voting board member) may be elected, 

------~aRROinted, or simply confirmed by acclamation by the Board. 

3. If only one nomination is received for a position, a voice vote to elect by 
acclamation may be accepted by the Chair. 

4. If more than one nomination for any position is received, the procedure shall be 
as follows: 

• Nominees for each position are given the opportunity to make a short 
statement. 

• Ballots are distributed, voted and then collected by the Deputy Clerk. 

• Ballots are tallied by the Executive Officer and the Authority Counsel. 

• Voting results are announced by the Executive Officer before election of the 
other officers takes place. 
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Subject: 

Meeting Date: 
Agenda Number: 

Outstanding Receivables 

January 10, 2014 
11a 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

INFORMATION 

Receive a Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) outstanding receivables update for December 2013. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

1. Development Fee/Preston Park: In 1997, the U.S. Army and FORA entered into an interim 
lease for Preston Park. Preston Park consisted of 354 units of former Army housing within the 
jurisdiction of the City of Marina (Marina). Marina became FORA's Agent in managing the 
property. Marina and FORA selected Mid-Peninsula Housing Coalition to manage the 
property and lease it to tenants. In 1998, Mid-Peninsula completed rehabilitating Preston 
Park units and began leasing the property to the public. After repayment of the rehab loan, 
Marina and FORA have each shared 50%> of the net operating income from Preston Park. 

The FORA Board enacted a basewide Development Fee Schedule in 1999. Preston Park is 
subject to FORA's Development Fee Schedule overlay. In March 2009, the FORA Board 
approved the MOU between FORA and Marina whereby a portion of the Preston Park 

-----9evelej3meA-t-l=ee-w-as-j3ai8-13y-the-j3rejeet-. -I-A-2-QQ9,---Ma-rina-tra-AsferreGI-$J2-1,2-85-frem---­
Preston Park, making an initial Development Fee payment for the project. The remaining 
balance is outstanding and is the subject of current litigation. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

All former Fort Ord projects are subject to either the developer fee overlay or the Community 
Development District fees to pay individual share of the California Environmental Quality Act 
required mitigation measures. If any projects fail to pay their fair share it adds a financial burden 
to other reoccupied or development projects to compensate. 

COORDINATION: 

Executive Committee 

D.~~&.~ kLY( 

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Habitat Conservation Plan Update 

January 10, 2014 
11 b 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

INFORMATION 

Receive a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) and State of California 2081 Incidental Take 
Permit (2081 permit) preparation process status report. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA), with the support of its member jurisdictions and ICF 
International (formerly Jones & Stokes), FORA's HCP consultant, is on a path to receive 
approval of a completed basewide HCP and 2081 permit in 2015, concluding with US Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) (formerly 
known as California Department of Fish and Game) issuing federal and state permits. 

Most recently, FORA received comments on the Administrative Draft HCP from USFWS in July 
2012 and CDFW staff in August 2012, and held recent in-person meetings on April 10, June 19, 
and November 19, 2013 to discuss outstanding issues; however, a legal review by these 
wildlife agencies is not yet complete and several policy-level issues must be resolved between 
CDFW and BLM, CDFW and State Parks/UC. After meeting with CDFW Chief Deputy Director 
Kevin Hunting on January 30, 2013, FORA was told that CDFW and BLM issues require a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between CDFW and BLM, outlining certain assurances 
between the parties, resulting in additional time. Also, according to CDFW, final approval of an 

-----er:ldown:l-ent-bolder:-no-long_et:-r:ests_witb_GDE-W_(_due_to_passag_e_of_SB_1_0_9A_lKeJJo_eJ)_,_wl1i_eb ___ _ 
delineates specified rules for wildlife endowments. However, CDFW must review the funding 
structure and anticipated payout rate of the HCP endowment holder to verify if the assumptions 
are feasible. CDFW has outlined a process for FORA and the other permit applicants to 
expedite compliance with endowment funding requirements. FORA has engaged Economic 
and Planning Systems (EPS) to help in this process. Other policy issues and completion of the 
screen check draft HCP should be completed in the next few months. If the current schedule is 
maintained, FORA staff expects a Public Draft HCP available for public review by August 2014. 
Update: On December 6, 2014, 5 RA staff requested review of the HCP governing 
documents (Implementing Agree t, Joint Powers Agreement, HCP ordinance/policy) 
from FORA Administrative Com it ee members by January 24, 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller---,;~'-""""""""" 

Staff time for this item is includ€3d in the approved FORA budget. 

COORDINATION: 

Administrative Committee, Executive Committee, ICF, Denise Duffy and Associates 

Prepared by ~ ~ 
/JOOathan Garcia 

Reviewed by .D.~~ 
Steve Endsley 

() C j_.-.. _- p ftA/)_ J 
Approved by V, -:::5~ ~ 

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Subject: Administrative Committee Report 

Meeting Date: January 1 0, 2014 
da Number: 11 c 

INFORMATION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive a report from the Administrative Committee and Joint Administrative and 
Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee (WWOC). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The approved December 4, 2013 Administrative Committee minutes and the approved 
October 30, 2013 Joint Administrative/WWOC minutes are attached for review 
(Attachment A and Attachment B). The draft minutes from the December 18, 2013 Joint 
Administrative/WWOC will be considered the next Joint Committee meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reviewed by the FORA Controller__,e::-_ 
,,I' 

Staff time for these committees islncluded in the approved annual budget. 

COORDINATION: 

Administrative Committee, WWOC 
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Attachment A to Item 11 c 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
8:25a.m., Wednesday, December 4, 2013 I FORA Conference Room 

920 2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina CA 93933 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chair Dawson called the meeting to order at 8:15a.m. The following were present: 

Carl Holm, County of Monterey* 
Elizabeth Caraker, City of Monterey* 
John Dunn, City of Seaside* 
Layne Long, City of Marina* 
Anya Spear, CSUMB 
Vicki Nakamura, MPC 
Graham Bice, UC MBEST 

*Voting Members 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Graham Bice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Patrick Breen, MCWD 
Kathleen Lee, Sup. Potter's Office 
Lyle Shurtleff, BRAC 
Don Hofer, MCP 
Bob Schaffer 
Doug Yount 
Chuck Lande, Marina Heights 

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
None. 

--4. RU-BLI-C C-0-M-M-E-N! RERJO-D 
None. 

5. AGENDA REVIEW- DECEMBER 13,2013 BOARD MEETING 

FORA Staff: 
Michael Houlemard 
Steve Endsley 
Jim Arnold 
Lena Spilman 
Crissy Maras 
Jonathan Garcia 
Josh Metz 

Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia led a review of the items included in the draft Board packet, noting 
that the meeting would begin at 4:30 p.m. at the California State University, Monterey Bay (CSUMB) 
University Center. The Administrative Committee recommended the Board approve the 2014 
Administrative Committee meeting schedule, provided the December 31st meeting was rescheduled 
for January 2nd. 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Review CSUMB/FORA Base Reuse Implementation Colloquium Program 
Executive Officer Michael Houlemard reviewed the event program and strongly encouraged 
Committee members to attend and urge their elected representatives to attend the 2-day event. 

b. Review Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) Document Review Schedule 
Mr. Garcia discussed the Habitat Conservation Plan status and reviewed the calendars provided 
in the packet. Mr. Houlemard noted there was a collective effort underway to resolve all 
outstanding issues by January 2014, which could require a trip to Sacramento. Mr. Garcia 
announced that the HCP documents would be distributed in the next few days, and that the 
review period would conclude at the end of January 2014. 

7. ITEMS FROM MEMBERS 
None 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
The Committee adjourned at 9:21 a.m. 
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Attachment B to Item 11c 
FORA Board Meeting, 1/10/2014 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE AND WATER/WASTEWATER OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, October 30, 2013 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina, CA 93933 (FORA Conference Room) 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
FORA Executive Officer Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. called the meeting to order at 8:20 AM. The 
following were present, as indicated by signatures on the roll sheet: 

Committee Members: 
John Dunn, City of Seaside 
Elizabeth Caraker, City of Monterey 
Benny Young, County of Monterey 
Graham Bice, UCMBEST 
Mike Lerch, CSUMB 
Tim O'Halloran, City of Seaside 
Anya Spear, CSUMB 
Diana Ingersoll, City of Seaside 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Josh Metz led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Staff: 
Michael Houlemard, FORA 
Steve Endsley, FORA 
Jim Arnold, FORA 
Crissy Maras, FORA 
Brian Lee, MCWD 
Kelly Cadiente, MCWD 
Patrick Breen, MCWD 

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

Others: 
Bob Schaffer 
Crisand Giles 
Don Hofer 
John Ford 
Chuck Lande 
Patrick Kelly 
Vicki Nakamura 
Beth Palmer 
Rick Riedl 

Executive Officer Houlemard announced that he and FORA Principal Analyst Robert Norris both 
recently had their fifth grandchildren born within two hours of each other, and that FORA Associate 
Planner Josh Metz welcomed his first child earlier in the month. 

4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
a. October 16, 2013 Joint Administrative/WWOC Minutes 

There were no objections to approving the October 16, 2013 minutes as presented. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
None 

6. AGENDA REVIEW- NOVEMBER 8. 2013 BOARD MEETING 
a. Consistency Determination: 2010 Monterey County General Plan 
Monterey County staff member John Ford introduced the item and explained that the Consistency 
Determination was on the October FORA Board agenda, but the Board received late comment letters 
from the Sierra Club and Jane Haines which prompted the request for additional Administrative 
Committee review. County staff attempted to address all questions or concerns raised in the letters. 
Mr. Ford additionally noted that the language at issue was adopted in their 2001 General Plan and that 
nothing in the 2010 update had been questioned in the comment letters. 

FORA Assistant Executive Officer Steve Endsley noted that the Board would have options in 
November, including: concurring with the FORA staff finding of consistency as currently presented, 
concurring with the FORA staff finding of consistency with specific changes, or, not concurring with the 
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FORA staff finding. Mr. Ford explained that if the Board requested specific changes, those would have 
to also be approved by the Board of Supervisors. If the FORA Board does not find the 2010 plan 
consistent, the County would revert to the 2001 plan already in place. 

Concerns were raised about the applicability of comments received less than 24 hours before a Board 
meeting. Executive Officer Houlemard explained that the FORA Executive Committee would be 
reviewing their policies on comment submittal at their meeting later in the afternoon. The Executive 
Committee will also review the policy on distribution of lengthy documents. 

MOTION: Graham Bice moved to maintain the prior Administrative Committee recommendation to 
concur with the FORA staff finding that the 2010 Monterey County General Plan was consistent with 
the Base Reuse Plan and additionally requested that FORA counsel be prepared to address any 
questions, specifically those raised by the Sierra Club and Jane Haines. 

MOTION PASSED: Unanimous 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
a. FY 2013/14 Ord Community Budget 

i. Marina Coast Water District Financial Plan and Rate and Fee Study 
MCWD Interim General Manager Brian Lee apologized that answers to committee member questions 
were not ready for distribution. He noted that their questions had raised his own questions to rate 
study consultant Carollo Engineers, prompting MCWD to defer FORA Board review of the Ord 
Community budget. 

The committees discussed MCWD Proposition 218 requirements. MCWD held a protest hearing on 
October 21 5

t. 569 parcels in the Ord Community receive service. 285 protests (50% of total customers, 
plus one) from Ord Community customers are required to block the proposed rate increase; MCWD 
received 246 valid protests. 

MCWD is unsure whether the answers will be prepared in time for the next meeting packet, however, 
staff did commit to timely distribution prior to a future meeting. 

8. NEW BUSINESS (ITEMS FROM MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT) 
a. Utilization of Unused Water Allocation 
An MCWD Board member requested these items be placed on the FORA Board agenda, however, 
protocol requires Water/Wastewater Oversight or Administrative Committee and Executive Committee 
review first. MCWD staff noted that the MCWD Board as a whole did not authorize the request. For the 
next meeting, MCWD staff will prepare a table outlining the current status of water allocation. 

b. Regional Urban Water Augmentation Program 
MCWD staff is reviewing alternatives, including groundwater recharge and a request to Monterey 
County Water Resources Agency for Salinas River water. 

9. ITEMS FROM MEMBERS 
None 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
Executive Officer Houlemard adjourned the meeting at 10:47 a.m. 

Minutes prepared by Crissy Maras, Grants and Contracts Coordinator 

Approved by:------------------
Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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Finance Committee 

January 1 0, 2014 
11d 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

INFORMATION 

Receive minutes from the December 17, 2013 Finance Committee (FC) meeting. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The FC met on December 17, 2013 to discuss the FY 12-13 draft Audit Report and 
other items. Please refer to the attached minutes (Attachment A) for more details and 
the FC recommendations. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller _...,.Lot.........;. 

Staff time for this item is included in the approved budget. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance Committee 

/~ ·:;£,~ ~.h ·- ~ Prepared by·/' Approved by D.~\~ 4Jf'-
Marcela Fridrich Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. 
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FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina, CA 93933 

Phone: (831) 883-3672 I Fax: (831) 883-3675 I www.fora.org 

Finance Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, December 17, 2013 at 3:00 pm 

ACTION MINUTES 

Attachment A to Item 11 d 
FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 

Present: Chair Bill Kampe, Members: Graham Bice, lan Oglesby, Gail Morton 
Nick Chiulos (excused) Absent: 

Staff: Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., Ivana Bednarik, Steve Endsley, Robert Norris, Marcela Fridrich 
Hadley Hui, CPA, Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP Guests: 

AGENDA 

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Finance Committee (FC) discussed the following agenda items: 

1. Roll Call 
A quorum was achieved at 3:00 PM. Member Morton joined me · · ·at 3:20 PM. 

2. Acknowledgements, Announcements, and Correspondece 
Executive Officer Houlemard mentioned the success of th 
comments by speakers that mentioned the funding f 
matters. Mr. Houlemard also commented about ' 
property transfer agreement with the Department 
Cemetery. 

3. Public Comment Period 
1\Jone 

4. November 7, 2013 Minutes 
Motion to approve Bice, Second 

5. 
This item was continue 
Member Morton. C , 

/·~ 

neutral fiscal impac 
policy. FC members c 

6. FY 12-13 Annual Financial 
Report prior to the meeting. FORA Auditor, Hadley Hui, partner at 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP, w , resent and provided a detailed page-by page presentation of the Audit 
Report and Management's Discussion Analysis. The Auditor explained that in addition to conducting the 
FORA financial audit, his firm also audited Preston Park and explained that FORA's financial statements now 
include the Preston Park property. Preston Park is managed by a third party Management Company 
(Alliance), was previously independently audited and issued a separate audit report. Since FORA is holding 
title to Preston Park, the Auditor included this capital asset in the FORA audit report. As a result, the Auditor 
issued a qualified opinion because FORA (thru Alliance) has not yet recorded the value of Preston Park land 
and buildings and depreciation. FC Members acknowledged and discussed in length this issue and asked 
staff to coordinate with Alliance to secure this valuation for next year's audit report. The auditor also 
reported several third-party (Alliance) findings in respect to the Preston Park operations. Alliance 
management provided response and corrective actions, which the Auditor accepted. In respect to the FORA 
operations, the Auditor issued an unmodified opinion (formerly unqualified) and complimented FORA staff 
for implementing previous year's recommendations. 
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There were no findings/questionable costs in the FY 12-13 financial audit in respect to FORA operations. FC 
received the Audit Report and recommended acceptance of the FY 12-13 Audit Report by the FORA Board 
with typographical and other grammatical corrections and asked staff to prepare/add footnotes to indicate 
designation for all revenue sources. Motion Bice, second Oglesby. Approved 4-0. The FC then voted to 
support the Auditor's recommendation of including/adding the Preston Park asset value in future audit 
reports. Motion Bice, second Oglesby. Approved 4-0. 

7. Next meeting date 
FC Members agreed to a meeting on January 14, 2014 at 3:30PM. 

8. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 4:40pm. 

Minutes prepared by Marcela Fridrich. 
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Subject: Post Reassessment Advisory Committee 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
Agenda Number: 11 e 

INFORMATION 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Receive a Post Reassessment Advisory Committee (PRAC) activity report. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

At its March 22, 2013 Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Board meeting workshop, the Board 
concurred in the Chair's appointment of the PRAC to identify near-term and short-term (through 
fiscal year 2013-14) Category IV work plan priority recommendations ~or full Board review at a 
subsequent Board meeting. The PRAC's charge is included in Attachment A. 

At its July meeting, the FORA Board provided direction to proceed with a four-topic Colloquium 
hosted by/at CSUMB. Since that action, the PRAC met twice in August, twice in September, 
three times in October, and three times in November to coordinate event program planning with 
CSUMB. Staff provided brief comments at the December 13, 2013 FORA Board meeting 
regarding the two-day colloquium. Staff anticipate providing a Board report on Post 
Reassessment-related items at the February Board meeting. 

To summarize work on the various categories identified in the December 2012 Base Reuse 
Plan Reassessment Report, Category 1 and 2 items are referenced in Special Counsel Alan 

----Wa-lt-ller~-J-u-ly-3,2-0~-J-anGI--Se-~ternbe-F-3,----2Q~-a-rnemes-a-s-~Fier-a-etien-s-tMa-t-ma-y-ee-EieemeEI---­
complete provided appropriate California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) actions are 
processed through the FORA Board. Category 3 items have been referred by the Board to the 
Administrative Committee for proposed recommendation back to the FORA Board. Category 4 
items would be referred by FOR1ard to the PRAC for discussion and recommendations 
during calendar year 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reviewed by FORA Controller --T--'-----'-

7 
Staff and consultant time to initiate this item is included in the approved FORA budget. 

COORDINATION: 

PRAC, CSUMB, Administrative Committee, and Executive Committee. 

Approved by D. s+~ ~to("· 
Michael A. Houlemar , Jr. 
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Attachment A to Item 11 e 

FORA Board Meeting, 01/10/2014 • 
Base Reuse Plan 

Post-Reassessment Advisory Committee 

Committee Charge 

The Post-Reassessment Advisory Committee ("PRAC") is charged 

with advising the FORA Board regarding action items to be prioritized in the 

near term (approximately through the end of fiscal year 2013-2014 ), as a 

follow-up to the Base Reuse Plan reassessment effort completed in 2012. 

The primary issues that are to be reviewed are the topics and options 

identified in Categories I and IV of the final Reassessment Report, with 

additional consideration of the Reassessment Report's other subject areas 

as the FORA Board may deem necessary. FORA staff will provide technical 

and administrative support to the PRAC, with meeting facilitation services 

j provided by CONCUR, Inc. The PRAC effort is anticipated to have a limited 

duration, with a goal of forwarding priority recommendations to the Board in 

May or June 2013. 
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Subject: Veterans Issues Advisory Committee 

Meeting Date: January 10, 2014 
Agenda Number: 11 f 

INFORMATION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive a status report on Veterans Issues Advisory Committee (VIAC) activities. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

At their meeting held January 11, 2013, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Board of 
Directors authorized the VIAC on an ad-hoc basis to advise the Board on former Fort Ord 
redevelopment issues that directly impact local area veterans (VIAC Charge is included as 
Attachment A). The VIAC met six times over the course of the year, discussing items related 
to the Veterans Affairs (VA)/Department of Defense (DoD) medical facility, former Fort Ord 
initiatives, California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery (CCCVC) fundraising, property transfer, 
planning/construction contract, burial claim reimbursements, phasing and legislation. They 
advised the Board to promote emphasis on the three E's and strengthen economic recovery 
and jobs generation language when planning the colloquium. 

The VIAC was authorized for one calendar year and expires this month. Outstanding issues 
_____ under_\LIAC_pur_\lLe_w_e_Qul_d_b_enefit from extending the Committee's term, including VA/DoD 

clinic and CCCVC water needs, Phase II CCCVC fundraising, and a possible veteran's drop-in 
center. In February, the FORA Board Chair will announce 2014 Committee appointments. The 
Board may consider extending the C at that time. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reviewed by FORA Controller-+-­

Staff time for this item is includ 

COORDINATION: 

VIAC 

Prepared by~~pprov 
Crissy Maras 
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Attachment A to Item 11f 

FORA Board Meeting, 1/1 0/2014 

Veterans Issues Advisory Committee 

Committee Charge 

The Veterans Issues Advisory Committee (VIAC) will identify, discuss, 

evaluate, and advise regarding the development of former Fort Ord 

issues that directly impact Monterey Bay Area veterans. The primary 

issues that are to be monitored are the creation of the California 

Central Coast Veterans Cemetery and the Veterans Administration/ 

Department of Defense Clinic - both to be located on the former Fort 

Ord. 

The VIAC is charged with reviewing resources necessary for the 

successful implementation of-6oU1 of-tt1ese projects ana win review 

data or recommendations that may come from the Fort Ord Reuse 

Authority Administrative Committee, Executive Committee, and Board 

of Directors as well as other Monterey County jurisdictions, and 

provide input regarding organizational, policy, financial, and technical 

elements in processing these projects and others related to veterans 

or military issues as may be assigned by the FORA Chair (on behalf 

of the Board of Directors). 

FORA staff will provide technical and administrative support to the 

VIA C. 
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Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee 

January 1 0, 2014 
11 

RECOMMENDATION: 

INFORMATION 

Receive a status report on Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee (WWOC) and Marina 
Coast Water District (MCWD) FY 2013/14 Ord Community budgets and rates progress. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and MCWD entered into a Water and Wastewater 
Facilities Agreement in March 1998 (online at www.fora.org). That agreement outlines FORA 
and MCWD responsibilities regarding MCWD ownership and operation of the former Fort Ord 
water and wastewater collection systems, generally including the design/construction of new/ 
additional facilities, conservation, management and protection of groundwater resources, and 
Ord Community operating and capital improvement budgets. 

During FORA Board Ord Community budget review over the last several years, Board 
Members have expressed four main concerns: 1) Ord Community service area annexation and 
MCWD Board representation, 2) contractual obligation to provide a water augmentation 
program, 3) rate payer financed infrastructure required for full reuse of the system, and 4) low 
income customer rate program. 

MCWD staff has initiated the annexation process with LAFCO and LAFCO is completing a 
_____ muni.cip_aLs_e_oLLc_e_s_[_eview. Additional!~, MCWD staff is researching augmented water needs to 

determine which project should move forward to design and environmental review. FORA staff 
has requested a chronology and a path forward on all of these concerns for an informational 
presentation at a future FORA Board meeting. 

DISCUSSION: 

Beginning May 2013, MCWD staff has worked with FORA staff, WWOC, Administrativ~ 
Committee and others reviewing the FY 2013/14 Ord Community budget and MCWD 5-year 
rate study. In October, MCWD staff and consultants presented the rate study to the FORA 
Board, anticipating rate increase and budget approval consideration at a later date. The Board 
had several questions/concerns and directed FORA staff to work with the WWOC and 
Administrative Committee to address those issues. The WWOC and Administrative Committee 
continued to meet jointly for further rate study review through December 2013. 

At their December 18, 2013 meeting, the joint WWOC and Administrative Committee agreed 
that the outstanding issues would not likely be resolved in time to get FORA Board approval of 
the FY 2013/14 budget. Per the facilities agreement section 7.1 .3.4, the currently approved 
budget shall remain in place until a new budget is adopted. Therefore, the FY 2012/13 Ord 
Community budget currently in place (approved by the FORA Board September 2012) remains 
in place. There is no need for a formal action by the FORA Board to continue the current Ord 
Community rates, fees and charges. This results in the effect of a "continuing resolution" for the 
current budget year while work on next year's budget commences. MCWD staff has begun 
preparing the subsequent FY 2014/15 budget for presentation to the WWOC by March 30 
(facilities agreement section 7.1 .3. 1 ). All FORA Board stipulations in the FY 2012/13 budget 
approval would also remain in effect until a new Ord Community budget is approved by the 
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FORA Board- specifically that all references to the Regional Water Project would be removed, 
2°/o allocation toward potential wage increases are eliminated and the 5°/o proposed rate 
increase would be avoided by implementing other cost saving measures. This would not hinder 
MCWD from furthering a future mutually acceptable water augmentation project as long as it 
remains within the parameters of the FY 2012/13 FORA Board action. 

To resolve the outstanding issues concerning the 5-year rate study and its effect on the budget, 
rates, surcharges and capacity charges, the joint committees and FORA staff will continue to 
meet with MCWD staff over the next several months prior to recommending any rate increase 
or Ord Community budget to the FORA Board. A series of question and answer meetings are 
being scheduled so interested parties (rate payers, development community and their 
consultants, WWOC members, California State University Monterey Bay, etc.) can have their 
questions answered. A synopsis of frequently asked questions is being prepared and will be 
shared with the public and FORA Board. 

FISCAL IMPACT: v 
Reviewed by FORA Controller b 
Staff time for this item is included in the approved FORA budget. 

COORDINATION: 

MCWD, WWOC, Administrative Committee 

Prepared by~­
Crissy Maras 

Reviewed by D.*~ ~ 
D. St~ven Endsley 

Approv 



Page 189 of 190

Travel Report 

January 10, 2013 
11 h 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Receive an informational travel report from the Executive Officer. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

INFORMATION 

The Executive Officer regularly submits reports to the Executive Committee providing details 
of his travel requests, including those by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA") staff and 
Board members. Travel expenses may be paid or reimbursed by FORA, outside agencies/ 
jurisdictions/ organizations, or a combination of these sources. The Executive Committee 
reviews and approves these requests, and the travel information is reported to the Board as 
an informational item. 

UPCOMING TRAVEL: 

Association of Defense Communities {ADC) Installation Innovation Forum 
Destination: San Antonio, Texas 
Date: February 9-12, 2014 
Traveler/s: Michael Houlemard 
Purpose: Executive Officer Michael Houlemard has been asked to speak about military 
community partnerships at the ADC Installation Innovation forum in San Antonio, Texas. Mr. 

-----Hotdemard-will-arrive-the-ntght-of-Sanday~F-ebruary-gtt:J_in-urderto-p-aTtrctp-atelrTtne-ftrst-two..----------~ 
days of the Forum and will return on February 1ih. 

Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) Coordination Meeting 
Destination: Sacramento, CA 
Date: January 2014 {Date TBD) 
Traveler/s: Michael Houlemard {likely also one staff and Leg. Cmte. member) 
Purpose: The 2013 federal government shut-down delayed review of the draft HCP by the 
wildlife agencies and negatively impacted the document's progress. In order to keep the 
momentum, staff has participated in numerous conference calls with the various agencies to 
resolve outstanding issues. This coordination effort could require a trip to Sacramento 
sometime in January to meet with the CA Department of Fish and Wildlife on policy-level 
issues. While in Sacramento, travele may also use the opportunity to meet with the CA 
Department of Veterans Affairs. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reviewed by FORA Controller --r-----r 

Staff time for this item was incl ded in the approved annual budget. Travel expenses are 
reimbursed according to the FORA Travel Policy. 
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Public Correspondence to the Board 

January 10, 2014 
11 i 

INFORMATION 

Public correspondence submitted to the Board is posted to FORA's website on a monthly 
basis and is available to view at http://www.fora.org/board.html. 

Correspondence may be submitted to the Board via email to board@fora.org or mailed to 
the address below: 

FORA Board of Directors 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A 
Marina, CA 93933 
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